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Auditors’ Report

To the Shareholders of
NQL Drilling Tools Inc.

We have audited the balance sheets of NQL Drilling tools Inc. as at December 31, 2003 and 2002 and
the consolidated statements of operations, deficit and cash flow for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position

of the Company as at December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the results of its operations and cash flow for
the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Kool LT owele L P ’
Chartered Accountants

Edmonton, Alberta

March §, 2004
(except for Note 18(a), which is as of March 10, 2004)

Member of
Deloitts Touche Tahmatsu
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As at December 31, 2003 and 2002
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

2003 2002
ASSETS '
CURRENT
Cash : $ 1878 § 1,140
Accounts receivable 26,611 34,660
Income taxes recoverable 4,937 6,110
Inventory (Note 7) 30,763 36,098
Prepaid expenses 881 1,246
Future income taxes (Note 11) : - 1,462
Current assets held for sale (Note 5) 5,716 24,059
_ 70,786 104,775
OTHER ASSETS (Note 8) 673 788
FUTURE INCOME TAXES (Note 11) 7,571 3,934
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 9) " 79,555 95,496
DEFERRED CHARGES (Note 10) 5222 7.774
GOODWILL (Note 12) 34,390 73,018
LONG-TERM ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (Note 5) 12,522 19,793
' $ 210,719 $ 305,578
LIABILITIES
CURRENT '
Bank indebtedness (Note 13) $ 12,579 $§ 33,759
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 19,094 19,123
JIncome taxes payable ' 662 1,760
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 14) 11,602 54,760
Current liabilities held for sale (Note 5) 762 4,923
' 44,699 114,325
LONG-TERM DEBT (Note 14) 5 23,861 2,053
FUTURE INCOME TAXES (Note 11) 3,253 10,584
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE (Note 5) 47 61

71,860 127,023

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 2 and 18)
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Capital stock (Note 15) 181,473 135,389
(Deficit) retained earnings (23,220) 35,909
Cumulative translation adjustment (Note 16) (19,394) 7,257

138,859 178,555

$ 210,719 $ 305,578

APPROVED BY THE BOARD

"Signed" Tim Swinton, Director
"Signed" Bruce Libin, Director
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
(thousands.of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

2003 2002
REVENUE $ 110,495 89,224
DIRECT EXPENSES 60,961 49,342
GROSS MARGIN 49,534 39,882
EXPENSES
General and administrative 44,173 27,922
Amortization 16,667 13,508
60,840 41,430
LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
BEFORE UNDERNOTED (11,306) (1,548)
INTEREST EXPENSE (Note 19) (9,333) (5,299)
OTHER EXPENSES (Note 20) (2,3585) -
FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS (813) (895)
LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE INCOME
TAXES AND GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT (23,807) (7,742)
INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) RECOVERY (Note 11)
Current (448) 2,335
Future 7,679 869
7,231 3,204
LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
BEFORE GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT (16,576) (4,538)
GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT (Note 1?:)v 32,010 -
LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (48,586) (4,538)
LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS, ’

. net of income taxes (Note 5) 10,543 1,339
NET LOSS $ (59,129) (5,877)
LOSS PER COMMON SHARE (Note 24)

Loss per common share from continuing operations

Basic and diluted - , S (1.53) (0.19)

Loss per common share - net

Basic and diluted (1.87) (0.24)
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - basic 31,681,108 23,990,324
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - diluted 31,762,624 24,248,325
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Deficit

Yesar ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

_2003 ____ 2002
RETAINED EARNINGS, BEGINNING OF YEAR § 35909 3 41,786
NET LOSS FOR THE YEAR (59,129) (5,877
{DEFICIT) RETAINED EARNINGS, END OF YEAR $ (23220) § 35909
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow
Year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

2003 2002
NET INFLOW (OUTFLOW) OF CASH RELATED
TO THE FOLLOWING ACTIVITIES
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from continuing operations $ (48,586) § (4,538)
Items not affecting cash
Amortization 16,667 13,508
Goodwill impairment 32,010 -
Amortization of deferred financing costs 461 409
Writedown of assets (Note 20) 2,355 -
Future income taxes (7,679) (869)
Equity loss (Note 5) 32 55
4,740) 8,565
Net change in operating working capital items from continuing operations 8,183 (269)
CASH FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 3,443 8,296
CASH FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 6,155 240
TOTAL CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 9,598 8,536
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Bank indebtedness - net (9,628) 6,371
Issuance of capital stock 45,385 25,145
Proceeds from long-term debt 12,845 55,862
Repayment of long-term debt (44,694)  (23,963)
Cash used in discontinued operations (3,893) (482)
CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 15 62,933
INVESTING ACTIVITIES '
Other assets (606) (101)
Business acquisition (Note 6) - (50,806}
Deferred charges (465) (2,998)
Purchase-of capital assets (8,364) (18,489)
Cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations 560 (1,180)
CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (8,875)  (73,574)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 738 (2,105)
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,140 3,245
CASH, END OF YEAR $ 1878 § 1,140
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paid $ 9745 § 4,689
Income taxes (received) paid $ (486) § 4,344
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

1. OPERATIONS

NQL Drilling Tools Inc. (the Company), through its subsidiaries and effiliates, provides downhole
tools, services, and technology used primarily in drilling applications in the oil and gas,
environmental, and utilities industries on a worldwide basis.

2. CONTINUATION OF THE BUSINESS

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles
applicable to a going concern. The Company has experienced adverse conditions and events which
cast doubt upon the validity of this assumption.

During fiscal 2003, the Company took several steps to improve its liquidity and working capital
position and restore its financial stability as discussed below.

The Company completed a $10,000 Liquidity Note Financing (“Liquidity Note™) from CanFund
VE Investors II, L.P. (“CanFund™), which was funded on July 31, 2003. The proceeds from the
Liquidity Note were used for working capital purposes, including payment of trade creditors. The
amount outstanding at December 31, 2003 of $6,000 ($4,000 was paid on October 17, 2003 from
the funds received on the Rights Offering — see below) was repaid on January 29, 2004 (see
below).

During 2003, the Company completed a Private Placement of common shares and a Rights
Offering, resulting in the issuance of 7,936,600 common shares and 7,100,141 common shares,
respectively. The total net proceeds from these two offerings of approximately $45,200 were used
to repay debt with the remainder used for working capital purposes (Note 15).

Subsequent to year-end, the Company completed a $55,000 debt refinancing package with HSBC
Bank Canada ($35,000) and HSBC Bank USA (U.S. $15,000). This new debt refinancing package
was used to retire existing debt facilities as described in Note 13 and Note 14.

Management believes the financings described above have restored the financial stability of the
Company. However the validity of the going concern assumption is dependent upon the
Company’s ability to restore and maintain profitable operations.

If the going concern assumption were not appropriate for these consolidated financial statements,
then adjustments would be necessary in the carrying values of assets and liabilities, the reported net
earnings, and the balance sheet classifications used.

3. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
Discontinued opet-ations

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted on a prospective basis new CICA Handbook
Section 3475 “Disposal of Long-Lived Assets and Discontinued Operations”. Long-lived assets to
be disposed of by sale are classified as held for sale in the period in which a formal plan of disposal
has been approved, the assets are available for immediate sale and are actively being marketed, and
it is expected that the sale will occur within one year. Long-lived assets to be abandoned are
classified as held and used until they are disposed of.
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" NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

3.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY (continued)
Discontinued operations (continued)

Long-lived assets classified as held for sale are carried at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value net of estimated disposition costs. Losses are recognized immediately where the carrying
value exceeds fair value and gains are recognized at the time of sale.

The results of discontinued operations are reported separately, including gains or losses related to
the disposal of related long-lived assets held for sale or disposal. Future costs associated with an
exit or disposal activity are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared using accounting principles
applicable to a going concern, which assume that the Company will continue operations for a
reasonable period of time and will be able to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of operations (Note 2).

Principles of consolidation

The financial statements of entities which are controlled by the Company, referred to as
subsidiaries, are consolidated. Entities that are not controlled but over which the Company has the
ability to exercise significant influence are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Investments in other entities are accounted for using the cost method.

Use of estimates

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles, which require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the year. Significant estimates include the allowance for doubtful accounts, valuation of
goodwill, future income taxes, valuation of deferred development costs, accrued liabilities,
inventory obsolescence, and useful lives of capital assets. Management believes its estimates to be
appropriate; however, actual results could differ from these estimates.

Foreign exchange transiation

Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
date, Foreign currency revenue and expenses are translated into Canadian dollars at rates of
exchange at the time of such transactions. Foreign operations are considered to be self-sustaining
and are converted from their respective functional currencies to Canadian dollars using the current
rate method. Under this method, assets and liabilities are translated at the year-end exchange rates
and items included in the statements of operations, deficit, and cash flow are translated at weighted
average rates. '
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The U.S. dollar is considered to be the functional currency of the Company’s subsidiaries in
Venezuela, Bolivia, Argentina, and Mexico as most of the activities are conducted in U.S. dollars.
Accordingly, the operations of these subsidiaries are transiated from the local currency into U.S.
dollars using the temporal method, whereby monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
year-end rate of exchange, non-monetary assets and liabilities are transiated at the historical rate of
exchange and items included in the statement of operations are translated at weighted average rates
with resulting exchange gains or losses included in the determination of earnings. The U.S. dollar
financial statements of these subsidiaries are then translated into Canadian dollars using the current
rate method as described above.

The cumulative translation adjustment represents the net unrealized foreign currency loss on the
Company’s net investment in its self-sustaining foreign subsidiaries,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of cash on deposit. Bank indebtedness, consisting of a
revolving operating loan, is not inciuded in cash and cash equivaients for purposes of the statement
of cash flow, as it does not fluctuate frequently from being positive to overdrawn, and is therefore
considered a financing activity.

Inventory

Spare parts and raw materials are valued at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable
value. Inventory for resale and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable
value, where cost includes the cost of raw materials, direct labor, and manufacturing overhead.

Capital assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost and are amortized over their estimated useful lives, beginning
when they are put into use, at the following rates and methods:

Buildings 4% straight-line
Automotive equipment 30% declining balance
Shop equipment 10% to 20% declining balance
Office equipment 20% declining balance
Leasehold improvements Over the term of the lease
Downhole tools ' 10% straight-line and 20% declining balance

The Company evaluates the carrying value of capital assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The Company recognizes
_an impairment charge when it is probable that estimated future non-discounted cash flows of the
underlying assets will be less than the carrying value of the assets.
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Deferred charges

Deferred charges include development costs and technology of downhole tools, pre-operating costs
of new service locations and costs associated with securing new financing. Deferred development
costs and technology of downhole tools are amortized straight-line over five and ten years based on
the estimated economic life of the downhole tool. Pre-operating costs are amortized over three
years on a straight-line basis. Deferred financing costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over
the term of the debt facility,

Intangible assets and goodwill

On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the recommendations of the new CICA Handbook
Section 3062, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Rather than being systematically amortized,
the carrying value of intangible assets with indefinite lives and goodwill will be periodically tested
for impairment. Intangible assets with finite lives (“intangible assets subject to amortization™) will
be annually reviewed in respect of their useful lives. The test is applied to each of the Company’s
reporting units (the reporting units being identified in accordance w1th the criteria in the CICA
Handbook section for intangible assets and goodwill).

In conjunction with the requirements under CICA Handbook Section 3062 the Company is
required to test its goodwill for impairment on an annual basis. Consistent with current industry-
specific valuation methods and recommendations for assessment, the Company used a combination
of the discounted cash flow model and the market comparable approach for determining the fair
value of its reporting units. :

Upon completion of this test on June 30, 2003, the Company has determined that the goodwill of
certain of its reporting units was impaired (Notes 5 and 12).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is generally recognized when the product or service has been provided to the customer.
Specific revenue recognition policies for each of the Company’s operating segments are as follows:

(a) Tools

Revenue from the rental of products is billed immediately and recognized upon invoicing.
Revenue from the sale of products and delivery of services is recognized upon the passage of title
or delivery of services to the customer. Sales of downhole tools are generally accompanied by
service agreements in order to ensure proper servicing and repair of these tools. Revenue from
service agreements is billed and recognized after the service and repair has been completed.

(b) Bits

Revenue is recorded in the periods that the product is delivered for bits sold. Rental bit revenue is
recorded on determination of the amount to be invoiced.
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

4.  ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
(c) Fishing

Revenue is earned on a daily basis through the provision of services to the customer and
recognized accordingly. ‘

Income taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the liability method of income tax allocation. Under the
liability method, income tax assets and liabilities are recorded to recognize future income tax
inflows and outflows arising from the settlement or recovery of assets and liabilities at their
carrying value. :

Income tax assets are also recognized for the benefits from tax losses and deductions that cannot be
identified with particular assets or liabilities, provided these benefits are more likely than not to be
realized. Future income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the tax laws and rates
that are anticipated to apply in the period of realization.

Stock-based compensation

The Company has a stock-based compensation plan, which is described in Note 15. No
compensation expense is recognized for this plan when stock options are issued. Any
consideration paid by option or warrant holders for the purchase of stock is credited to capital
stock. If plan entitlements are repurchased from the holder, the consideration paid is charged to
retained earnings. '

On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the new CICA Handbook Section 3870 with respect to
the accounting and disclosure of stock-based compensation, which recommends that awards to
employees be valued using a fair value method of accounting. These new rules also require that
companies account for awards to be settled in cash or other assets, by measuring compensation
expense on an ongoing basis, as the amount by which the quoted market price exceeds the exercise
price at each measurement date.

As permitted under Section 3870, the Company has elected to account for stock options by
measuring compensation expense as the excess, if any, of the quoted market value of the stock at
the date of grant over the exercise price.

Under Section 3870, companies that elect a method other than the fair value method of accounting

" are required to disclose pro forma net income and eamnings per share information, using a pricing
model such as the Black-Scholes model, as if the fair value method of accounting had been used.
These new rules do not apply to pre-existing awards except for those awards that call for settiement
in cash or other assets. '
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

4. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Stock-based compensation (continued)

In September 2003, the CICA revised Section 3870 of the CICA Handbook to require that effective
January 1, 2004 the fair value method of accounting for stock options be recognized in the financial

* statements. The Company intends to apply these provisions retroactively without restatement of
the prior year commencing January 1, 2004. The cumulative compensation cost of options to
acquire common shares of the Company issued since January 1, 2002, using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model, will be charged to deficit with a corresponding increase to contributed
surplus at January 1, 2004.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred and significant project development costs are capitalized
as deferred charges in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, once
the Company has determined that commercialization criteria concerning the product or process
have been met. These projects relate primarily to the development of new downhole tools or
improvements to existing downhole tools. Amortization of these costs over the useful life
commences with the successful commercial production or use of the product or process. On an
ongoing basis, management reviews the unamortized balance to ensure that the deferred
development costs continue to satisfy the criteria for deferral and amortization.

Government assistance

The Company receives government assistance in the form of investment tax credits. Investment
tax credits toward research and development expenditures, related to capital assets used for
research and development, are credited against the cost of the related capital assets and all other
assistance is credited against the related expenses as incurred.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per common share is calculated using the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earings per common share is calculated on the basis
of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period plus the
additional common shares that would have been outstanding if potentially dilutive common shares
had been issued using the treasury stock method.

Employee future benefits

The Company accounts for-employee future benefits in accordance with CICA Handbook Section
3461, which requires that all employee future benefits be accounted for on an accrual basis.
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Discontinued operations

On February 5, 2004, the Company sold substantially all of the assets and liabilities related to
Ackerman International Corp. for total cash proceeds of U.S. $1,425. The effective date of the sale
is January 1, 2004. Accordingly, the results of these operations have been accounted for on a
discontinued basis and the related net assets classified as held for sale. In accordance with CICA
3475, the Company has determined that the net proceeds are less than the net book value of the net
assets sold as at December 31, 2003 and has adjusted the carrying values accordingly. This loss on
sale is included in discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2003. Current and
prior year’s operating results, cash flows and balance sheet for this business are presented
separately as discontinued operations in these consolidated financial statements.

On December 19, 2003, a formal plan to dispose of the Company’s Bolivian operations was
approved by the Board of Directors. The assets of these operations are available for immediate sale
and are actively being marketed. It is expected that a sale will occur within one year.
Accordingly, the results of operations, including the loss on the write-down of assets to fair value
(net of estimated disposition costs) have been accounted for on a discontinued basis and the related
net assets classified as held for sale. Current and prior year’s operating results, cash flows and
balance sheet for these operations are presented separately as discontinued operations in these
consolidated financial statements.

Assets held for sale

On December 19, 2003, the Board of Directors of the Company approved formal plans to dispose
of the Company’s EM MWD wireless guidance assets and related technology (EM), and certain of
the Company’s research and development equipment (test rig). These assets are available for
immediate sale and are actively being marketed. It is expected that a sale will occur within one
year. These assets have been written down by $1,116 to fair value net of estimated disposition.
costs. For reporting purposes, these assets have been presented separately as assets held for sale.
Accordingly, the prior year’s balance sheet has been reclassified to reflect this change.

The Company is currently involved in negotiations to sell its 20% investment in RTI, LLC. and
related RTI assets. These assets have been written down by $290 to fair value net of estimated
disposition costs. For reporting purposes, these assets have been presented separately as assets held
forsale. Accordingly, the prior year’s balance sheet has been reclassified to reflect this change.

Page 11 of 34



NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

~ Amounts included in the consolidated balance sheets relating to discontinued operations and the
assets held for sale are as follows:

2003 2002
Ackerman - Bolivia Total Ackerman Bolivia Total
Current assets held for sale
Discontinued operations . -
Cash $ 454 § 153 § 607 $ 134 § 415 § 549
Accounts receivable 666 232 898 816 137 953
Inventory 462 748 1,210 6,690 1,855 8,545
Prepaids 5 36 41 144 1,350 1,494
Capital assets 421 - 421 . 3,166 - 3,166
Goodwill (1) - - - 4,726 - 4,726
2,008 1,169 3,177 15,676 3,757 19,433
Assets held for sale
EM inventory 2,114 4,139
RTI inventory 425 . 487
' 2,539 4,626
Current assets held for sale $ 5716 $ 24,059
Long-term assets held for sale
Discontinued operations
Capital assets s - $ 1,857 § 1,857 3 - $ 3986 % 3,986
Goodwill . - - - - 59 59
Deferred charges - - - - 82 82
- 1,887 1,857 - 4,127 4,127
Assets held for sale ,
Capital assets - EM 9,216 10,995
Deferred charges - EM (2) 362 3,149
Research and development equipment (test rig) 800 1,119
Other assets (3) 287 403
10,665 15,666
Long-term assets held for sale $ 12,522 $ 19,793
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

~ (thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

2003 : 2002
Ackerman Bolivia Total Ackerman Bolivia Total

Current liabilities held for sale

Discontinued Operations
Accounts payable and accrued liabilites $ 219 § 112 § 331 $ 472 § 100 § 572
Bank indebtedness 431 - 431 4,185 - 4,185
Current portion of long-term debt - - - 120 46 166

$ 650 8§ 112 § 762 $ 4777 $ 146 8 4,923

Long-term liabilities held for sale
Discontinued Operations
Long-term debt s - $ 4§ 47 s - $§ 61 § 61

1)

@

€))

In conjunction with the Company’s annual impairment test of goodwill, it was determined
that $4,039 of goodwill arising from the July 1, 2000 acquisition of Ackerman International
Corp. was impaired. The circumstances that contributed to this goodwill impairment
included a slowdown in the utility industry and a general decline in Ackerman’s business
activity.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company determined that $2,200 of deferred
charges, relating to development and patent costs associated with EM MWD wrireless
guidance systems, were impaired. The Company gained access to this technology through its
May 15, 2001 acquisition of Northstar Drilling Systems Inc. The circumstances that
contributed to this impairment include a stowdown in the utility industry, lower margins than
anticipated, and lower than projected business activity due to slower customer product
acceptance resulting in lower sales growth forecasts. This non-cash charge has been charged
to amortization expense.

Other assets include the Company’s 20% investment in RTI, LLC (RTI), 2 company formed
to develop technology related to a new downhole tool. This investment is accounted for
using the equity method of accounting. For the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company
recorded an equity loss from this investment of $32 (2002 - $55), which, due to the
insignificance of the amount, has been included in revenue on the consolidated statement of
operations. During the year, the Company incurred license fees of $87 (2002 - $201) to RTL
At December 31, 2003, the carrying value of the investment and the book value of the
investee’s net assets are not materially different.
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

Results of discontinued operations are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2003 Year ended December 31, 2002

Ackerman Bolivia  Total Ackerman Bolivia  Total

Revenue § 9332 § 1369 $ 10,701 '$ 6321 $ 1,16 § 7477
Loss before goodwill

impairment (net of income taxes) , $§ 66735 23 8 93 $ 255 § 1,084 $ 1339
Goodwill impairmert 4,039 20 4259 - - -

Loss on write-down of assets to fair

value, less cost to sell (net of income taxes) 2,502 2,852 5354 - - -

Loss from discontinued operations $ 7208 § 3335 § 10,5403 $ 255 % 1,084 § 1,339

6.  BUSINESS ACQUISITION

On August 29, 2002, the Company acc;]uired all the outstanding shares of Houston, Texas-based

Diamond Products International, Inc. (DPI), a leading polycrystalline diamond compact (PDC) drill
bit design and manufacturing business.

The acquisition was accounted for by the purchase method of accounting and includes results of
operations from the date of acquisition. The total cost of the purchase was $52,847, consisting of
share consideration of 126,467 common shares with a value of $1,159, warrants consideration of
121,535 warrants with a net value of $808, and cash of $50,880. The value per share used to
calculate the share and warrant consideration was $9.168. This price was the weighted average
trading price per share for the ten-day period prior to the announcement date.
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

6. BUSINESS ACQUISITION (continued)

The fair value ascribed to the net assets acquired was as follows:

Current assets (including $74 of cash) $ 18,124
Capital assets 4,099
Deferred charges 5,685
Current liabilities (6,001)
Bank indebtedness (2,472)
Long-term debt (3,083)
Future income taxes (2,983)
Total net assets acquired 13,369
Goodwill’ 39,478
Total assets $ 52,847
Purchase price
Common shares and warrants 1,967
Cash (including $1,316 of transaction costs) 50,880
$ 52,847
7. INVENTORY
2003 _ 2002
Raw materials $ 1273 § 275
Work-in-progress 1,734 1,831
Spare parts 20,939 25,789
Inventory for resale 6,817 8,203
$ 30,763 § 36,098
8. OTHER ASSETS
2003 __ 2002
Value added tax s 211 § 1218
Development costs - in progress 551 -
Advances to Newburgh Industries Ltd. - 788
Other : 39 -
801 2,006
Current portion (included in prepaid expenses) 128 1,218
$ 673 § 788

Page 15 of 34



NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 ‘
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

8. OTHER ASSETS (continued)

The Company had made advances to Newburgh Industries Ltd. in exchange for an agreement in

principle to acquire a 20% investment in this company. As a result of changes in circumstances
since 2002, these advances were written off during the year.

9.  CAPITAL ASSETS

2003

Accumulated Net Book
Cost Amortization Value

Downbhole tools $ 74,800 $ 26,223 $ 48,577

Shop equipment 21,870 8,934 12,936
Buildings : 14,014 2,309 11,705
Leasehold improvements 497 256 241
Office equipment : 5,024 3,391 1,633
Automotive equipment 4,455 3,056 1,399
Land 3,064 - 3,064

$ 123,724 § 44,169 % 79,555

2002

Accumulated Net Book
Cost Amortization Value

Downbhole tools $ 86,644 $ 26,246 $ 60,398
Shop equipment ‘ 23,179 7,295 15,884
Buildings 14,315 2,056 12,259
Leasehold improvements 516 168 348
Office equipment 4,489 2,410 2,079
Automotive equipment 3,759 2,622 1,137
Land 3,391 - 3,391

$ 136,293 $ 40,797 & 95,496

Amortization of capital assets for the year amounted to $12,557 (2002 - $12,846).
A significant portion of the downhole tool assets are subject to operating leases of a short-term

nature offered to customers, resulting in lease revenue equal to approximately 44% (2002 - 40%) of
the total downhole tools revenue indicated in Note 25,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

- (thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

10. DEFERRED CHARGES

2003

Accumulated Net Book
Cost Amortization Value

Development costs and

technology of downhole tools $ 7,365 $ 2429 $ 4936
Pre-operating costs 104 104 -
Other 1,586 1,300 286

$ 9,055 $ 3,833 $ 5222

2002
Accumulated Net Book
Cost Amortization Value

Development costs and

technology of downhole tools $ 8023 $ 1339 $ 6,684
Pre-operating costs 104 - 104
Other 1,586 600 986

§ 9,713 $ 1,939 § 7,774

Amortization of deferred charges for the year amounted to $2,371 (2002 - $1,071), of which $461
(2002 - $409), related to deferred costs of obtaining debt financing, has been charged to interest
expense. Included in total amortization was $1,204 (2002 - $672) related to development costs and
technology of downhole tools.

Development costs and technology of downhole tools deferred during the year amounted to $458.
Development and costs and technology of downhole tools deferred during the year ended
December 31, 2002 amounted to $7,475, of which $5,685 was purchased in conjunction with the
Diamond Products International, Inc. acquisition (Note 6).

Research costs of $12 (2002 - $15) were expensed during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

11. INCOME TAXES

The following is a reconciliation of income taxes, calculated at the Canadian combined federal and
provincial income tax rate of approximately 36% (2002 - 39.25%), to the income tax provision
included in the consolidated statement of operations.

2003 2002
Recovery of income taxes based on statutory tax rates , $ 8571 § 3,039
Increase (decrease) related to:
Large corporations tax (200) )
Manufacturing and processing deduction - (324)
Non-deductible items (330) (435)
Foreign tax rate differential 279 (411)
Other (304) 1,321
- Change in future income taxes resuiting from
tax rate reduction (232) 85
$ 7,231 § 3,204
Current income tax recovery (expense) ‘ $ (448) $ 2,335
Future income tax recovery 7,679 869

$ 7231 § 3,204

Future income taxes are recognized for consequences attributed to estimated differences between
the financial statement carrying value of existing assets and liabilities and their respective income
tax bases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements .

Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

11.

12.

INCOME TAXES (continued)

Future income taxes are comprised of:

Future income tax assets
Tax benefits on loss carry forwards and tax credits
Reserves and contingencies
Share issuance costs
Other
Less valuation allowance

2003 2002

———ee

$ 14618 3 4412

2,343 3,857
988 634
630 390

(3,476) (3,897)

Future income tax assets

15,103 5,396

Future income tax liabilities
Capital, intangible, and other assets
QOther

(10345)  (10,487)
(440) en,

Future income tax liabilities

(10,785)  (10,584)

Future income tax assets (liabilities) - net

$ 4318 § (5,188)

Classified as:
Current asset
Long-term asset
Long-term liability

$ - $ 1,462
7,571 3,934
(3,253)  (10,584)

Future income tax assets (liabilities) - net

$ 4318 § (5,188)

For income tax purposes, the Company had non-capital loss carry forwards relating to operations in
various jurisdictions of approximately $36,405 (2002 - $13,825), which are available to offset
income to specific entities of the consolidated group in future periods. The non-capital loss carry
forwards expire at various times to the end of 2023. Of the non-capital losses carry forwards,
$26,910 (2002 - $4,245) has been recognized in these consolidated financial statements.

GOODWILL

Balance, beginning of year

2003 2002

$ 73,018 $ 32,954

Business acquisitions (Note 6) - 39,478
Goodwill impairment (32,010) -
Foreign exchange (6,618) 586

Balance, end of year

$ 34390 § 73,018
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Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
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12,

GOODWILL (continued)

In conjunction with the requirements under CICA Handbook Section 3062 the Company tests its
goodwill for impairment on an annual basis. Consistent with current industry-specific valuation
methods and recommendations for assessment from CICA Handbook Section 3062, the Company
used a combination of the discounted cash flow model and the market comparable approach to
arrive at the fair value of these reporting units.

Upon. completion of this test as at June 30, 2003, the Company determined that the goodwill of
certain of its businesses was impaired. These-non-cash goodwill impairments were as follows:

2003 2002
Northstar Drilling Systems Inc. (a) $ 19310 § -
Diamond Products International, Inc. (b) 12,700 -
Totglgoodwill impairment $ 32010 § -

(a) The circumstances that contributed to an impairment of the goodwill arising from the May
15, 2001 acquisition of Northstar Drilling Systems Inc. include a slowdown in the utility
industry, lower margins than anticipated, and lower than projected business activity due to
slower customer product acceptance resulting in lower sales growth forecasts,

(b) The circumstances that contributed to a partial impairment of the goodwill arising from the

August 29, 2002 acquisition of DPI, Inc. relate to a slowdown in U.S. deep water driliing,
political unrest in Nigeria and Venezuela and increased competition.
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13.

BANK INDEBTEDNESS

At December 31, 2003, bank indebtedness consisted of four revolving, operating loans secured by
accounts receivable, inventory, and general security agreements. The revoiving, operating loans,
restricted to specific margin requirements, were limited to a maximum amount of $30,000, U.S.
$3,000, U.S. $333, and Euros 316, and bore interest at prime plus 1.0%, prime, prime plus 0.75%,
and prime plus 1.5%, respectively. Interest expense from continuing operations on bank
indebtedness during the year is $2,094 (2002 - $1,477). Total interest expense on bank
indebtedness during the year is $2,191 (2002 -$1,706). The total bank indebtedness, at December
31, 2003, denominated in U.S. dollars is U.S. $2,243 (2002 — U.S. $4,295). The total bank
indebtedness, at December 31, 2003, denominated in Euros is Euros 212 (2002 - Euros 229).

On January 29, 2004, the Company completed a $55,000 debt financing package, which includes a
$20,000 (maximum limit) revolving operating facility with HSBC Bank Canada (Note 14),
restricted to specific margin requirements. Part of the proceeds from this new debt was used to
repay the operating loans described above with the exception of the Euro facility. The new
operating facility, secured by accounts receivable, inventory and a general security agreement, is
due on demand and bears interest at prime plus 1%. ’

As a portion of the bank indebtedness has been repaid from the proceeds of new, long-term
financing facilities completed subsequent to December 31, 2003, that portion has been excluded
from current liabilities as follows:

2003 2002

Total bank indebtedness - -8 24,131 § 33,759
Less amount included in long-term debt (Note 14) 11,852 -
Current portion of bank indebtedness $ 12,579 § 133,759

The Company’s bank indebtedness as at January 29, 2004 consists of the Euro facility (maximum
Euros 316) and the HSBC Bank Canada operating facility (maximum $20,000).
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14.

LONG-TERM DEBT

Capital loan, bearing interest at prime plus 1.0% and secured
by a general security agreement providing first charge on all

assets of the Company and its subsidiaries

Bank indebtedness (Note 13)
Liquidity Note, bearing interest at 24%

and secured by a second charge on the assets of the Company

as well as guarantees from certain subsidiaries

Bridge Loan, bearing interest at prime plus 1% and secured by a
general security agreement providing first charge on all assets

of the Company and subsidiaries

2003

2002

$12,000
11,552

6,000

3,426

$ 16,000

34,600

Total debt repaid January 29, 2004 (see below)

Mortgage, payable in monthly payments of U.S. $13 beginning
April 30, 2003, matures on February 29, 2008, bearing
interest at 6.5%, and secured by a first charge on the subject

real estate with a net book value of $1,903

Promissory note, payable in monthly payments of U.S. $11
secured by assets in the Company's Mexican subsidiary

Instaiment sale agreement, payable in monthly payments of
U.S. $4, maturing on July 31, 2011, bearing interest at 5%, and
secured by the subject real estate with a net book value of $512

Vehicle loans and leases payabl, interest rates varying from
nil to 15%, due on dates rangng from January 2004 to
February 2006, and secured by specific assets with a net

book value of $160

32,978

1,461

3N

346

93

Subofdinated debt (U.S. $1,984), repaid December 2003, bearing interest at

10% and unsecured by agreement with certain former shareholders

of DPI, Inc.

Loan agreement, payable in monthly payments of U.S. $25

‘beginning January 15, 2003, due December 15, 2003,

bearing interest at U.S. bank prime plus 2%, and unsecured

Promissory note, repaid during the year, bearing interest at 8%

and unsecured

Other

214

50,600

1,124

467

22

3,129

477

394
400

Less current portion

35,463
11,602

56,813
54,760

$23,861

§ 2053
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14.

LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

The total long-term debt at December 31, 2003, denominated in U.S. dollars, is U.S. $1,761 (2002 -
U.S. $3,757).

Interest from continuing operations on long-term debt during the year amounted to $4,131 (2002 -
£2,345). Total interest on long-term debt during the year amounted to $4,135 (2002 - $2,352).

On January 29, 2004, the Company completed a new debt refinancing package with HSBC Bank
Canada and HSBC Bank USA. Under the terms of this new agreement, HSBC Bank Canada
provided a $15,000 term loan (“Canadian Term Loan™) and a $20,000 (maximum limit) operating
loan (Note 13). The Canadian Term Loan, payable in quarterly principal payments of $1,250
beginning April 30, 2004 and due January 31, 2007, bears interest at prime plus 1.25% and is
secured by a general security agreement providing a first charge on all assets of the Company and
its Canadian and U.S. subsidiaries. As well, HSBC Bank USA provided a U.S. $7,500 refinancing
loan (“U.S. Refinancing Loan™) and a U.S. $7,500 term loan (“U.S. Term Loan”). The U.S.
Refinancing Loan, payable in quarterly principal payments of U.S. $625 beginning April 30, 2004
and due January 31, 2007, bears interest at U.S. prime plus 1.25% and is secured by a general
security agreement providing a first charge on all assets of the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries. The
U.S. Term Loan, payable in full on July 31, 2005 except U.S. $3,750, which is due October 31,
2004, bears interest at U.S. prime plus 1.25% and is secured by a general security agrrement
providing a first charge on all assets of the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries.

Total proceeds of the January 29, 2004 long-term debt financings were used to retire certain
existing obligations as follows:

Proceeds

Canadian Term Loan $ 15,000

U.S. Refinancing Loan (U.S. $7,500) 9,915

U.S. Term Loan (U.S. $7,500) 9,915
$ 34,830

Repayments

Capital Loan $ 12,000

Bank indebtedness (Note 13) 11,552

Liguidity Note . 6,000

Bridge Loan 3,426

Repayments of debt existing at '

December 31, 2003 32,978

Bank indebtedness arising in intervening .

period (January 1, 2004 to January 29, 2004) : 1,618

Financing costs paid from proceeds 234
$ 34,830
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14, LONG-TERM DEBT (continued)

The aggregate principal repayments required to meet the fong-term debt obligations in each of the
next five years, after giving effect to the refinancings described above, are as follows:

2004 $ 11,602
2005 i 13,610
2006 8,513
2007 2,267
2008 and thereafter 1,323

15. CAPITAL STOCK

Authorized
Unlimited Class A voting common shares without nominal or par value
Unlimited Class B non-voting comman shares without nominal or par value

Changes in the Company’s common shares outstanding during 2003 and 2002 are as follows:

2003 2002
Issued Number Amount Number Amount
Common Shares
Class A common shares
Balance at beginning of year 27,530,603 § 134,581 23,607,968 § 108,277
Stock options exercised 33,500 157 134,086 412
Warrants exercised - - 212,082 1,091
Private placement (a) 7,936,600 24,129 - -
Rights offering (b) 7,100,141 21,798 - -
Public offering (c) - - 3,450,000 23,642
Issued pursuant to :
acquisition (Note 6) - - 126,467 1,159
Balance at end of year 42,600,844 180,665 27,530,603 134,581
Warrants
Balance at beginning of year 189,535 808 280,082 -
Issued pursuant to
acquisition (Note 6) - - 121,535 808
Expired (10,000) - . -
Exercised (212,082) -
Balance at the end of year 179,535 808 189,535 808
$ 181,473 $ 135,389
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1S.

CAPITAL STOCK (continued)

There are no outstanding Class B common shares.

(a)

(b)

©

In September 2003, the Company completed a private placement of 7,936,600 Class A
common shares at a price of $3.15 per share, resulting in total gross proceeds of $25,000.
Expenses related to the private placement, net of future income taxes of $423, amounted to
$871. Net proceeds to the Company of approximately $23,706 were used to repay $21,500 of
the Bridge Loan with the remaining funds used for working capital purposes.

In October 2003, the Company completed a Rights Offering at an exercise price of $3.15 per
share, resulting in the issuance of 7,100,141 Class A common shares and gross proceeds of
$22,365. Expenses related to the Rights Offering, net of future income taxes of $276,
amounted to $567. Net proceeds to the Company of $21,522 were used to repay $9,674 of
the Bridge Loan and repay $4,000 of the Liquidity Note with the remaining funds used for
working capital purposes.

In December 2002, the Company completed an offering consisting of 3,450,000 Class A
common shares at a price of $7.15 per share, resulting in total gross proceeds of $24,668.

 Expenses related to the share issue, net of future income taxes of $659, amounted to $1,026.

Net proceeds to the Company of $22,983 were used primarily to pay down a portion of the
Bridge Loan used to purchase Diamond Products International, Inc.

Changes in the Company’s share purchase warrants outstanding during 2003 and 2002 are as

follows:
2003 2002
Weighted ’ Weighted
average ‘ average
Number exercise price Number exercise price
Outstanding, beginning of year 189,535 § 3.57 280,082 $ 520
Granted - - 121,535 - 2.57
Expired (10,000) 5.00 - -
Exercised - - (212,082) 5.15
Outstanding, end of year 179,535 $ 3.49 189,535 $ 3.57

At December 31, 2003, all outstanding warrants were completely vested and expire on dates
ranging from February 2004 to December 2011. '
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15.

" CAPITAL STOCK (continued)

Stock-based compensation plan

The Company maintains an Employee, Director, and Consultant Stock Option Pian under which
the Company may grant options for up to 5,400,000 shares of Class A common stock of the
Company at an exercise price equal to the market price of the Company’s stock at the date of grant.
As at December 31, 2003 the maximum number of options available for issue under this Plan is
4,230,201 of which 3,471,165 are outstanding. Options awarded are exercisable for a period of up
to ten years. Typical vesting arrangements provide for partial vesting at the date of grant with the
balance of the options vesting over periods of two to four years,

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plan as at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
and changes during the years ended on those dates is presented below:

2003 2002
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise price Number exercise price

Outstanding, beginning of year 870,829 $ 725 849,515 $ 6.53
Granted 2,912,500 332 173,500 7.80
Exercised (33,500) 4.69 (134,086) - 3.07
Cancelled or expired (278,664) - 7.00 . (18,100) 9.62
Outstanding, end of year 3,471,165 $ 4.00 870,829 $ 7.25

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding as at December 31, ‘
2003: :

Options Outstanding _ ' Options Exercisable
Range of Number Weighted Average  Weighted Number Weighted
Exercise  Outstanding Remaining Average Exercisable Average
Prices Dec. 31,2003 Contractual Life Exercise Price Dec. 31, 2003 Exercise Price
$1-$6 2,922,000 477years 8§ 3.24 632,000 $ 333
$6-%9 480,165 7.15 years 7.55 480,165 7.55
> $9 69,000 4.57 years 11.36 69,000 11.36
$1-813 3,471,165 5.10 years $ 4.00 1,181,165 $ 552
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15.

16.

CAPITAL STOCK (continued)
Pro forma accounting for stock-based compensation

Effective January 1, 2002, the CICA recommends that stock-based compensation be accounted for
using a fair value methodology. As permitted under the new rules, the Company has elected to
measure compensation expense as the difference, if any, between the quoted market value or fair
value of the stock at the date of grant and the exercise price at the date of grant. The exercise price
of options granted by the Company was not less than the market value at the date of grant and,
consequently, no compensation expense has been recorded.

If compensation costs for options for common shares of the Company, issued on or after January 1,
2002, had been determined based on the fair value methodology, using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, the Company’s net loss and loss per share would have been increased to the pro
forma amounts indicated below:

2003 2002
Net loss applicable to common shareholders, as reported $ 59129 §$ 5,877
Pro forma net loss applicable to common sharcholders 61,148 6,525
Net loss per common share, as reported - basic and diluted (1.87) (0.24)
Pro forma net loss per common share - basic and diluted (1.93) 0.27)

The fair value of each option grant by the Company was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model assuming no dividends are paid on common shares, a risk-free interest rate of 4.14%
(2002 - 4.38%), an average life of five years, and a volatility of 57.36% (2002 - 53.14%). The
amounts computed, according to the Black-Scholes pricing model, may not be indicative of the
actual values realized upon the exercise of these options by the holders

CUMULATIVE TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENT

The cumulative translation adjustment represents the net unrealized foreign currency translation
(loss) gain on the Company’s net investment in self-sustaining foreign operations.
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16.

17.

18.

CUMULATIVE TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENT (continued)

The changes in this account are as follows:

2003 2002
Cumulative unrealized gain, beginning of year s 7257 $ 6,053
Unrealized (loss) gain for the year on translation of net investment (26,131) 1,204
Realized loss from reduction in net investment of foreign subsidiaries {520) -
Cumulative unrealized (loss) gain, end of year $ (19394) $ 7,257
U.S. dollar excha%e:rgte, end of year 1.2946 1.5769
Euro exchagg_e rate, end of year 1.6256 1.6531

The change in cumulative translation adjustment is primarily related to the change in the rate of
exchange between the Canadian dollar and the U.S. doller, and the effect this change has on the
assets and liabilities of the Company’s self-sustaining foreign subsidiaries.

GUARANTEES

Effective for the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company adopted the new CICA Accounting
Guideline 14, Disclosure of Guarantees, which recommends companies disclose the nature, amount
and terms of obligations under guarantee or indemnification in the event of an adverse judgment in
a lawsuit. ‘

The Company has agreements in place to indemnify its Directors and Officers for certain events or
occurrences while the Officer or Director is or was serving at the Company’s request in such
capacity. The maximum potential amount of future payments is unlimited. However, the
Company has Director and Officer insurance coverage that limits its exposure and enables the
Company to recover & portion of any future amounts paid.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments

The Company is committed to capital expenditures of $1,035 (2002 - $353) and to future payments
under operating leases and employment contracts as follows:

2004 $ 4,979
2005 3,165
2006 2,090
2007 1,105
2008 543
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18.

19.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Contingencies

a)

b)

A claim for $25,000 and $15,000 each had been made against the Company and two of its
subsidiaries for alleged patent infringement and other patent related matters. Subsequent to
December 31, 2003, the Company settled this litigation. The financial cost of the settlement,
the terms of which are confidential between the parties, are accrued in the December 31,
2003 results.

A claim for U.S. $1,500 has been made against the Company for damages plus costs. It is
not possible, at this time, to determine if any amount will become payable as a result of this
claim. Management is of the view that this claim is wholly without merit.

The Canada Customs and Revenue Agency (“CCRA”) is auditing certain of the Company’s
transfer pricing methodologies for the fiscal years 1996 to 2002. The Company anticipates
that this matter will go before Competent Authority, comprised of representatives of the
CCRA and the Internal Revenue Service of the United States. During 2003, transfer pricing
discussions with CCRA continued. Due to the nature of the matter, the amount of the loss, if
any, cannot be reasonably estimated and therefore no amounts have been accrued in these
consolidated financial statements. Management now estimates the maximum after-tax
charge resulting from the most negative outcome on resolution of this matter could be up to
$7,000. At December 31, 2003, the Company had loss carry forwards available, which
could be used to reduce the cash impact of any assessment by approximately $1,200.

Management will continue to work with its advisors to resolve this issue.

INTEREST EXPENSE

2003 _ 2002

Interest on long-term debt (Note 14) $ 4,131 $ 2,345
Interest on bank indebtedness (Note 13) 2,094 1,477
Other 3,108 1,477

$ 9333 $ 5299
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20..

21.

22.

OTHER EXPENSES
2003 _2002
Write-down of research and development equipment (a) $ 1,117 § -
Write-off of advances to Newburgh Industries Ltd. (b) 805 -
Other 433 -
$ 2355 § -

(a) The research and development equipment consists of a drilling rig used for testing purposes.
This asset has been reclassified to long-term assets of operations held for sale and its carrying
value has been written down to fair value net of estimated disposition costs (Naote 5).

(b) As a result of changes in circumstances since December 31, 2002, the advances made 10
Newburgh Industries Lid. were written off during the third quarter.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company has a defined contribution employee benefit plan covering a significant number of
its employees. Depending on length of employment and plan participation, the Company either
matches 50% or 100% of individual employee contributions to a maximum of fifteen hundred

dollars per year. Employer matching contributions totalled $443 for the year ended December 31,
2003 (2002 - $256).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A former direckor of the Company provided legal services in the amount of $20 during the year
(2002 - $131). Also, a director and officer of the Company is a shareholder of a company that
provided machining services in the amount of $64 during the year (2002 - $49). These transactions

took place at normal commercial rates and terms.

During the year the Company paid interest and financing fees of $823 (2002 - nil) to CanFund VE
Investors II, L.P., a significant sharcholder of the Company.
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23.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments consist of recorded amounts of accounts receivable and other like amounts
that will result in future cash receipts, as well as accounts payable and accrued liabilities,
borrowings, and other like amounts that will result in future cash outlays.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk to the Company’s earnings that arises from fluctuations in interest rates
and the degree of volatility of these rates. The Company does not use derivative instruments to
reduce its exposure to interest rate risk. For 2003, a 1% increase or decrease in interest rates would
have reduced or increased earnings before income taxes by approximately $700.

Credir risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counterparty will fail to perform its obligations. . The
Company is exposed to credit risk from customers. However, the Company has a large number of
customers, dispersed across many different geographical locations internationally, which
minimizes concentration of credit risk. In addition, significant customers include large,
well-established, publicly traded corporations. Concentration of credit risk, with respect to
accounts receivable, is also limited due to the Company’s credit evaluation process. In the normal
course of business, the Company evaluates the financial condition of its customers on a comtinuing
basis and reviews the credit worthiness of all new customers.

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risks as a result of its export to foreign jurisdictions of goods
produced in Canada. These risks are partially covered by purchases of goods and services in the
foreign currency. The Company does not use derivative financial instruments to reduce its
exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. ’

Fair value

The carrying value of the Company’s interest in financial instruments approximates their fair value.
The estimated fair values approximate amounts for which these financial instruments could be
currently exchanged in an arm’s length transaction between willing parties who are under no
compulsion to act. Therefore, fair values are based on estimates, using present value and other
valuation techniques, that are significantly affected by the assumptions used concerning the amount
and timing of estimated future cash flows and discount rates that reflect varying degrees of risk.
Therefore, due to the use of subjective judgment and uncertainties, the aggregate fair value amount
should not be interpreted as being realizable in an immediate settlement of the instruments.

Page 31 of 34



NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
(thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

24.

25.

LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

In calculating earnings per common share under the treasury stock method, the numerator remains
unchanged from the basic earnings per common share calculation, as the assumed exercise of the
Company’s stock options and share purchase warrants does not result in an adjustment to income.
The reconciliation of the denominator in calculating diluted earnings per common share is as
follows: :

2003 2002
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding - basic earnings per common share 31,681,108 23,990,324
Effect of dilutive securities 81,516 258,001
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
- diluted eamiigs per common share 31,762,624 24,248,325

For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the effect of dilutive securities is anti-dilutive.

SEGMENTED INFORMATION

During 2003, the Company restructured its organizational and internal reporting structures in a
manner that caused the composition of its reportable segments to change. The Company now
segments its business activities into three operating segments, Tools, Bits and Fishing.
Comparative figures for 2002 have been adjusted accordingly to reflect the change in reportable
segments.

The Tools Segment comprises the operations of NQL Energy Services Canada Ltd. (Canadian
Black Max and manufacturing operations), NQL Energy Services US, Inc. (U.S. Black Max
operations), P&T Servicios Petroleros C.A. (Venezuelan operations), as well as several other
businesses worldwide. The segment designs, manufactures, services and markets downhole
drilling motors, EM MWD wireless guidance systems, drilling jars, shock subs, and a number of
other downhole tools.

The Bits Segment designs, manufactures, and markets PDC and Natural Diamond Bits on a
worldwide basis, through NQL’s wholly owned subsidiary, DPI, Inc.

The Fishing Segment provides downhole fishing and milling services through the Fishing divisions
of NQL Energy Services Canada Ltd. and NQL Energy Services US, Inc.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in Note 4.
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25. SEGMENTED INFORMATION (continued)

2003
Tools Bits Fishing  Corporate Consolidated
Revenue $ 62248 § 27,003 § 21244 S - $ 110495
Amortization 12,912 1,150 - 1,983 622 16,667
Divisional (loss) income (8,502) 2,718 2,771 (8,293) (11,306)
Goodwill impairment 19,310 12,700 - - 32,010
Total assets (1) 137,517 39,184 24,748 9270 210,719
Capital expenditures 7,686 159 519 - 8,364
Goodwill 2,927 20,757 10,706 - 34,390
2002
Tools Bits Fishing Corporate  Consolidated
Revenue $ 62,784 §$ 12092 § 14348 § - b 29,224
Amortization 10,635 432 1,970 471 13,508
Divisional (loss) income (1,953) 1,855 740 (2,190) (1,548)
Total assets (1) 206,639 67,636 27,375 3,928 305,578
Capital expenditures 17,421 146 922 - 18,489
Goodwill 22,247 40,065 10,706 - 73,018

(1) Corporate assets primarily include income taxes recoverable and future income taxes.
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25. SEGMENTED INFORMATION (continued)

The Company opérates in the following geographical segments. Revenues are attributed to these
geographical segments based on the country from which the product or service originates.

2003 2002
Revenue :
Canada ’ $ 35524 $ 29,461
United States 57,258 32,375
International 17,713 27,388
$ 110495 § 89,224
Capital assets
Canada § 35143 § 42,240
United States 27,879 32,438
International 16,533 20,818
$ 79,555 8§ 95,496
Goodwill . '
Canada $ 13,633 § 32,873
United States 20,757 40,145

$ 34390 § 73,018

26. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.
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regarding their Annual Meeting of Shareholders:
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Common Shares
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DRILLING TOOLS inc.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Jfor the year ended December 31, 2003

The following discussion and analysis of financial results should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes for the year ended December 31, 2003 and is based on information available to April 30,
2004. Additional information including NQL Drilling Tools Inc.’s (the “Company” or “NQL") Annual Information Form is
available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Forward-looking Information

Statements in this Management's Discussion and Analysis relating to matters that are not historical facts are forward-looking
statements. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties which may cause the actual
results, performances or achievements of NQL to be materially different from any future results implied by such forward-looking
statements. Such factors include fluctuations in the market Jor oil and gas related products and services, demand for products
and services in the drilling industry generally, political and economic conditions in countries in which NQL does business, the
ability of NQL to attract and retain key personnel, technological change, the demand for services and products provided by NQL,
and other factors which are described in further detail in NQL s continuous disclosure filings.

Description of Business

NQL Drilling Tools Inc. provxdes downhole tools, technology and services used primarily in drilling applications in the oil and
gas, environmental and utility industries on a worldwide basis.

The Company presents its business activities in four segments, Tools, Bits, Fishing and Corporate.

The Tools Division operates in Canada, the United States and several international locations. This division designs,
manufactures, services, rents and selis downhole drilling motors, EM-MWD wireless guidance systems, drilling jars, shock subs
and a number of other downhole tools and services.

The Bits Division designs, manufactures, and markets polycrystalline diamond compact bits (PDC) and natural diamond bits on a
worldwide basis. The Company’s Tool and Bit Divisions operate under a common marketing umbrella and jointly promote
performance drilling packages that combine a downhole motor with a fit for purpose drilf bit to maximize rate of penewation.

The Fishing Division provides downhole fishing, milling and casing exit services under its CanFish Services product line
primarily in Canada and the United States.

The -Corporate Division -provides support for the other three divisions of the Company and includes such costs as senior
management salaries, insurance, financing costs, professional and legal fees, IT support, human resource support and other public
company related expenses. ’

Overview

Fiscal 2003 was a difficult year for NQL, characterized by a number of factors. The Company experienced a serious liquidity
crisis as a result of its inability to repay certain bridge financing incurred with the acquisition of Diamond Products International,
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Inc. on August 29, 2002. As a result, a réstructuring of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), management and the financial
affairs of the Company was implemented to secure the ongoing viability of the Company. '

During 2003, the Company raised $47 million in gross proceeds of new equity and $10 million of short-term financing to resolve
the liquidity crisis. The Company was also able to refinance the Company and replace its former lenders in early 2004 with a
new $55 million debt facility. With the completion of these transactions, the Company stabilized its financial position and
shifted the focus of the Board and management to operations with a goal of returning NQL to sustained profitability.

Other major developments occurring in 2003 and early 2004 include the following:

e  Subsequent to the completion of a strategic review of all operations by the new Board and management, the Company
undertook a process to sell certain non-core assets and operations which include:

- The sale of Ackerman International, which closed in February 2004 for total proceeds of US$1.4 million.

- The sale of the Company’s 20% interest in RTI, LLC and related inventory, which closed in April 2004 for
total proceeds of US$0.6 million. RTI was an entity that had developed proprietary technology related to
certain casing exiting systems.

- The Company’s Bolivian operations, which are presently being marketed for sale by third party business
advisors.

- The Company’s EM-MWD operations, which are presently being marketed for sale by third party business
advisors. '

- A drilling rig used for testing downhole products, which is presently being marketed for sale by third party
business advisors.

e The merger of the Company's Tool and Bit Divisions under 2 common marketing umbrella was completed in early
2004. This merger is expected to enhance the Company’s ability to offer customers performance drilling systems (a
downhole mud motor paired with a fit-for-purpose bit) and increased mud motor and bit revenue through existing
domestic and international sales personnel. These changes are also expected to strengthen operational management
through the reallocation of human resources.

¢ Development of a preliminary cost rationalization program,'the first steps of which were completed with a general cut
in staffing levels in the first week of January 2004. '

o Consolidated the Company’s legal and tax structure through the merger of several Canadian companies and the two
legal entities in Bolivia. These actions are expected to significantly reduce tax and administrative costs.

o  The initiation of a process to revamp financial systems to provide more timely and meaningful data.

o The settlement of material litigation in which the Company was the defendant, the costs of which were accrued in the
2003 financial statements, The claims against the Company alleged certain patent infringements and other related
matters and sought damages totaling $40 million. The terms of settlerment are confidential between the parties.

e The completion of an internal review of the financial records of the Company to ensure these records reflected the
changing circumstances of NQL and the industry in which it operates. As a result, several charges to earnings were
required during 2003, which will be reviewed in more detail later in this report.



In addition to the developments discussed above, in early 2004 the Board formed a Special Committee to consider various
options that may be available to the Company to enhance shareholder value. The Special Committee (comprised of R. Tim
Swinton, Bruce R. Libin and Thomas R. Bates, Jr.) retained Simmons & Company International, a Houston based investment
banking firm specializing in the energy industry, to assist the Board in considering and evaluating strategic alternatives.

Fourth Quarter and Year-to-Date Adjustments

During the fourth quarter and full year of 2003, the Company incurred various charges related to: a) the restructuring of the
Company; b) the financial difficulties of the Company during 2003; c¢) the write-down of various non-core assets and
discontinued operations to net realizable value in anticipation of sale; @) the write-down of goodwill and deferred charges
resulting from its annual impairment test; and e) various charges associated with changing circumstances and the passage of time.
Within this report, these items are referred to as “Specific Charges”. :

The following two tables set forth a summary of the Specific Charges recorded during the fourth quarter and full year 2003 and
the overall impact of the Specific Charges on the individual line items of the Company’s income statement. Given the number
and magnitude of the Specific Charges, management believes the tables below will assist shareholders in better understanding the
results of operations for the Company. Management has also prepared this information for internal use to better understand the
cost structure and profitability of its various operations excluding the Specific Charges. The tables below are not a substitute for
the consolidated financial statements of the Company that have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP”). The following tables have no standardized meaning under GAAP and may not provide
information that is comparable to other companies. Management does not represent that the Specific Charges have not
previously been incurred over the past two years or will not be incurred again during the next two years. Management has made
no attempt to identify charges in 2002 (if any) that would be similar to the Specific Charges identified for 2003.

(all amounts in C3000s) Fourth Quarter 2003 Full Year 2003
Goodwill write-offs - ' 5 - $32,010
Discontinued Operations of Ackerman and Bolivia including charges to 5,513 10,543
write-down assets to reaiizable value, net of tax

interest and costs related to Company's financial difficulties ‘ . 39 5,280
Write-off of deferred costs ' - 2712
Severance and contract settiements 1,342 2,341
Inventory adjustments . €50 1,727
Doubtful North American accounts receivable 539 1,413
Write-down of test rig to realizable value , 1,117 1,117
Doubtful international accounts receivable 250 . 1,110
Wirite-off of advances to foreign downhole tool company - 805
‘Legal and operational restructuring costs 378 378
Write-down of minor product line to realizable value ’ 290 2980
Other i . . 793
Total Specific Charges . ) 10,475 60,529
Tax effact of the above . ___LEE_B_ _ 6527
Impact on net income of Specific Charges 5 8637 £ 54002




For the 3 Manths Ended 12/31/03

(Thousands of Canadian Doltars)

For the Year Ended 12/31/03

As Specific {except share end per share data) As Specific
Reported " Charges © Reported Charges ®
(a) (p) {a) - (b} (a) o) {a) - (b)
$ 26,123 8 - $ 26,123 Revenue $ 110495 $ 146 $ 110641
16,368 (940) 15,428 Direct expenses 60,961 (2,045) 58,816
8,755 840 10,685 Gross margin 48,534 2,191 51,725
11,968 (2,509) 9,460 General and administrative 44173 {7,688) 36,485
(2.214) 3,449 1,235 EBITDA ® 5,361 9,878 15,240
3,440 - 3,440 Amortization 16,667 (2,712) 13,955
(5,654) 3,449 (2,205) Divisional {loss) income (11,308) 12,591 1,285
1,540 (396) 1,144 Interest 9,333 (3.241) 6,082
1,041 (1,117) (78) Othervexpenses 2,355 (2,144) 211
{1,278) - (1.278) Foreign exchange (gain) loss 813 - 813
5,513 {5,513) - Discontinued operations 10,543 (10,543) -
- . - Goodwill impairment 32,010 (32,010) -
6,816 (7,026) (210) 56,054 (47.938) 7,116
(12,470) 10,475 (1,995) (Loss) income before income taxes (66,360) 60,528 (5,831)
{1,059) 1,838 779 Income tax (recovery) expense (7,231) 6,527 704
$(11411) © § 88637 $ (2774) Net (loss) income $ (59,129) $ 54,002 3  (5127)
$  (0.27) $ 0.21 $ (0.06) Net (loss) eamings per share — basic and diluted $ (1.87) $ 1.71 $ (0.18)
41,520,388 41,520,388 41,520,388 Weighted ai/erage common shares outstanding 31,681,108 31,681,108 31,681,108

(1) as reported and in accordance with GAAP

(2) as shown in the table above and described more fully in the accompanying report

(3) earnings before interest, income taxes, amortization, other expenses, foreign exchange, discontinued operations and goodwill impairment. The
Company considers EBITDA to be a useful financial measure. Although it is not a GAAP measure, EBITDA is also a financial measure commonly

used in the financial community.
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Overall Performance

Revenues

For the year ended December 31, 2003, NQL recorded revenue of $110.5 million. This represents an increase of $21.3 million
(24%) over the $89.2 million recorded in 2002. N
The increase in revenue resulted from strong results in the Company’s Fishing Division combined with a full year's results from
the Company’s Bits Division (acquired August 29, 2002). The increase in the Fishing Division can be attributed to the strong
Canadian drilling activity during 2003, as well as its expansion into the US.

Expenses and Margins

Direct expenses for 2003 were approximately $61.0 million compared to $49.3 million in 2002. This increase primarily relates to
higher revenue and $2.0 million in Specific Charges referred to above. These charges mostly relate to inventory valuation and
obsolescence allowances booked during the year in conjunction with a comprehensive review conducted by management.
Overall gross margins remained flat year-over-year at 45%. However, excluding the impact of the $2.0 million in Specific
Charges recorded during the year, margins improved to 47%. The increase in margin is primarily related to higher overall
proportion of Bits Division revenue that attracts a higher-margin. In addition, general improvements in market conditions and
higher revenue spread over a fixed cost base also were contributing factors.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses for the year increased $16.3 million when compared to 2002. A large part of the increase
relates to $7.7 million in Specific Charges recorded during the year. These Specific Charges include $2.3 million in bad debt
provisions. The recording of bad debt provisions was necessitated by changing circumstances related to a large sale of milling
equipment into Nigeria, the anticipated impact on certain of the Company’s customers in Venezuela due to the economic crisis in
that country, a large Canadian bad debt provision related to a single customer who began to experience financial difficulties and
provisions required on certain amounts due from higher risk customers in the US. The Company has taken steps to strengthen its
credit policies to help prevent this situation from arising in the future. In addition to the bad debt provisions, the Company

-incurred $2.0 million in consulting and professional fees related to complying with the forbearance agreement negotiated with the

Company’s former lenders, $2.3 million associated with severance costs and settling certain employment agreements, and $0.4
million in costs associated with the tax, legal and operational restructuring of the Company.

The increase in general and administrative expenses also relates to the inclusion of DPI for the full year, which added a further
$6.6 million in costs to 2003 compared to 2002. The remaining increase primarily relates to higher costs in the Fishing Division
related to higher activity levels and the establishment of fishing operations in the US during 2003,

Amortization

Amortization expense for year ended December 31, 2003 was $16.7 million compared to $13.5 million in the prior year. The
increase is primarily related to $2.7 in Specific Charges incurred during the year. These Specific Charges include $2.2 million to
reflect an impairment of certain deferred costs associated with the Company’s EM-MWD guidance system. The remaining $0.5
million relates to the write-off of other deferred charges, where the value was determined by management to be impaired.

The remaining increase in amortization relates to the inclusion of DPI for a full year as compared to only four months in 2002.



Interest

Interest expense for the year increased significantly when compared to- 2002 (39.3 million éompared to $5.3 million). This
increase primarily relates to $3.2 million in Specific Charges incurred during the year related to additional interest and fees paid
to the Company's former lenders as a result of the financial difficulties of the Company. The remaining increase is primarily
related to higher average debt levels associated with the purchase of DPI in August of 2002.

Other Expenses

During 2003, NQL recorded $2.4 million in other expenses. These expenses include a $1.1 million write-down of the

Company’s drilling rig used for testing purposes to net realizable value. This drilling rig is presently being marketed for sale.

Also included in other expenses is a $0.8 million write-down in advances to a third party foreign entity. These advances had

. been made in connection with the development of a specialized downhole tool, in exchange for which NQL was to receive a 20% '
ownership interest in the Company. During 2003, management determined that changing circumstances related to the ownership

of the foreign company and NQL’s unwillingness to continue financing the development of the tool resulted in a permanent

impairment in the value of these advances. As a result, management determined that a write-off of the full amount of these

advances was necessary.

Goodwill Impairment

In conjunction with the requirements under CICA Handbook Section 3062, the Company is required to annually test its goodwill
for impairment. Upon completion of its annual impairment test, the Company determined that a non-cash provision of $36.0
million of goodwill, relating to certain of its businesses, was required. These businesses include Northstar Drilling Systems Inc.
($19.3 million), Diamond Products International, Inc. ($12.7 million) and Ackerman International Corp. ($4.0 miilion). The
goodwill impairment related to Ackerman International Corp. is included in the discontinued operations line on the consolidated
statement of operations, as a decision was made to dispose of this business (sold February 2004 — see below). Therefore, the
goodwill impairment from continuing operations was $32.0 million. ‘ '

The circumstances that contribuied 1o an impairment of the goodwill arising from the May 15, 2001 acquisition of Northstar
Drilling Systems Inc. include a slowdown in the utility industry, lower margins than anticipated, and lower than projected
business activity due to slower than anticipated customer product acceptance.

The circumstances that contributed to a partial impairment of the goodwill arising from the August 29, 2002 acquisition of
Diamond Preducts International, Inc. relate to a slowdown in US deep water drilling, political unrest in Nigeria and Venezuela
and enhanced competition.

The circumstances that contributed to an impairment of the goodwill arising from the July 1, 2000 acquisition of Ackerman
International Corp. include a slowdown in the utility industry and a general decline in Ackerman’s business activity.

Discontinued Operations

‘During the fourth quarter of 2003, management and the Board conducted an internal analysis of all aspects of the Company and
concluded that certain of its assets and operations were no longer central to the longer-term strategy of the Company. As a result,
NQL has recorded the following in the discontinued operations line of the consolidated statement of operations: a) the net impact
of the operating results of the discontinued operations; and b) the after-tax impact of writing down the assets of the discontinued
operations to their expected net realizable value.



Discontinued operations include the Ackerman business that the Company sold in February 2004, and the Bolivian operations of
the Tools Division. The Company has engaged an investment advisor to assist with the disposal of the Company’s remaining
manufacturing assets in Bolivia.

The loss from discontinued operations for the year was $10.5 million (2002 - $1.3 million). Included in the 2003 loss from
discontinued operations are losses from goodWilI impairments of approximately $4.2 million (Ackerman - $4.0 million; Bolivia -
$0.2 million), $5.4 million in after-tax losses related to writing down the assets to expected net realizable value (Ackerman - $2.5
million; Bolivia - $2.9 million), and $0.90 million related to the loss from operations in Bolivia and Ackerman, net of income
taxes. Further details regarding discontinued operations can be found in Note 5 to the 2003 consolidated financial statements.

Net Loss and Loss per share

Overall, the net loss for 2003 was $59.1 million ($1.87/share) compared to $5.9 million ($0.24/share) in 2002. The net loss from

" continuing operations was $48.6 million ($1.53/share) for 2003 compared to the 2002 loss from continuing operations of $4.5
million ($0.19/share). After removing the effect of the Specific Charges of $54.0 million, the net loss for 2003 would have been
$5.1 million compared to the $4.5 million loss in 2002.

After removing the effect of Specific Charges, the additional factors contributing to a larger loss in 2003 compared to 2002,
despite higher revenue levels, relate to increased interest expense incurred during the year resulting from higher average debt
levels and a lower overall effective income tax recovery rate compared to the prior year (2003 — 30%; 2002 - 41%). Further
details regarding income taxes can be found in Note 11 to the 2003 consolidated financial statements.

The recapitalization of NQL has introduced a significant increase in the number of common shares issued and outstanding which -
will have an impact on future per share amounts.

Selected Annual Information

The following table sets forth certain financial information for the Company for 2001 to'2003:

(in thousands of Canadian doliars, excep! per share and share data)™ Year Endad Year Ended Year Ended .
’ Dec. 31, 2003 Dec. 31, 2002 Dec. 31, 2001
REVENUE ) $110,485 $89,224 $112,207
(LOSS) INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS ) $(48,586) $ (4,538) $ 14,734
- PER COMMON SHARE - BASIC $(1.53) $(0.19) $0.67
- PER COMMON SHARE - DILUTED $ (1.53) $(0.19) $0.66
NET (LOSS) INCOME $(59,129) $ (5,877) $ 13,520
- PER COMMON SHARE - BASIC $(1.87) $(0.24) $0.61
- PER COMMON SHARE - DILUTED $(1.87) $(0.24) $0.60
TOTAL ASSETS ’ $210,718 $305,578 $236,779
TOTAL LONG TERM FINANCIAL LIABILITIES $23,808 $2,114 $17,320

DIVIDENDS DECLARED . . -

AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING - BASIC 31,681,108 23,990,324 22,113,584
AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING - DILUTED 31,762,624 T 24,248,325 22,448,508
SHARES OUTSTANDING AT YEAR-END 42,600,844 27,530,603 23,607,968

(1) This financial data has been prepared in accordance with GAAP.



Results of Operations

During 2003, management determined that a change in the methodology to determine reporting segments was necessary to mirror
changes made in the organizational and internal reporting structures of the Company. As a result, the MD&A focuses on these
revised segments.

Tools Division

Tools Division

(Thousands of Canadian dollars) 2003 2002
Revenue . $§ 62248 $ 62784
Direct expenses 35.085 33,504
Gross margin ' 27,153 29,280
General & Administrative 22743 20,598
EBITDA" . 4,410 8,682
Amortization 12912 10,635
Operating Loss’ § _ (8502 £ (1.953)

* EBITDA and operating loss are not recognized measures under GAAP. Management believes that in addition to net loss, EBITDA and operating loss

are useful supplemental measures. The Company considers EBITDA and operating loss to be useful financial measures. Investors should be
cautioned that EBITDA and operating oss should not be construed as an alternative to net loss determined in accordance with GAAP as an indicator of
NQL's performance. NQL's method of calculating -EBITDA and operating loss may differ from other companies and accordingly may not be
comparable to measures used by other companies.

Revenue in the Tools Division remained relatively flat year-over-year. Geographically, revenue in the Tools Division was
broken between $16.3 million in Canada (2002 - $14.3 million), $28.2 million in the US (2002 - $26.6 million) and $17.7 million
(2002 - $21.9 million) from various locations internationally. The increases in North America relate to the stronger drilling
activity experienced during 2003 compared to 2002. The reduction in international revenue relates primarily to slow activity in
Venezuela due to continued political unrest in this country, where revenue was down $3.9 million ($4.4 million in 2003 vs. $8.3
million in 2002). N
Direct expenses in the Tools Division were $35.1 million in 2003 compared to $33.5 in the prior year. This resulted in a gross
margin for the year of 43.6% compared to 46.6% in 2002. The decreased margin primarily relates to $2.0 million of Specific
Charges incurred during the year. These charges mostly relate to inventory valuation and obsolescence allowances booked in
2003 in conjunction with a comprehensive review conducted by management. After removfng the effect of these Specific
Charges, the gross margin for the year was 46.9% and consistent with 2002.

General and Administrative (“G&A™) expenses in 2003 increased by $2.1 million compared to the prior year. This increase
relates entirely to Specific Charges, which includes $1.6 million in bad debt provisions. The recording of bad debt provisions
was necessitated by changing circumstances related to a large sale of milling tools into Nigeria, the anticipated impact on certain
of the Company’s customers in Venezuela due to the economic crisis in that country and provisions required on certain amounts
due from higher risk customers in the US. The Company has taken steps to strengthen its credit policies to help prevent this
situation from arising in the future. In addition to the bad debt provisions, the Company incurred $0.2 million in costs associated
with the tax, legal and operational restructuring of the Company and $0.1 million associated with-severance costs and settling
certain employment agreements. :

Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 increased by $2.3 million compared to the prior year. The increase
is primarily related to $2.7 in Specific Charges incurred during the year. These Specific Charges include $2.2 million to reflect



an impairment of certain deferred costs associated with the Company’s EM-MWD guidance system. The remaining $0.5 million
also relates to write-offs of other deferred charges, where the value was determined to be impaired. After removing the effect of
Specific Charges, amortization for 2003 was $10.2 million compared to $10.6 million in 2002. The reduction relates to the
strengthening Canadian dollar during 2003, which had the effect of reducing amortization for the year by approximately $0.8
million. This was partially offset by additional amortization in 2003 as a result of additions occurﬁng during the year.

The Tools Division had EBITDA for the year of $4.4 compared to $8.7 million a year prior. The operating loss for the division
in 2003 was $8.5 million compared to $2.0 million in 2002, After removing the effect of the Specific Charges, EBITDA and
opérat'mg loss for the year was $8.7 million and $1.5 million, respectively. .

Bits Division

Blts Division

(Thousands of Canadian dollars) 2003 2002
Revenue $ 27,003 $ 12082
Direct expenses ) N 12,461 5,758
Gross margin 14,542 6,333
General & Administrative 10,674 4,046
EBITDA ’ 3,868 2,287
Amortization 1180 432
Operating income 3 2,718 j 1.855

Revenue in the Bits Division (acquired on August 29, 2002) increased in 2003 as a result of a full year's results for this division
compared to only four months in 2002. A comparison of 2003 revenue for this division against actual full-year revenue for 2002
results in a year-ove;-year-reduction of $10.8 million ($27.0 million vs. $37.8 million). The decline in revenue can be attributed
to a slowdown in US deep-water drilling, political unrest in Nigeria and Venezuela and increased competition. Another
contributing factor to the decline in year-over-year revenue relates to the strengthening of the Canadian dollar compared to the
US dollar during 2003. If the currency had remained unchanged from 2002, this would have resulted in additional revenue in
2003 of approximately $3.2 million. :

Despite declining year-over-year revenues, the Bits Division maintained a similar gross margin to 2002 (53.9% - 12 months vs.
52.4% - 4 months). This can be attributed to the overall product mix of revenue in 2003 compared to 2002. If DPI had been
acquired on January 1, 2003, the actual gross margin reported for this division in 2002 would have been 54.4%.

General and administrative costs increased during 2003 as a result of a full year’s resuits for this division. G&A expenses for the
division for the full year in 2002 were $13.0 million compared to $10.7 million in 2003, a decrease of $2.3 million. The
strengthening Canadian dollar during 2003 had the effect of reducing G&A by approximately $1.3 million. The remainder

relates to a general reduction in G&A expenses undertaken by management during the year in response to the lower activity
levels.

Amortization expense increased during 2003, again due the inclusion of a full year’s results for this division. Amortization
expense for the division for the full year in 2002 was $0.8 million compared to $1.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2003. The increase relates to the amortization of patents, set-up as of the acquisition date in conjunction with the allocation of
the excess of the purchase price over the net book value of the Bit Division.

The Bits Division achieved EBITDA and operating income for 2003 of $3.9 million and $2.7 million, respectively. On an
annualized basis in 2002, EBITDA was $7.5 million and operating income was $6.7 million. If the Canadian currency had not



strengthened during the year, EBITDA and operatirig income in 2003 would have been higher by $0.5 million and $0.3 miliion,
respectively. The remaining reduction in EBITDA and operating income is primarily related to the reduction in activity levels in
2003 compared to 2002.

Fishing Division

Fishing Division .

{Thousands of Canadian dollars) 2003 2002
Revenue $ 21,244 $ 14,348
Direct expenses . 13,405 10,079
Gross margin 7,838 4,269
General & Administrative 3.085 1,559
EBITDA 4,754 2,710
‘Amortization 1,983 1,970
Operating income Y 2171 g 740

Revenues in the Fishing Division for 2003 increased by $6.9 million or 48% compared to the prior year. This division operated
at high levels throughout 2003 based on the strong drilling activity levels-in Canada and its expansion into the US in 2003,

The gross margin improved to 37% compared to 30% in 2002. These stronger margins in the Fishing Division were reflective of
spreading fixed costs over a higher revenue base.

General and administrative expenses increased during 2003 resulting from a 30.7 million bad debt expense related to a Canadian
customer who.began to experience financial difficulties and $0.7 in G&A associated with the US fishing division set up during
2003.

Amortization remained relatively flat fof 2003 compared to 2002.

The strong performance of this division during the year resulted in $4.7 million of EBITDA (2002 - $2.7 million) and $2.8
million in operating income (2002 - $0.7 million).

Corporate Division

Corporate Division 2003 2002
(Thousands of Canadian doliars)

General & Administrative £ 7671 $ 1718
Amortization & 622 $ 471

The Corporate Division provides support for the other three divisions of the Company and includes such costs as senior
management salaries, insurance, financing costs, professional and legal fees, IT support, human resources support and other
public company related expenses.

General and Administrative expenses for the Corporate Division increased by approximately $6.0 million compared to 2002.
This increase can be primarily attributed to $4.9 million in Specific Charges incurred during the year. These Specific Charges
include $2.0 million in consulting and professional fees related to complying with the forbearance agreement negotiated with the
Company’s former lenders, $2.2 million associated with severance costs and settling certain employment agreements and $0.2
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. million in costs associated with the tax, legal and operational restructuring of the Company. The remainder of the increase is
related to additional professional fees incurred with respect to quarterly reviews of the Company’s financial results, tax advice,
additional salaries associated with increasing the financial personnel of the Corporate Division, and a reallocation of certain costs
from the Tools Division to the Corporate Division.

Summary of Quarterly Results

(In thousands of Canadian $, except per share figures)’”
4 Q 3"Q 2®Q *Q 4 Q aQ 2®Q 1*Q
2003 2003 2003 2003 2002 2002 2002 2002
REVENUE $ 26123 | $ 33577 | % 21037 |§ 29,758 | $ 27,908 $ 21513 | § 18405 | & 21,397
LOSS FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS $ (5898 |$ (3531) | $(38172) |$ (985) |$ (1.689) |8  (25) |5 (1.987) |§ (83V)
- PER SHARE - BASIC $ (014 |8 (012) |$ (1.39) 1§ (0.04) | $ (0.07) $ (0.00) |$ (0.08) |$ (0.04)
~ PER SHARE - DILUTED $ (014) {$ (012) |$ (1.39) |3 (004) | $ (0.07) $ (0.00) {$ (0.08) | $ (0.04)
NET LOSS $(11.411) | $ (4375) | 8$(42112) | (1.231) | $ (2530) |'S (116) | § (2.280) |§ (951)
- PER SHARE - BASIC $ (027) |$ (015) |§ (1.53) |$ (0.04) |$ (0.10) |$ (0.00) |$ (0.10) |§ (0.04)
- PER SHARE - DILUTED $.(027) |$ (015) {$ (153) |$ (0.04) |$ (0.10) | (0.00) |[$ (0.10) | (0.04)

(1) This financial data has been prepared in accardance with GAAP.

Fourth Quarter - 2003
Revenue

Revenue during the fourth quarter of 2003 included $14.2 million (2002 - $15.0 million) from the Tools Division, $5.3 million
(2002~ 38.5 million) from the Bit Division and $6.6 million (2002 - $4.4 million) from the Fishing Division. Geographically,
revenue during the fourth quarter of 2003 in the Tools Division was broken down between $3.5 million (2002 - $3.8 million) in
Canada, $6.1 million in the United States (2002 - $6.6 million) and $4.7 million (2002 - $4.6) from various international
locations, the largest of which was Venezuela at $2.0 million (2002 - $1.7 million).

Expenses and Margins

Gross margins for the fourth quarter of 2003 were 37 percent compared to 43 percent in the comparable period of 2002. Fourth
quarter direct costs include approximately $0.9 million in Specific Charges that relate to inventory adjustments in the United
States and the write-down of inventory of a minor product line to net realizable value in anticipation of a sale of that product line.
After eliminating these Specific Charges, margins for the quarter would have been 41 percent. When compared to the prior year,
fourth quarter 2003 margins, after elimination of the Specific Charges, reflect strong results from the Fishing Division (fixed
costs spread over a higher revenue base) and higher margins from the Bit Division (product mix), offset by lower margins in the
Tools Division (fixed costs spread over a lower revenue base and minor year end accounting adjustments posted in the fourth
quarter).

G&Ad

Administrative costs for the fourth quarter of 2003 total $12.0 million as compared to $10.1 million in the same period of 2002.
This increase was due primarily to $2.5 million in Specific Charges which in turn were comprised of $1.3 million in severance
costs, $0.4 million in costs associated with the tax, legal and operational restructuring of the Company, and $0.8 million in bad
debt provisions in Canada and Venezuela. " The Canadian bad debt provision relates to a single fishing customer who is
experiencing financial difficulties while the Venezuelan amounts relate to the ﬁnancxal crisis in that country which has impacted
the ability of the Company's customers to pay their bills in a timely manner.
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Interest

Interest expense during the quarter was $1.5 million, a significant decline from the $2.2 million recorded in the same period of
2002. The reduction in interest expense was primarily due to a significant decrease in debt levels resulting from the proceeds of
two equity issues in 2003 and another in late 2002. The reduction in debt levels was partially offset by Specific Charges of $0.4
million associated with punitive fees and interest penalties charged by the Company’s lenders as the Company worked through its
financial difficulties. - ‘

Other Expenses

Other expenses during the fourth quarter includes $1.1 million in Specific Charges related to the write-down of the Corapany’s
drilling rig used for testing purposes to expected net realizable value. The Company expects to dispose of this asset in 2004.

Discontinued Operations

During the fourth quarter, management and the Board conducted an internal analysis of all aspects of the Company and
concluded that certain of its assets and operations were no longer central to the longer-term strategy of the Corporation. As a
result, NQL recorded the following in the discontinued operations line of the income statement in the fourth quarter: a) the net
impact of the operating results of the discontinued operations; and b) the after-tax impact of writing down the assets of the
discontinued operations to their expected net realizable value.

Discontinued operations include the Ackerman division that the Company sold in February of 2004, and the Bolivian operation:
of the Tools Division. . :

The loss from discontinued operations for the fourth quarter of 2003 was $5.5 million compared to $0.8 million in 2002. The
increased loss in 2003 is primarily the result of writing down the assets of the discontinued operations to expected net realizable
value. s

Net Loss and Loss per share

Overall, the Company recorded a net loss of $11.4 million ($0.27/share) during the fourth quarter of 2003 that compares to a loss
of $2.5 million (80.10/share) in 2002. The loss from continuing operations for the quarter was $5.9 million ($0.14/share)
compared to a loss of $1.7 million ($0.07/share) in 2002. After removing the impact of the Specific Charges, the Company
would have recorded a net loss of $2.8 million ($0.06/share). The net loss in the fourth quarter of 2003 was impacted, in part, by
a low tax recovery rate on pre-tax losses as a result of year-end adjustments and certain interest and penalty charges in Canada
and the United States.

Third Quarter - 2003

Operating activities during the third quarter reflected a variety of influences. The Company’s Fishing Division operated at high
levels as the Canadian rig count began to rise however, the Bits Division continued to be negatively impacted by competitive
pressures, a slow deep water drilling market in the Gulf of Mexico, and reduced activity in key international locations such as
Nigeria and Venezuela. A relatively flat rental market, offset by strong equipment sales, resulted in higher revenue during the
quarter for the Tools Division.

Overall, revenue increased 55 percent year over year due in part to a significant downhole motor sale into Vietnam and the sale
of EM-MWD guidance systems to a customer in the United States. Revenue was also positively impacted by a full quarter of
revenue from DPI, the acquisition of which was completed on August 29, 2002.

During the third quarter of 2003, a comprehensive internal review of NQL’s financial records was conducted to ensure these
records reflected the changing circumstances of NQL and the industry in which operates. As a result, earnings for the quarter
were negatively impacted by $8.8 million of pre-tax Specific Charges resulting from this review.

Second Quarter - 2003
The second quarter reflected the traditional slowdown in activity in the Company’s Canadian based operations due to spring

breakup, which has the effect of reducing revenues to their lowest levels of the year. The Fishing Division showed a marginal
year over year improvement. Revenue was positively impacted by the Bits Division, which did not exist in the prior year, The
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Tools Division continued to struggle in the US, where activity levels were slower to rebound than anticipated, and
internationally, primarily related to the continued political unrest in Venezuela.

Eamnings and operating margins were impacted in the quarter due to increased professional fees, interest costs and bank fees
(approximately $2.4 million in total) associated the Company’s financial difficulties. As well, the Company incurred costs
during Q2 associated with the impairment of goodwill and other intangibles totaling $38.2 million.

First Quarter - 2003

The first quarter of 2003 reflected stronger activity levels in Canada compared to 2002 as a result of an increase in drilling
activity of over 20%. As a result, both the Tools Division and the Fishing Division experienced increases in revenue over 2002.
Again, revenue was positively impacted by the Bits Division, acquired in August 2002. The US Tools Division showed a small
increase in revenue over the prior year, while international revenue was off considerably as a result of Venezuela's political
climate. '

Although, gross margins improved over the prior year resulting from increased activity in North America and higher margins
from the Bits Division, overall profitability suffered primarily as a result of higher interest costs associated with increased debt
levels.

Fourth Quarter — 2002

The fourth quarter of 2002 was the first full quarter of activity for the Bits Division, since it was acquired in August. However,
results for this division were below expectations due primarily to a slowdown in the US deepwater drilling market. While
revenue in the Fishing Division was flat during the quarter, the Tools Division experienced a decrease in revenue compared to the
prior year, related to the general decline in drilling activity in North America. Internationally, the Tools Division was
significantly affected by the collapse of the Venezuelan oil and gas market, the major international contributor to the Company’s
revenue in prior years. Despite the decline in activity, margins remained relatively flat year-over-year, primarily related to the
higher margins from the Bits Division. Profitability was impacted due to higher interest costs associated with the additional debt
assumed upon the acquisition of DPL

Third Quarter — 2002

Industry operating activity in the third quarter of 2002 was down considerably from 2001. This impacted all divisions of the
Company. In Canada, both the Tools and Fishing Division’s saw a 40% reduction in revenue over the prior year. Revenue in the
US Tools Division fell more than 50% compared to 2001. The Bits Division contributed only one month of revenue as it was
acquired late in the quarter. Internationally, revenue was down 30% related again to the soft activity levels in Venezuela. The
Company’s operations in the United Arab Emirates (“U.A.E.”) had a strong quarter, more than doubling its revenue from 2001.

Second Quarter - 2002

The second quarter of 2002 experienced similar results as the third quarter, magnified by the impact of the Canadian spring-
breakup. Both the Tools and Fishing Divisions experienced significant year-over-year declines in activity levels.

First Quarter — 2002

In the first quarter of 2002, drilling activity in Canada and the US was down. 20% and 30%, respectively, compared to the first
quarter of 2001. This resulted in significant reductions in North American revenue in both the Tools and Fishing Divisions.
Internationally, the Tools Division experienced some growth compared to the first quarter of 2001, resulting primarily from
operations in Holland and the U.A.E. As well, operations in Mexico (opened in May 2001) contributed to the international
revenue growth. Margins suffered considerably during the quarter resulting from lower revenue spread over the fixed cost base

- of the Company.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Refinancing Activities

As a result of its financial difficulties, NQL took several steps during 2003 to improve the overall financial position and liquidity
of the Company. These steps included closing a $10.0 million liquidity loan with a significant shareholder of the Company, a
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private placement issuance of 7.9 million common shares for gross proceeds of $25 million ($23.7 million after costs) and a
rights offering for 7.1 million common shares for. gross proceeds of $22.4 million ($21.5 million after costs). The proceeds from
these transactions were used to pay down debt owing to the Company’s former lenders, partially repay the liquidity loan referred
to above and for general working capital purposes.

Subsequent to year-end, the Company entered into an arrangement with a new lender for a $55 million (Capadian equivalent)
loan facility. This facility, which is available in a combination of Canadian and US funds, is comprised of a $20 million
operating line of credit, a $25 million three year term facility and a $10 million short-term note to be repaid over 18 months. The
proceeds from this new loan facility were used to fully repay all outstanding debt (including operating lines) to the. Company’s
former lenders and to repay the balance of the liquidity loan. .

Liguidity

NQL’s cash loss from continuing operations, before net changes in operating working capital items, was $4.7 million in 2003
compared to 2002 cash flow from continuing operations of $8.6 million. The cash loss from continuing operations from 2002
primarily resulted from the Specific Charges recorded during 2003,

Net cash from financing activities was virtually nil for 2003 compared to $62.9 million in 2002. During 2003, the Company
generated cash from the issuance capital stock of $45.4 and from the proceeds of long-term debt of $12.8 million. These funds
were used repay long-term debt and operating lines (including debt relating to discontinued operations) by $58.2 million. In
2002, the net cash from financing activities of $62.9 was primarily related to the debt required to finance the DPI acquisition and
the issuance of common shares late in the year.

In 2003, the net cash used in investing activities was $8.9 million. This is primarily related to capital expenditures, which were
$8.4 million for the year. These capital expenditures primarily relate to the addition of new downhole tools and the construction
of a new facility in Stafford (Houston), Texas. In 2002, the net cash used in investing activities was $73.6 million. This was
primarily related to the acquisition of DPI ($50.8 million) and capital expenditures ($18.5 million). The 2002 capital
expenditures primarily include the addition of new downhole tools in the US and manufacturing equipment in Canada.

At December 31, 2003, the Company had a working capital surplus of $26.1 million compared to a working capital deficiency of -
$9.6 million on December 31, 2002. The major reason for the positive swing in working capital relates to the reduction in the
Company’s operating lines and current portion of long-term. debt. These reductions are primarily the result of equity raised
during the year through the private placement and rights offering. As well, under GAAP the closing of the new credit facility
subsequent to year-end has resulted in that portion of bank indebtedness repaid from the proceeds of the new, long-term facilities
being reclassified from current to long-term in the Company’s year-end consolidated financial statements. In effect, the
December 31, 2003 balance sheet of the Company classifies debt as to current and long term on a basis that reflects the closing of
the transaction as-if it had occurred at year-end although the transaction itself did not close until after year-end.

At December 31, 2003, under the previously existing credit facility arrangements, the Company had four revolving, operating
loans, restricted by specific margin requirements, which were limited to maximum amounts of $30.0 million, US$3.0 million,
US$0.3 million and 0.3 million Euros, respectively. At December 31, 2003, the Company had drawn $24.1 million on these
operating lines of credit.

In conjunction with the new debt facilities established in January 2004, all of the operating lines existing at December 31, 2003
were repaid, with the exception of the Euro facility. A new operating facility was established in the amount of $20.0 million,
subject to specific margin requirements.

At December 31, 2003, the Company had $0.7 million (Canadian equivalent) of local currency in Venezuela, which due 1o local
currency restrictions, could not be transferred out of the country. The Company is currently exploring alternatives to deal with
this issue.

At December 31, 2003, the Company was in complianée with all its financial debt covenants and management expects to be in
compliance throughout 2004.

At this time the Company has sufficient availability in its operating lines of credits to meet ongoing obligations however, the
availability of these lines is subject to the Company remaining in compliance with the terms of its existing indebtedness.



Capital Resources

NQL had long-term debt (excluding current portion) at December 31, 2003 of $23.9 million compared with $2.1 million on
December 31, 2002. At the end of 2002, the Company was in violation of certain financial covenants with its senior lenders. As
such, a $16.0 million capital loan and a $34.6 million bridge loan were classified as current. At the end of 2003, these debts were -
reclassified from current to long-term, due to the fact that the financing closed subsequent to year-end.

The new credit facility entered into in January 2004 included a $15.0 Canadian Term Loan, a US$7.5 million U.S. Refinancing
Loan and a US$7.5 million U.S. Term Loan. The Canadian Term Loan is repayable in quarterly principal payments of $1.25
million commencing April 30, 2004 with the final payment due January 31, 2007. The U.S. Refinancing Loan is repayable in
quarterly principal payments of US$0.625 million commencing April 30, 2004 with the final payment due January 31, 2007. The
U.S. Term Loan is repayable in full on July 31, 2005, except US$3.75 million, which is due October 31, 2004. In February 2004,
the Company repaid USS$1.0 million of the U.S. Term Loan from the proceeds of the Ackerman International sale. In April 2004,
the Company repaid US$0.3 million of the U.S. Term Loan from the proceeds of the RTI sale. These payments will reduce the
Company’s October 31, 2004 payment obligation under this loan. In addition, as the Company disposes of other non-core assets
and operations, the proceeds from these dispositions will be used to reduce the U.S. Term Loan accordingly.

In addition, at December 31, 2003, the Company had various other debts totaling approximately $2.5 million maturing on dates
ranging from January 2004 to July 2011.

At December 31, 2003, the Company had obligations under operating leases and employment contracts of $11.9. Subsequent to
year-end, the Company committed to the purchase of manufacturing equipment in the amount of $1.0 million. This equipment is
expected to be delivered during 2004, )

The following table presents the Company’s future payment obligations at December 31, 2003:

Confractual Objigations - Payments due by Period
Less than After

(Thousands of Canadian dollars) Total 1 year 1-3 years 4 -5 years 5 years
Long-term debt™ $ 37,222 $ 11,547 $ 22,085 $ 3,244 $ 346
Capital lease obligations $ 93 $ 55 $ 38 $ - 3 -
Operating leases and employment contracts $ 11,882 $ 4979 $ 5255 $ 1,648 $ -
Purchase Obligations $ 1,035 $ 1,035 $ - $ - ‘3 -
Tota! Contractual Obligations $ 50,232 $ 17,616 $ 27,378 $ ;1'392 $ 346

' The long-term debt obligations of the Company are shown after giving effect to the refinancing described above.

Share Capital

Share capital increased $46.1 million to $181.5 million at the end of 2003 from $135.4 million at the end of 2002. This was the
result of the net proceeds from the private placement (7.9 million common shares issued at $3.15), the rights offering (7.1 million
shares issued at $3.15) and stock Options exercised during the year.

At December 31, 2003, NQL had 42,600,844 Class A common shares outstanding, 3,471,165 stock options outstanding
(1,181,165 exercisable) and 179,535 warrants (all exercisable) outstanding. This compares to 27,530,603 Class A common
shares, 870,829 stock options (796,829 exercisable) and 189,535 warrants (all exercisable) outstanding at December 31, 2002,
The large increase in stock options during 2003 occurred in conjunction with the financial restructuring of the Company and the
restructuring of the Board and management. During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Board undertook a review of the
compensation arrangements between the Company and its management group. As a result of this review, the Board determined
that changes were required to the Company's compensation systems to more closely link the interests of management with those
.~ of NQL’s shareholders.  As a part of this review, the new Board authorized and issued 2,637,500 stock options to directors,



officers and employees of the Company. Of these amounts, certain options were granted to the Board in exchange for their
agreement to cancel stock appreciation rights previously granted to the Board in connection with the appointment of several new
Board members. Details regarding stock option and warrant pricing can be found in Note 15 to the 2003 consolidated financial
statements.

At April 30, 2004, the Company had 42,615,844 Class A common shares outstanding, 3,420,665 stock options outstanding and
137,686 warrants outstanding.

Transactions with Related Parties

During 2003, a former director provided legal services in the amount of approximately $20,000 (2002- $131,000). Also, a
director and officer of the Company is a shareholder of a company that provided machining services in the amount of
approximately $64,000 (2002 - $49,000). These transactions took place at normal commercial rates and terms.

During the year, the Company paid interest and financing fees of approximately $823,000 (2002 - nil) to CanFund VE Iavestors
11, L.P,, a significant shareholder of the Company.

Proposed Transactions

In February 2004, the Company formed a Special Committee of the Board of Directors to consider various options that may be
available to the Company to enhance shareholder value. The Special Committee (comprised of R. Tim Swinton, Bruce R. Libin
and Thomas R. Bates, Jr.) retained Simmons & Company International, a Houston based investment banking firm specializing in
the energy industry, to assist the Board in considering and evaluating strategic alternatives.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Board initiated an action plan involving the sale or closure of various non-core operations.
As a result of this action plan, the Company sold the Ackerman International business in February 2004 and its 20% interest in
RTIL, LLC and related inventory in April 2004. RTI was an entity that had developed proprietary technology related to certain
casing exiting systems. In addition to these transactions, the action plan that has been developed includes the sale of the
Company’s EM-MWD business, its manufacturing facility located in Santa Cruz, Bolivia and the sale of a drilling rig that had
been utilized in the testing of certain downhole products. The Company has engaged various third party business advisors to
assist in these transactions.

Critical Accounting Estimates

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, various accounting estimates are made in applying the Company’s accounting
policies. The estimates require significant judgment on the part of management and are considered critical in that they are
important to the Company’s financial condition and results.

Management believes the critical accounting estimates for the Company are as follows:
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

An allowance of $3.4 million has been recorded in the 2003 consolidated financial statements, which reflects the amount of the
balance for which collection is considered doubtful. In assessing the ability to collect accounts receivable, management reviews
individual customer receivable balances to determine accounts on which collection is not certain. For these accounts, an
allowance for doubtful accounts is established. The amount of the allowance is based upon a review of the customer’s credit
information, past payment practices and overall financial strength of the customer.

Carrying Value of Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over the fair value of the net assets of the companies acquired. As at December 31, 2003,
the Company had a goodwill balance of $34.4 million. Goodwill is not amortized, but is tested for impairment at least annually.
This impairment assessment is critical due to the potential impact on eamings if an impairment of goodwill exists. GAAP
requires that a charge to earnings be recorded when the carrying value of a reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds the fair value.
Valuation of goodwill involves certain judgments including estimating the future cash flows of the reporting unit. Facters that
influence these cash flow estimates include industry related long-term forecasts and trends, general long-term economic forecasts
and historical results of the reporting unit. ’
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The Company tested its goodwill for impairment as at June 30, 2003 and determined that the goodwill of certain of its reporting
units was impaired. The total amount of the impairment was $36.0 million relating to goodwill associated with the acquisitions
of Northstar Drilling Systems Inc. ($19.3 million), Diamond Products International, Inc. ($12.7 million) and Ackerman
International Corp. ($4.0 million). Additional details can be found in notes 5 and 12 to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements. :

Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost and are amortized over their estimated useful lives. The Company evaluates the carrying value
of capital assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The
Company recognizes an impairment charge when it is probable that estimated future cash flows of the underlying assets will be
less than the carrying value of the assets.

Judgment is required in determining the useful life of capital assets and the appropriate method of amortization. Factors
considered in estimating the useful lives of capital assets include expected future usage, effects of technological or commercial
obsolescence, expected wear and tear from use or the passage of time and the effectiveness of the Company’s maintenance
program. ,

The Company’s investment in capital assets results in amortization expense being a significant operating cost to the Company
and any misjudgment in estimating the useful life of the equipment could result in a misstatement of financial results.

Carrying Value of Deferred Development Costs

Deferred development costs inciude the costs and technology associated with the development of new downhole tools. These
costs are amortized over the estimated useful of the downhole tool. Management regularly reviews its deferred development
costs to be reasonably assured of recovery through the future cash flows of the related product.

Future Income Taxes

Future income tax assets are recognized for the benefits from tax losses and deductions provided these benefits are more likely
than not to be realized. The assessment of whether these benefits are more likely than not to be realized requires judgment on the
part of management. Factors considered in arriving at this determination include, the expected life of the tax losses, estimated
future taxable income and other possible sources of realization of these losses. At December 31, 2003, the Company had non-
capital loss carry forwards relating to operations in various jurisdictions of approximately $36.4 million, which are available to
offset income of specific entities of the consolidated group in future periods. These losses expire at various times up to the end of
2023. Of these non-capital loss carry forwards, approximately $26.9 million has been recognized as future income tax assets as
at December 31, 2003. S

Changes in Accounting Policies
Discontinued Operations

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted on a prospective basis new CICA Handbook Section 3475 “Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets and Discontinued Operations”. Long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale are classified as held for sale in the
period in which a formal plan of disposal has been approved, the assets are available for immediate sale and are actively being
marketed and it is expected that the sale will occur within one year. Long-lived assets to be abandoned are classified as held and
used until they are disposed of. Long-lived assets classified as held for sale are carried at the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value net of estimated disposition costs. Losses are recognized immediately where the carrying value exceeds fair value and
gains are recognized at the time of sale. The results of discontinued operations are reported separately, including gains or losses
related to the disposal of related long-lived assets held for sale or disposal. Future costs associated with an exit or disposal
activity are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.

Stock Based Compensation

The Company has a stock-based compensation plan that provides directors, officers and certain employees the option of
purchasing common shares of the Company. During 2003, the CICA amended the accounting standard related to stock-based
compensation to require expense treatment of all stock-based compensation and payments at grant date, effective January 1,
2004, The previous standard provided the option of disclosing the effect on a pro-forma basis rather than expensing the award.



For fiscal years commencing on or after January 1, 2004, GAAP will require all stock-based compensation awards to be
expensed.

The Company intends to retroactively apply this new standard, without restatement of prior periods. Accordingly, on January 1,
2004, the deficit and contributed surplus will both be increased by $2.7 million to account for the stock option expense that
would have been charged to earnings in 2002 and 2003 with respect to all options granted since January 1, 2002.

Financial and Other Instruments

The Company’s significant financial and other instruments consist of accounts receivable and its interest bearing obligations,
such as its operating lines and long-term debt.

Accounts Receivable

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its customers, the majority of whom are involved in the oil and gas industry. Qverall
significant long-term changes in the geopolitical, economic or environmental conditions, as they relate to the oil and gas industry,
could adversely affect the Company’s ability to realize on its accounts receivable. The amount of this impact is not determinable.
However, the Company has a large number of customers, dispersed across many different geographical locations internationally,
which minimizes concentration of credit risk. In addition, significant customers include large, well-established, publicly traded
corporations. Concentration of credit risk, with respect to accounts receivable, is also limited due to the Company's credit
evaluation process. In the normal course of business, the Company evaluates the financial condition of existing customers on a
continuing basis and reviews the credit worthiness of all new customers,

Interest bearing Obligations

NQL utilizes long-term debt, its operating lines and other interest bearing debt to fund capital expenditures and support the day-
to-day operations of its business. Through its use of interest bearing obligations, the Company is exposed to interest rate risk.
Interest rate risk is the risk to the Company’s earnings that arises from fluctuations in interest rates and the degree of volatility of
these rates. The Company does not uses derivative instruments to reduce its exposure to interest rate risk. For 2003, a 1%
increase or decrease in interest rates would have reduced or increased earnings before income taxes by approximately $700,000.

Currency Risk

The Company is exposed to currency risks as a result of its exports to foreign jurisdictions of goods produced in Canada. These
risks are partially covered by purchases-of goods and services in the foreign currency. The Company is also exposed to currency
risk as it relates to its net investment in self-sustaining foreign operations. The functional currency of the majority of the
Company’s self-sustaining foreign operations is the U.S. dollar. Therefore, the Company is exposed to currency risks relating to
changes in the rate of exchange between the Canadian dollar and the U.S. dollar. The Company does not use derivative financial
instruments to reduce its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates.

Fair Value

The carrying value of the Company’s interest in financial instruments approximates their fair value. The estimated fair values
approximate amounts for which these financial instruments could be currently exchanged in an arm’s length transaction between
willing parties who are under no compulsion to act. Therefore, fair values are based on estimates, using present value and other
valuation techniques that are significantly affected by the assumptions used conceming the amount and timing of estimated future
cash flows and discount rates that reflect varying degrees of risk. Therefore, due to the use of subjective judgment and
uncertainties, the aggregate fair value amount should not be interpreted as being realizable in an immediate settlement of the
instruments. ) :

Business Risk

The demand for the Company’s products and services is largely dependent upon the level of expenditures by oil and gas
companies on exploration and development activities. A decline in the market price of oil and gas generally results in a reduction
in these exploration and development activities that can in turn have an adverse effect on the profitability of the Company.
Other factors which can affect exploration and development activities include changes in equity markets, taxation and
government regulations, and general economic conditions. The Company attempts to mitigate some of these risks through
additional applications for its tools in industries such as the utility, environmental and trenchless construction. Also, as NQL
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operates in many international jurisdictions, it must be aware of any inherent business risks associated with doing so. The
Company has attempted to mitigate these risks by establishing alliances with partners who are familiar with the economic climate
and have experience in the foreign jurisdictions. As well, a comprehensive insurance program is maintained to protect against
significant losses, while maintaining levels of risk within the Company which management believes to be acceptable. NQL
believes its liability, property and business interruption insurance is adequate and consistent with common industry practice.

As several other companies have similar technology to NQL, the Company will be required to maintain a focused and
efficient/effective domestic and international sales and marketing program to its maintain current market penetration and exploit
selected market opportunities.

Foreign operations may be adversely affected by local political and economic developments, exchange controls, currency
fluctuations, royalty and tax increases, retroactive tax claims, renegotiations of contracts with governmental entities,
expropriation, import and export regulations and other foreign laws or policies governing operations of foreign based companies,
as well as by laws and policies of Canada and the United States affecting foreign trade, taxation and investment. In addition, as
the Company's foreign operations are governed by foreign laws, in the event of a dispute the Company may be subject to the
exclusive jurisdiction of foreign courts and the application of foreign laws or may not be successful in subjecting foreign persons
to the jurisdiction of Canadian courts. The Company may also be hindered or prevented from enforcing its rights with respect to
a governmental instrumentality by the doctrine of sovereign immunity. The Company's business is subject to political risks
inherent in all foreign operations.

Safety risks are managed through the application of safety policies and procedures conducive to promoting safe work practices.
The potential impact of any of the above factors on the operations of the Company is difficult to determine with any degree of
certainty.

Contingencies

The Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA™) is auditing certain of the Company's transfer pricing methodologies for the fiscal years
1996 to 2002. During the fourth quarter of 2003, and in compliance with requests made by the CRA, NQL filed extensive
documents in support of its transfer pricing methodologies. The Company anticipates this matter will go before Competent
Authority, comprised of representatives of the CRA and the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS™) of the United States. Management
intends to vigorously defend its position.

Due to the nature of the matter, the amount of the loss, if any, cannot be reasonably estimated and therefore no amounts have
been accrued in the Company’s financial statements. Management estimates the maximum after-tax charge resulting from the
most negative outcome on resolution of this matter could be up to $7.0 million. However, it is likely that this amount would be
significantly reduced upon request for relief from double taxation with the US Competent Authority. At December 31, 2003, the
Company had loss carry forwards available, which could be used to reduce the cash impact of any assessment by approximately
$1.2 million. Management will continue to work with its advisors to resolve this issue.

Outlook

The Company believes that significant progress has been made in restructuring its operations and that the major financial charges
associated with restructuring have been recorded in 2003, On a forward-looking basis, it is the expectation of the Company that
financial results will not include the numerous charges (including the Specific Charges) that have been.recorded in 2003.

Management is currently implementing its operational restructuring plan and will continue pursuing the sale of non-core assets
that were written-down to net realizable value at year-end. In addition, the Company believes that its recent restructuring of
operational management has resulted in the commitment of the resources necessary to ensure the ongoing operations of the
Company are being optimized. This return to an operational focus, combined with the financial and structural changes that are
now underway, are expected to retumn the Company to profitability in 2004.

Non-GAAP Measures

In this MD&A, we have included certain measures of earnings and other charges of an infrequent nature, as we believe that this
information will assist investors’ understanding of the level of our core earnings and to assess our performance in 2003 compared
to the prior year. We believe that conventional measures of performance prepared in. accordance with GAAP do not fully
illustrate our core earnings. These non-GAAP performance measures, including EBITDA and operating loss, do not have any
standardized meaning prescribed by GAAP and therefore are unlikely 1o be comparable to similar measures presented by other
companies. Accordingly, they are intended to provide additional information and should not be considered in isolation or as a
substitute for measures of performance prepared in accordance with GAAP.
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The Auditors of NQL Drilling Tools Inc. (the “Company”) have not reviewed the interim financial

statements of the Company for the three months ended March 31%,2003.

Kevin L. Nugent )
Senior Vice President Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary
May 14", 2004



FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE DECFIVED

NQL ANNOUNCES FIRST QUARTER RESULTS
AND STATUS OF STRATEGIC PROCESS 7 7iCE OF it

May 14, 2004
Nisku, Alberta

NQL Drilling Tools Inc. (TSX — NQL.A) announced today its financial results for the first quarter as well as
the status of its strategic process.

UPDATE ON STRATEGIC PROCESS

As previously announced, NQL has formed a special committee of the Board of Directors to consider
various options that may be available to the Company to enhance shareholder value. The special
committee has retained Simmons & Company International, a Houston based investment banking fim
specializing in the energy industry, to assist the Board of Directors in considering and evaluating
strategic alternatives,

At this time NQL is continuing to investigate options available to it, including a possible sale of the
Company. To that end, NQL has entered into confidentiality agreements with several interested parties
in advance of possible discussions concerning a transaction. The Company expects that should a sale
or other transaction be pursued, any such transaction would be publicly announced at some point in the
next 90 days.

FIRST QUARTER HIGHLIGHTS

Highlights for the quarter include:

e Closed previously announced sale of Ackerman International for total proceeds of US$1.4
million;

» Negotiated sale of the Company's RTI casing exit tool for total proceeds of US$0.6 million.
Closing of this transaction occurred in April;

¢ Completed the merger of the Company’s Tool and Bit divisions under one marketing umbrelia to
take advantage of the Company’s worldwide sales infrastructure and to increase marketing focus
on the expanding performance drilling market. NQL is uniquely positioned to offer performance
drilling systems which involve the provision of a downhole mud motor paired with a fit-for-purpose
drill bit;

e Completed a refinancing of the Company's long-term debt and other credit facilities; and
e Implemented the preliminary steps in a cost rationalization program.

MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

First Quarter Operations Review

First quarter revenue declined in 2004 versus 2003 primarily due to continued slow activity levels in the
Gulf of Mexico that reduced sales for the Company’'s Bit division. NQL's Bi-Center Bit product line in
particular is dependant upon offshore drilling activity in areas such as the Gulf of Mexico. Ignoring the
impact from one individual motor sale in 2003, revenue from the Company’'s Tool division was up year-
over-year, while the Fishing division continued to post strong results in response to high drilling rig
counts in Canada and the continued growth of its business in the United States.



Revenue

Revenue during the first quarter of 2004 included $15.8 million (2003 - $16.2 million) from the Tool
division, $5.2 million (2003- $7.6 million) from the Bit division and $6.5 million (2003 - $6.0 million) from
the Fishing division. Geographically, revenue during the first quarter of 2004 in the Tool division was
broken down between $4.8 million (2003 - $6.3 million) in Canada, $7.2 million (2003 - $6.5 million) in
the United States and $3.8 million (2003 - $3.4) from various international iocations, the largest of which
were Venezuela at $1.2 million (2003 - $0.2 million) and Holland at $1.2 million (2003 - $0.9 million).

Revenue from the Tool division in Canada during the first quarter of 2003 included a iarge motor sale
that was not replicated during the first quarter of 2004 and accounted for the largest portion of the year-
over-year decline in Canadian Tool revenue.

Expenses and Margins

Gross margins for the first quarter of 2004 were 42 percent compared to 48 percent in the comparable
period of 2003. Margins declined in 2004 when compared to 2003 as a result of poor results in
Argentina and Mexico where revenue levels declined dramatically in a market where the cost structure is
largely fixed. In addition, effective January 1, 2004, the Company determined that certain engineering
and support costs related to its EM-MWD product line should be treated as direct costs as opposed to
general and administrative costs. This change is consistent with the shift in strategic focus for this
product line from a rental/leasing model to a system sale model.

G&A

Administrative costs for the first quarter declined from $9.5 million in 2003 to $8.4 million in 2004. This
decline was the result of cost cutting initiatives implemented in early 2004, as well as the impact of the
reclassification of certain expenses related to the Company's EM-MWD system from general and
administrative to direct expenses to reflect the changing strategic focus of the Company related to this
tool.

Amom'zation

Amortization expense declined from $3.7 million during the first quarter of 2003 to $2.9 million in the
comparable 2004 period. This decline is primarily a result of the requirements under Canadian GAAP to
cease depreciating assets once they are classified as being held for sale. During the fourth quarter of
2003, the Company announced its intention to dispose of several business units and capital assets in
conjunction with its overall restructuring efforts at which time a significant dollar value of capital assets
were reclassified as being held for sale. These assets are carried at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value net of estimated disposition costs.

Interest

Interest expense during the first quarter was $0.8 million, a significant decline from the $1.9 million
recorded in the same period of 2003. The reduction in interest expense was primarily due to a
significant decrease in debt levels resulting from the proceeds of two equity issues in late 2003. In
addition, during early 2003 the Company was incurring punitive interest costs and fees charged by its
then existing lenders as a result of the financial difficulties the Company was experiencing at that time.

Stock Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company adopted the revisions to CICA Handbook Section 3870 “Stock-
Based Compensation and Other Stock-Based Payments”. The revised section 3870 requires that the
fair value of common share purchase options, caliculated at the date of grant, are to be recorded in the
income statement over the vesting period of those grants. As the Company has retroactively applied
this standard without restatement of prior periods, there is no corresponding expense for the three
months ended March 31, 2003.



Discontinued Operations

During the fourth quarter of 2003, management and the Board conducted an internal analysis of all
aspects of the Company and concluded that certain of its assets and operations were no longer central
to the longer-term strategy of the Company. Discontinued operations during the first quarter included
the Company’s tool operations in Bolivia. In 2003 discontinued operations included Ackerman
International and the Company’s tool operations in Bolivia.

Net Loss and Loss per share

Overall, the Company recorded a net loss of $0.9 million ($0.02/share) during the first quarter of 2004
that compares to a loss of $1.2 million ($0.04/share in 2003). The first quarter 2004 after tax loss
included $0.6 million of non-cash expenses related to stock based compensation, $0.2 million of foreign
exchange losses primarily related to Venezuela associated with a devaluation of that country's currency,
and $0.7 million of negative earnings in Mexico and Argentina. Excluding the impact of these items,
NQL would have posted a small profit during the first quarter of 2004,

The amount of the per share loss in 2004 was impacted by the significant increase in the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding resulting from the significant number of shares issued in
late 2003 in conjunction with the financial restructuring of the Company.

Capital Resources, Liquidity and Share Capital

As at March 31, 2004, the Company had a working capital surplus of $26.4 million, unchanged from
December 31, 2003. As a result of a build in accounts receivable during the quarter, cash flow from
continuing operations was negative $2.2 million and was financed primarily by a corresponding increase
in the Company’s operating line of credit. At this time the Company has sufficient availability in its
operating lines of credit to meet the ongoing obligations of the Company.

At May 13, 2004, the Company had 42.6 million common shares, 3.4 million stock options (1.2 million
exercisable) and 0.1 million warrants (0.1 million exercisable), virtually unchanged from December 31,
2003.

Outlook

Land drilling activity levels in Canada and the United States are expected to remain very strong for the
remainder of 2004. In addition, management is beginning to see the benefits of the strategy to merge
the tool and bit divisions of the Company to serve the growing performance drilling market. However,
until offshore drilling activity improves in areas such as the Gulf of Mexico, the Company expects
demand for its Bi-Center drill bits to continue to be weak.

Although the Company did post a loss in the first quarter, management believes that the initiatives
undertaken to date, together with a strong focus on optimizing ongoing operations, will allow NQL to
return to profitability during 2004.

Other than as discussed herein, there are no material changes in other matters discussed in the
Company’s 2003 Management's Discussion and Analysis dated April 30, 2004.



NQL Drilling Tools Inc. is an industry leader in providing downhole tools, technology and services used
primarily in drilling applications in the oil and gas, environmental and utility industries on a worldwide
basis. NQL trades on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol NQL.A.

For further information please contact:

R. Dean Livingstone Kevin L. Nugent
President and CEO Sr. VP Finance and CFO
(780) 955-8828 (780) 955-8828
dean.livingstone@ngl.com kevin.nugent@ngl.com

Disciosure Regarding Forward — Looking Statements

Statements in this release relating to matters that are not historical facts are forward-locking statements. Such
forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties which may cause the actual results,
performances or achievements of NQL to be materially different from any future results implied by such forward-
looking statements. Such factors include fluctuations in the market for oil and gas related products and services,
demand for products and services in the drilling industry generally, political and economic conditions in countries in
which NQL does business, the ability of NQL to attract and retain key personnel, the demand for services and
products provided by NQL, and other factors which are described in further detail in NQL’s filings including NQL’s
annual reports.



NQL Drilling Tools Inc. Consolidated
Balance Sheet (Unaudited)

(Thousands of Canadian dollars)

March 31, 2004

December 31, 2003

ASSETS

CURRENT

Cash

Accounts receivable
Income taxes recoverable
Inventory

Prepaid expenses

Current assets held for sale

Other assets

Future income taxes

Capital assets

Deferred charges

Goodwill

Long-term assets held for sale

LIABILITIES
CURRENT

Bank indebtedness

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Income taxes payable

Cument portion of long-term debt
Current liabilities held for sale

Long-term debt
Future income taxes
Long-term liabilities held for sale

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Capital stock

Contributed surplus

Deficit

Cumuilative translation adjustment

$2,083
30,849
4,268
30,627
1,360
4,036

73223

698
6,867
79,008
5457
34,606
12,355

$212,214

$15,138
18,487
726
12218
286
46,855
23439
2238
54
72,586

181,537
3244
(26,830)
(18,323)
139,628
$212,214

$1,878
26,611
4937
30,763
881
6,003

71,073

673
7571
79,555
5222
34,390
12,235

$210,719

$12,579
19,004
662
11,602
762

44,699
23,861
3253
47

71,860

181473

(23,220)
(19,394)

138,859

$210,719




NQL Drilling Tools Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Operations
(Unaudited)

For the three months ended March 31,

(Thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data} 2004 2003
Revenue $27,368 $29,758
Direct expenses 15,808 15468
Gross Margin 11,560 14,290
Expenses
General and administrative 8401 9,524
Amortization 2,897 3,722
11,298 13,246
Income from continuing operations before undemoted 262 1,044
Interest expense (753) (1,927)
Stock based compensation (599) -
Foreign exchange loss (167) (921)
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes (1,257) (1,804)
Income tax (expense) recovery
Current (67) {(131)
Future 311 8950
244 819
Loss from continuing operations (1,013) (985)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes 67 (246)

Net loss

Loss per common share
Loss per common share from continuing operations
Basic and diluted

Loss per common share — net
Basic and diluted

Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic

Weighted average common shares outstanding - diluted

sy sumn |

$(0.02)

$(0.02)

42,611,064

42,611,064

$(0.04)

$(0.04
27,547,870
27,597,259




NQL Drilling Tools Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Deficit
(Unaudited)

For the three months ended March 31,

(Thousands of Canadian dollars) 2004 2003
(Deficit) retained eamings, beginning of period $  (23,220) $ 35909
Change in accounting policy (2,664) -
(Deficit) retained earnings, beginning of period, as restated (25,884) 35,909
Net loss for the period (946) (1,231)
(Deficit) retained eamings, end of period $ (26,830) $ 34678




NQL Drilling Tools Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
(Unaudited)

For the three months ended March 31,

(Thousands of Canadian dollars) 2004 2003
Net inflow (outflow) of cash related to the following
activities
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from continuing operations $ (1,013) $ (985)
Items not affecting cash
Amortization 2,897 372
Amortization of deferred financing costs 26 221
Stock-based compensation 599 -
Future income taxes (311) (950)
2,198 2,008
Net change in operating working capital items from continuing
operations (4,402) 1,632
Cash from continuing operations (2,204) 3,640
Cash from discontinued operations 1,586 1,596
Total cash (used in) provided by operating activities (618) 5,236
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Bank indebtedness — net 2,559 238
Issuance of capital stock 45 87
Proceeds from long-term debt 34,840 720
Repayment of long-term debt (34,455) (1,211)
Cash used in discontinued operations (423) (733)
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities 2,566 ~(899)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Other assets (29) 42
Deferred charges (498) (250)
Purchase of capital assets (1,637) (4,463)
Cash provided by discontinued operations 421 15
Cash used in investing activities (1,743) (4,656)
Increase (decrease) in cash 205 (319)
Cash, beginning of period 1,878 1,140
Cash, end of period $ 2,083 $ 821
Supplementary disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paid $ 919 $2,159

Income taxes (received) paid

___ seen s




00 iy e
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS e B

FEICE OF jriven

. . . ~ FiTeees .
First Quarter Operations Review Coppg PAT : VAT Ga il

Ff"‘,x A

u.’l,’!CE

First quarter revenue declined in 2004 versus 2003 primarily due to continued slow activity levels in the Guif of
Mexico that reduced sales for the Company's Bit Division. NQL's Bi-Center Bit product line in particular is dependant
upon offshore drilling activity in areas such as the Gulf of Mexico. Ignoring the impact from one individual motor sale
in 2003, revenue from the Company’s Tool Division was up year-over-year, while the Fishing Division continued to
post strong results in response to high drilling rig counts in Canada and the continued growth of its business in the
United States.

Revenue

Revenue during the first quarter of 2004 included $15.8 million (2003 - $16.2 million) from the Tool Division, $5.2
million (2003 - $7.6 million) from the Bit Division and $6.5 million (2003 - $6.0 million) from the Fishing Division.
Geographically, revenue during the first quarter of 2004 in the Tool Division was broken down between $4.8 million
(2003 - $6.3 million) in Canada, $7.2 million (2003 - $6.5 million) in the United States and $3.8 million (2003 - $3.4
million) from various international locations, the largest of which were Venezuela at $1.2 million (2003 - $0.2 million)
and Holland at $1.2 miillion (2003 - $0.9 million).

Revenue from the Tool Division in Canada during the first quarter of 2003 included a large motor sale that was not
replicated during the first quarter of 2004 and accounted for the largest portion of the year-over-year decline in
Canadian Tool revenue.

Expenses and Margins

Gross margins for the first quarter of 2004 were 42 percent compared to 48 percent in the comparable period of
2003. Margins declined in 2004 when compared to 2003 as a result of poor results in Argentina and Mexico where
revenue levels declined dramatically in a market where the cost structure is largely fixed. In addition, effective
January 1, 2004, the Company determined that certain engineering and support costs related to its EM-MWD product
line should be treated as direct costs as opposed to general and administrative costs. This change is consistent with
the shift in strategic focus for this product line from a rental/leasing model to a system sale model.

G&A

Administrative costs for the first quarter declined from $9.5 million in 2003 to $8.4 million in 2004. This decline was
the result of cost cutting initiatives implemented in early 2004, as well as the impact of the reclassification of certain
expenses related to the Company’'s EM-MWD system from general and administrative to direct expenses to reflect
the changing strategic focus of the Company related to this tool.

Amortization

Amortization expense declined from $3.7 million during the first quarter of 2003 to $2.9 million in the comparable
2004 period. This decline is primarily a result of the requirements under Canadian GAAP to cease depreciating
assets once they are classified as being held for sale. During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company announced its
intention to dispose of several business units and capital assets in conjunction with its overall restructuring efforts at
which time a significant dollar value of capital assets were reclassified as being held for sale. These assets are
carried at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value net of estimated disposition costs.

Interest

Interest expense during the first quarter was $0.8 million, a significant decline from the $1.9 million recorded in the
same period of 2003. The reduction in interest expense was primarily due to a significant decrease in debt levels
resulting from the proceeds of two equity issues in late 2003. In addition, during early 2003 the Company was
incurring punitive interest costs and fees charged by its then existing lenders as a result of the financial difficulties the
Company was experiencing at that time.

1. f



Stock Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company adopted the revisions to CICA Handbook Section 3870 “Stock-Based
Compensation and Other Stock-Based Payments”. The revised section 3870 requires that the fair value of common
share purchase options, calculated at the date of grant, are to be recorded in the income statement over the vesting
period of those grants. As the Company has retroactively applied this standard without restatement of prior periods,
there is no corresponding expense for the three months ended March 31, 2003.

Discontinued Operations

During the fourth quarter of 2003, management and the Board conducted an internal analysis of all aspects of the
Company and concluded that certain of its assets and operations were no longer central to the longer-term strategy
of the Company. Discontinued operations during the first quarter included the Company’s tool operations in Bolivia.
In 2003 discontinued operations included Ackerman International and the Company's tool operations in Bolivia.

Net Loss and Loss per share

Overall, the Company recorded a net loss of $0.9 million ($0.02/share) during the first quarter of 2004 that compares
to a loss of $1.2 million ($0.04/share in 2003). The first quarter 2004 after tax loss included $0.6 million of non-cash
expenses related to stock based compensation, $0.2 million of foreign exchange losses primarily related to
Venezuela associated with a devaluation of that country’s currency, and $0.7 million of negative earnings in Mexico
and Argentina. Excluding the impact of these items, NQL would have posted a small profit during the first quarter of
2004.

The amount of the per share loss in 2004 was impacted by the significant increase in the weighted average number
of common shares outstanding resuiting from the significant number of shares issued in late 2003 in conjunction with
the financial restructuring of the Company.

Capital Resources, Liquidity and Share Capital

As at March 31, 2004, the Company had a working capital surplus of $26.4 million, unchanged from December 31,
2003. As a result of a build in accounts receivable during the quarter, cash flow from continuing operations was
negative $2.2 million and was financed primarily by a corresponding increase in the Company’s operating line of
credit. At this time the Company has sufficient availability in its operating lines of credit to meet the ongoing
obligations of the Company.

At May 14, 2004, the Company had 42.6 million common shares, 3.4 million stock options (1.2 million exercisable)
and 0.1 million warrants (0.1 million exercisable), virtuaily unchanged from December 31, 2003.

Outlook

Land drilling activity levels in Canada and the United States are expected to remain very strong for the remainder of
2004. |n addition, management is beginning to see the benefits of the strategy to merge the tool and bit divisions of
the Company to serve the growing performance drilling market. However, until offshore drilling activity improves in
areas such as the Gulf of Mexico, the Company expects demand for its Bi-Center drill bits to continue to be weak.

Although the Company did post a loss in the first quarter, management believes that the initiatives undertaken to
date, together with a strong focus on optimizing ongoing operations, will allow NQL to return to profitability during
2004.

Other than as discussed herein, there are no material changes in other matters discussed in the Company's 2003
Management's Discussion and Analysis dated April 30, 2004.
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

MESSAGE TO SHAREHOLDERS
UPDATE ON STRATEGIC PROCESS

As previously announced, NQL has formed a special committee of the Board of Directors to consider
various options that may be available to the Company to enhance shareholder value. The special
committee has retained Simmons & Company International, a Houston based investment banking firm
specializing in the energy industry, to assist the Board of Directors in considering and evaluating
strategic alternatives.

At this time NQL is continuing to investigate options available to it, including a possible sale of the
Company. To that end, NQL has entered into confidentiality agreements with several interested parties
in advance of possible discussions concerning a transaction. The Company expects that should a sale
or other transaction be pursued, any such transaction would be publicly announced at some point in the
next 90 days.

FIRST QUARTER HIGHLIGHTS

Highlights for the quarter include:

o Closed previously announced sale of Ackerman International for total proceeds of US$1.4
million;

¢ Negotiated sale of the Company's RT| casing exit tool for total proceeds of US$0.6 million.
Closing of this transaction occurred in April;

s Completed the merger of the Company’s Tool and Bit divisions under one marketing umbrella to
take advantage of the Company’s worldwide sales infrastructure and to increase marketing focus
on the expanding performance drilling market. NQL is uniquely positioned to offer performance
drilling systems which involve the provision of a downhole mud motor paired with a fit-for-purpose
drill bit;

¢ Completed a refinancing of the Company’s long-term debt and other credit facilities; and

e Implemented the preliminary steps in a cost rationalization program.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
First Quarter Operations Review
First quarter revenue declined in 2004 versus 2003 primarily due to continued slow activity levels in the
Gulf of Mexico that reduced sales for the Company's Bit Division. NQL's Bi-Center Bit product line in
particular is dependant upon offshore drilling activity in areas such as the Gulf of Mexico. lgnoring the
impact from one individual motor sale in 2003, revenue from the Company’s Tool Division was up year-

over-year, while the Fishing Division continued to post strong results in response to high drilling rig
counts in Canada and the continued growth of its business in the United States.



Revenue

Revenue during the first quarter of 2004 included $15.8 million (2003 - $16.2 million) from the Tool
Division, $5.2 million (2003 - $7.6 million) from the Bit Division and $6.5 million (2003 - $6.0 million) from
the Fishing Division. Geographically, revenue during the first quarter of 2004 in the Tool Division was
broken down between $4.8 million (2003 - $6.3 million) in Canada, $7.2 million (2003 - $6.5 million) in
the United States and $3.8 million (2003 - $3.4 million) from various international locations, the largest of
which were Venezuela at $1.2 million (2003 - $0.2 million) and Holland at $1.2 million (2003 - $0.9
million).

Revenue from the Tool Division in Canada during the first quarter of 2003 included a large motor sale
that was not replicated during the first quarter of 2004 and accounted for the largest portion of the year-
over-year decline in Canadian Tool revenue.

Expenses and Margins

Gross margins for the first quarter of 2004 were 42 percent compared to 48 percent in the comparable
period of 2003. Margins declined in 2004 when compared to 2003 as a result of poor results in
Argentina and Mexico where revenue levels declined dramatically in a market where the cost structure is
largely fixed. In addition, effective January 1, 2004, the Company determined that certain engineering
and support costs related to its EM-MWD product line should be treated as direct costs as opposed to
general and administrative costs. This change is consistent with the shift in strategic focus for this
product line from a rental/leasing model to a system sale model.

G&A

Administrative costs for the first quarter declined from $9.5 million in 2003 to $8.4 million in 2004. This
decline was the resuit of cost cutting initiatives implemented in early 2004, as well as the impact of the
reclassification of certain expenses related to the Company's EM-MWD system from general and
administrative to direct expenses to reflect the changing strategic focus of the Company related to this
tool.

Amortization

Amortization expense declined from $3.7 miliion during the first quarter of 2003 to $2.9 million in the
comparable 2004 period. This decline is primarily a result of the requirements under Canadian GAAP to
cease depreciating assets once they are classified as being held for sale. During the fourth quarter of
2003, the Company announced its intention to dispose of several business units and capital assets in
conjunction with its overall restructuring efforts at which time a significant dollar value of capital assets
were reclassified as being held for sale. These assets are carried at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value net of estimated disposition costs.

Interest

Interest expense during the first quarter was $0.8 million, a significant decline from the $1.9 million
recorded in the same period of 2003. The reduction in interest expense was primarily due to a
significant decrease in debt levels resulting from the proceeds of two equity issues in late 2003. In
addition, during early 2003 the Company was incurring punitive interest costs and fees charged by its
then existing lenders as a result of the financial difficulties the Company was experiencing at that time.

Stock Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company adopted the revisions to CICA Handbook Section 3870 “Stock-
Based Compensation and Other Stock-Based Payments”. The revised section 3870 requires that the
fair value of common share purchase options, calculated at the date of grant, are to be recorded in the
income statement over the vesting period of those grants. As the Company has retroactively applied
this standard without restatement of prior periods, there is no corresponding expense for the three
months ended March 31, 2003.



Discontinued Operations

During the fourth quarter of 2003, management and the Board conducted an internal analysis of all
aspects of the Company and concluded that certain of its assets and operations were no longer central
to the longer-term strategy of the Company. Discontinued operations during the first quarter included
the Company's tool operations in Bolivia. In 2003 discontinued operations included Ackerman
International and the Company’s tool operations in Bolivia.

Net Loss and Loss per share

Overall, the Company recorded a net loss of $0.9 million ($0.02/share) during the first quarter of 2004
that compares to a loss of $1.2 million ($0.04/share in 2003). The first quarter 2004 after tax loss
included $0.6 million of non-cash expenses related to stock based compensation, $0.2 million of foreign
exchange losses primarily related to Venezuela associated with a devaluation of that country’s currency,
and $0.7 million of negative earnings in Mexico and Argentina. Excluding the impact of these items,
NQL would have posted a small profit during the first quarter of 2004,

The amount of the per share loss in 2004 was impacted by the significant increase in the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding resuiting from the significant number of shares issued in
late 2003 in conjunction with the financial restructuring of the Company.

Capital Resources, Liquidity and Share Capital

As at March 31, 2004, the Company had a working capital surplus of $26.4 million, unchanged from
December 31, 2003. As a result of a build in accounts receivable during the quarter, cash flow from
continuing operations was negative $2.2 million and was financed primarily by a corresponding increase
in the Company’s operating line of credit. At this time the Company has sufficient availability in its
operating lines of credit to meet the ongoing obligations of the Company.

At May 14, 2004, the Company had 42.6 million common shares, 3.4 million stock options (1.2 miliion
exercisable) and 0.1 million warrants (0.1 million exercisable), virtually unchanged from December 31,
2003.

Outlook

Land drilling activity levels in Canada and the United States are expected to remain very strong for the
remainder of 2004. In addition, management is beginning to see the benefits of the strategy to merge
the tool and bit divisions of the Company to serve the growing performance drilling market. However,
until offshore drilling activity improves in areas such as the Gulf of Mexico, the Company expects
demand for its Bi-Center drill bits to continue to be weak.

Although the Company did post a loss in the first quarter, management believes that the initiatives
undertaken to date, together with a strong focus on optimizing ongoing operations, will allow NQL to
return to profitability during 2004.

Other than as discussed herein, there are no material changes in other matters discussed in the
Company’s 2003 Management's Discussion and Analysis dated April 30, 2004,



NQL Drilling Tools Inc. Consolidated
Balance Sheet (Unaudited)

(Thousands of Canadian dollars)

March 31, 2004 December 31, 2003

ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash $2,083 $1,878
Accounts receivable 30,849 26,611
Income taxes recoverable 4,268 4937
Inventory 30,627 30,763
Prepaid expenses 1,360 881
Current assets held for sale (note 4) 4036 6,003

73223 71,073
Other assets 698 673
Future income taxes 6,867 7571
Capitaf assets 79,008 79,555
Deferred charges 5457 5222
Goodwill (note 7) 34,606 34,390
Long-term assets held for sale (note 4} 12,355 12,235

$212,214 $210,719

LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Bank indebtedness $15,138 $12579
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 18,487 18,094
Income taxes payable 726 662
Current portion of long-term debt (note 5) 12,218 11,602
Current liabilities heid for sale (note 4) 286 762

46,855 44,699
Long-term debt (note 5) 23439 23,861
Future income taxes 2238 3,253
Long-term liabilities held for sale (note 4) L 47

T 725% e

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital stock (note 6) 181,537 181,473
Contributed surplus {note 3) 3244 -
Deficit (note 3) (26,830) (23,220)
Cumulative translation adjustment (note 8) {(18,323) (19,394)

139,628 138,859
$212214 $210,719




NQL Drilling Tools Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Operations
(Unaudited)

For the three months ended March 31,

(Thousands of Canadian dollars, axcept share and per share data) 2004 2003
Revenue $27,368 $29,758
Direct expenses 15,808 15,468
Gross Margin 11,560 14,290
Expenses
General and administrative 8401 9,524
Amortization 2,897 3722
11,298 13,246
Income from continuing operations before undemoted 262 1,044
Interest expense (753) (1,927)
Stock based compensation (note 3) (599) -
Foreign exchange loss (167) (921)
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes ~(1,257) (1,804)
Income tax {expense) recovery
Current (67) (131)
Future 311 950
244 819
Loss from continuing operations (1,013) (985)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes (note 4) 67 (248)
Net loss $(946) $(1,231)
Loss per common share
Loss per common share from continuing operations
Basic and diluted $(0.02) $(0.04)
Loss per common share - net
Basic and diluted $(0.02) $(0.04)
Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic 42,611,064 27,547,870
Weighted average common shares outstanding ~ diluted 42,611,064 27,597,259

NQL Drilling Tools Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Deficit
(Unaudited)

For the three months ended March 31,

(Thousands of Canadian dollars) 2004 2003
(Deficit) retained eamings, beginning of period $  (23,220) $ 35909
Change in accounting policy (note 3) (2,664) -
(Deficit) retained eamings, beginning of period, as restated (25,884) 35,909
Net loss for the period (946) (1,231)
(Deficit) retained eamings, end of period $  (26,830) $ 34678




NQL Drilling Tools Inc.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
(Unaudited)

For the three months ended March 31,

(Thousands of Canadian dollars) 2004 2003
Net inflow (outflow} of cash related to the following
activities
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from continuing operations $ (1,013) $ (985)
items not affecting cash
Amortization 2,897 3722
Amortization of deferred financing costs 26 221
Stock-based compensation (note 3) 59 -
Future income taxes (311) (950)
2,198 2,008
Net changa in operating working capital items from continuing
operations (4,402) 1,632
Cash from continuing operations (2,204) 3,640
Cash from discontinued operations 1,586 1,696
Total cash (used in) provided by operating activities (618) 5,236
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Bank indebtedness — net 2,559 238
Issuance of capital stock 45 87
Proceeds from long-term debt 34,840 720
Repayment of long-term debt (34,455) (1,211)
Cash used in discontinued operations (423) (733)
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities 2,566 (899)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Other assets (29) 42
Deferred charges (498) (250}
Purchase of capital assets (1,837) (4,463)
Cash provided by discontinued operations 421 15
Cash used in investing activities (1,743) (4,656
Increase (decrease) in cash 205 (319)
Cash, beginning of period 1,878 1,140
Cash, end of period $ 2,083 $821
Supplementary disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paid $ 919 $2,159
Income taxes (received) paid $ (387) $ 418




NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2004

(Thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)
(Unaudited)

1.

Basis of Presentation

These interim consolidated financial statements of NQL Drilling Tools Inc. (“the Company”) have been
prepared by management in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. These
interim consolidated financial statements follow the same accounting policies and methods as the December
31, 2003 consolidated financial statements. These interim consolidated financial statements should be read
in conjunction with the Company's consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto for the year
ended December 31, 2003.

Continuation of the Business

These interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles
applicable to a going concern. The Company has experienced adverse conditions and events, which cast
doubt upon the validity of this assumption.

During fiscal 2003, the Company took several steps to improve its liquidity and working capital position and

restore its financial stability. These steps included closing a $10,000 liquidity loan (fully repaid January 29,

2004) with a significant shareholder of the Company, a private placement issuance of 7.9 million common

;hare;zfor net proceeds of $23,706 and a rights offering for 7.1 million common shares for net proceeds of
21,522,

In January 2004, the Company completed a $55,000 debt refinancing package with HSBC Bank Canada
($35,000) and HSBC Bank USA (U.S. $15,000). This new debt refinancing package was used to retire
certain debt facilities existing at December 31, 2003 as described in Note 5.

Management believes the financings described above have restored the financial stability of the Company.
However, the validity of the going concern assumption is dependent upon the Company's ability to restore
and maintain profitable operations.

If the going concern were not appropriate for these consolidated financial statements, then the adjustments
would be necessary in the carrying values of assets and liabilities, the reported net earnings and the
balance sheet classifications used.

Change in accounting policy
Stock-based compensation

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company adopted the revisions to CICA Handbook Section 3870 “Stock-
Based Compensation and Other Stock-Based Payments”. The revised section 3870 requires that the fair
value of common share purchase options is calculated at the date of grant and that value is recorded in the
financial statements over the vesting period of those grants. The Company has retroactively applied this
standard, without restatement of prior periods. Accordingly, on January 1, 2004, the deficit was increased
by $2,664, contributed surplus was increased by $2,645 and capital stock was increased by $19 to account
for the stock option expense that would have been charged to earnings in 2002 and 2003 with respect to all
options granted since January 1, 2002. [n the first quarter of 2004, compensation expense related to stock
options was $599.

If the Company had expensed the fair value of options in the prior period, the net loss and loss per share
would have been increased to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

For the 3 months
ended Mar. 31, 2003

Net loss applicable to com mon shareholders, as reported $ 1,231
Pro forma net los s applicable to common shareholders 1,517
Net loss per common share, as reported - basic and diluted (0.04)

Pro forma net los s per common share - basic and diluted (0.06)




NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2004

(Thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)
(Unaudited)

3. Change in accounting policy (continued)

The fair value of each option grant by the Company was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model assuming no dividends are paid on common shares, a risk-free interest rate of 4.14% (2003 -
4.35%), an average life of five years, and a volatility of 57.36% (2003 — 52.66%). The amounts computed,
according to the Black-Scholes pricing model, may not be indicative of the actual values realized upon the
exercise of these options by the holders.

Discontinued operations

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted on a prospective basis new CICA Handbook Section 3475
“Disposal of Long-Lived Assets and Discontinued Operations”. Long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale
are classified as held for sale in the period in which a formal plan of disposal has been approved, the
assets are available for immediate sale and are actively being marketed and it is expected that the sale will
occur within one year. Long-lived assets to be abandoned are classified as held and used until they are
disposed of. Long-lived assets classified as held for sale are carried at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value net of estimated disposition costs. Losses are recognized immediately where the carrying
value exceeds fair value and gains are recognized at the time of sale.

The results of discontinued operations are reported separately, including gains or losses related to the
disposal of reiated long-lived assets held for sale or disposal. Future costs associated with an exit or
disposal activity are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.

4. Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

Discontinued operations

(@) On February 5, 2004, the Company sold substantially all of the assets and liabilities related to
Ackerman International Corp. for total proceeds of U.S. $1,425. The effective date of the sale was
January 1, 2004. Accordingly, the results of these operations have been accounted for on a
discontinued basis and the related net assets classified as held for sale. In accordance with CICA
Handbook Section 3475, the Company determined that the net proceeds were less than the net book
value of the net assets sold as at December 31, 2003 and adjusted the carrying values accordingly.
As such, there was no gain or ioss recorded on the sale during the first quarter of 2004. Current and
prior year's operating results, cash flows and balance sheet for this business are presented separately
as discontinued operations in these interim consolidated financial statements.

(b) On December 19, 2003, a formal pian to dispose of the Company’s Bolivian operations was approved
by the Board of Directors. The assets of these operations are available for immediate sale and are
actively being marketed. It is expected that a sale will accur within one year. At December 31, 2003,
the Company determined that the net book value of the Bolivian net assets were greater than the
estimated net proceeds from sale and adjusted the carrying values accordingly. The results of
operations have been accounted for on a discontinued basis and the related net assets classified as
held for sale. Current and prior year's operating results, cash flows and balance sheet for these
operations are presented separately as discontinued operations in these interim consolidated financial
statements.

Assets held for Sale

In April 2004, the Company sold its 20% investment in RTI, LLC. and related RT! assets for total proceeds
of U.S. $600. RT! was an entity that had developed proprietary technology related to certain casing exiting
systems. At December 31, 2003, these assets were written down to fair value net of estimated disposition
costs. For reporting purposes, these assets have been presented separately as current assets held for
sale.



NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2004

(Thousands of Canadian dofllars, except share and per share data)
(Unaudited)

4, Discontinued operations and assets held for sale (continued)

On December 19, 2003, the Board of Directors of the Company approved formal plans to dispose of the
Company's EM MWD wireless guidance assets and related technology, and certain of the Company's
research and development equipment (test rig). These assets are available for immediate sale and are
actively being marketed. It is expected that a sale will occur within one year. At December 31, 2003,
these assets were written down to estimated fair value net of dispasition costs. For reporting purposes,
these assets have been presented separately as assets held for sale.

Amounts included in the consolidated balance sheets relating to discontinued operations and the assets
held for sale are as follows:

March 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Ackerman Bolivia Total Ackerman Bolivia Total
Current assets held for sale
Discontinued operations
Cash $ - $ 225 % 225 $ 454 $ 153 $ 607
Accounts receivable - 236 236 666 232 898
Inventory - 625 625 462 748 1,210
Prepaids - 84 84 5 36 41
Capital as sets - - - 421 - 421
- 1,170 1,170 2,008 1,169 3,177
Assets held for sale
EM inventory 2,145 2,114
RTl inventory 431 425
Other assets (1) 290 287
2,866 2,826
Current assets held for sale $ 4,036 $ 6,003
Long-term assets held for sale
Discontinued operations
Capital as sets $ - $ 1,876 $ 1,876 $ - $ 1857 $ 1,857
Assets held for sale
Capital assets - EM 9,313 9,216
Deferred charges - EM 366 362
Research and development equipment (test rig) 800 800
10,479 10,378

Long-term assets held for sale . $ 12,355 $ 12,235
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2004

(Thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)
{Unaudited)

4, Discontinued operations and assets held for sale (continued)

March 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Ackerman Bolivia Total Ackerman Bolivia Total
Current liabilities held for sale
Discontinued operations
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ - $ 286 $ 286 $ 219 § 112 8 331
Bank indebtedness - - - 431 - 431
$ - $ 286 $ 286 $ 650 $ 112§ 762
Long-term liabilities held for sale
Discontinued operations
Long-term debt 3 - $ 54 § 54 3 - $ 47 § 47

(1) Other assets include the Company's 20% investment in RTI, LLC (RTI), a company formed to
develop technology related to a new downhole tool.

Results of discontinued operations are as follows:

For the 3 months March 31,2004 Forthe 3 months March 31,2003
Ackerman  Bolivia Total Ackerman  Bolivia Total
Revenue $ - $ 363§ 363 $ 1881 § 375 § 2256

Income (loss) from discontinued operations $ - § 67 $ 67 $ 86 § (332) $  (246)




NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Three months ended March 31, 2004
(Thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)
(Unaudited)

5. Long-term debt
March 31, December 31,
2004 2003

Canadian term (oan, payable in quarterly principal payments of $1,250

beginning April 30, 2004 and due January 31, 2007, bearing interest at

prime plus 1.25% and secured by a general security agreement providing

first charge on all assets of the Company and its Canadian and U.S. subsidiaries $ 15,000 $ -

U.S. refinancing loan, payable in quartedy principal payments of U.S. $625

beginning April 30, 2004 and due January 31, 2007, bearing interest at

U.S. prime plus 1.25% and secured by a general security agree ment providing

first charge on all assets of the Companys U.S. subsidiaries 9,811 -

U.S. term loan, payable in full on July 31, 2005 except U.S. $3,750 (U.S. $2,450 after

application of proceeds from the Ackermaninternational and RTI sale), which is

due October 31, 2004, bearing interestat U.S. prime plus 1.25% and secured

by a general security agreement providing first charge on dl assets of the

Company's U.S. subsidiarnes 8,502 -

Mortgage, payable in monthly payments of U.S. $13 beginning
April 30, 2003, matures on February 29, 2008, bearing

interest at 6.5%, and secured by afirstcharge on the subject
real estate 1,446 1,461

Promissory note, payable in monthly payments of U.S. $11
secured by as sets in the Company's Mexican subsidiary 286 371

instalment sale agreement, payable in monthly payments of

U.S. $4, maturing on July 31, 2011, bearing interest at 5%, and

secured by the subject real estate 340 346
Vehicle loans and leases payable, interestrates varying from nil to

15%, due on dates ranging from January 2004 to February 2006,

and secured by specific assets 77 93
Capital loan, repaid January 29, 2004 - 12,000
Bank indebtedness, repaid January 29, 2004 - 11,5562
Liquidity Note, repaid in January 29, 2004 - 6,000

Bridge Loan, repaid January 29, 2004 - 3,426

Other 195 214

35,657 35,463
Less cument portion 12,218 11,602

$ 23,439 § 23,861
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Three months ended March 31, 2004

(Thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)
{Unaudited)

5. Long-term debt (continued)

On January 29, 2004, the Company completed a debt refinancing package with HSBC Bank Canada and
HSBC Bank USA. Under the terms of this new agreement, HSBC Bank Canada provided a $15,000 term loan
(“Canadian Term Loan") and a $20,000 (maximum limit) operating loan and HSBC Bank USA provided a U.S.
$7,500 refinancing loan (“U.S. Refinancing Loan”) and a U.S. $7,500 term loan (“U.S. Term Loan”).

The proceeds of the January 29, 2004 long-term financings were used to repay the capital loan ($12,000), the

liquidity note ($6,000), the bridge loan ($3,426), and bank indebtedness ($11,552).

In February 2004, the Company repaid U.S. $1,000 of the U.S. Term Loan from the proceeds of the Ackerman
International sale. in April 2004, the Company repaid U.S. $300 of the U.S. Term Loan from the proceeds of
the RTI sale. These payments will reduce the Company's October 31, 2004 payment obligation under this

loan.

6. Capital stock

Issued Number Amount
Common Shares
Clas s A common shares
Balance at December 31, 2003 42,600,844 $ 180,665
Change in accounting policy (note 3) - 19
Stock options exercised 15,000 45
Balance atMarch 31, 2004 42,615,844 180,729
Warrants
Balance at December 31, 2003 179,535 808
Cancelled or expired (35,849) -
Balance atthe March 31, 2004 143,686 808
$ 181,537
Options
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 3,471,165
Cancelled or expired (35,500)
Exercised (15,000)
Outstanding at March 31, 2004 3,420,665




NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Three months ended March 31, 2004
(Thousands of Canadian doliars, except share and per share data)

(Unaudited)

Goodwill
Balance, at December 31, 2003 $34,390
Foreign exchange 216
Balance, at March 31, 2004 $34,606

Cumulative Translation Adjustment

The cumulative translation adjustment represents the net unrealized foreign currency translation loss on the
Company’s net investment in self-sustaining foreign operations.

Balance, at December 31, 2003 $19,394
Unrealized gain for the period on translation of net investment 1,071
Balance, at March 31, 2004 $18,323

The change in cumulative translation adjustment is primarily related to the change in the rate of exchange
between the Canadian dollar and the U.S. dollar, and the effect this change has on the assets and liabilities
of the Company’s self-sustaining foreign subsidiaries.

Segmented Information

During 2003, the Company restructured its organizational and internal reporting structures in a manner that
caused the composition of its reportable segments to change. The Company now segments its business
activities into three operating segments (Tools, Bits and Fishing) and a corporate segment. Comparative
figures for 2003 have been adjusted accordingly to reflect the change in reportable segments.

The Tools Segment operates in Canada, the United States and several international locations. The Segment
designs, manufactures, services and sells downhole drilling motors, EM MWD wireless guidance systems,
drilling jars, shock subs, and a number of other downhole tools and services.

The Bits Segment designs, manufactures, and markets PDC and Natural Diamond Bits on a worldwide basis.

The Fishing Segment provides downhole fishing, milling and casing exit services under its CanFish Services
product line primarily in Canada and the United States.

For the three months ended Tools Bits Fishing Corporate Consolidated
March 31, 2004

Revenue $15,752 $5,156 $6,460 - $27,368
Divisional income (loss) $153 $(180) $1,232 $(943) $262
Total assets $138,783 $40,066 $23,584 $9,781 $212214
Goodwill $2,927 $20973 $10,706 - $34,606
Capital expenditures $1,146 --- $491 -— $1,637




NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Three months ended March 31, 2004
(Thousands of Canadian dollars, except share and per share data)

.14,

(Unaudited)

9. Segmented Information (continued)
For the three months ended Tools Bits Fishing Corporate Consolidated
March 31, 2003
Revenue $16,184 $7,612 $5,962 - $29,758
Divisional income (loss) $147 $329 $1,313 ($745) $1,044
Total assets $201,872 $60,886 $25,951 $5,180 $293,889
Goodwill $2 247 $37.403 $10,706 $70,356
Capital expenditures $4,007 $68 $388 - $4,463

The Company operates in the following geographical segments. Revenue is attributed to these geographical

segments based on the country from which the product or service originates.

For the three months For the three months
ended March 31, 2004 ended March 31, 2003
Revenue
Canada $10,361 $11,846
United States 13,244 14,530
tntemational 3,763 3,382
$27,368 $29,758
Capital assets
Canada $35,155 $41804
United States 28,073 30,131
Intemational 15,780 20,056
$79,008 $91,991
Goodwill
Canada $13.633 $32,953
United States 20,973 37403
$34,606 $70,356
10. Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current period’'s presentation.
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Disclosure Regarding Forward ~ Looking Statements

Statements in this interim report relating to matters that are not historical facts are forward-looking statements.
Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties which may cause the actual
results, performances or achievements of NQL to be materially different from any future results implied by such
forward-looking statements. Such factors include fluctuations in the market for oil and gas related products and
services, demand for products and services in the drilling industry generally, political and economic conditions in
countries in which NQL does business, the ability of NQL to attract and retain key personnel, the demand for
services and products provided by NQL, and other factors which are described in further detail in NQL’s filings
including NQL'’s annual reports.
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R. Tim Swinton' HEAD OFFICE
Chairman NQL Drilling Tools Inc.
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Glen D. Roane' AUDITORS
Director Deloitte & Touche LLP
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Thomas R. Bates, Jr.'
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For further information please contact:
Dean Livingstone, President and CEO or Kevin Nugent, Senior Vice-President Finance, Chief
Financial Officer & Corporate Secretary

1507 — 4th Street 1507 - 4th Street

Nisku, Alberta, T9E 7M9 Nisku, Alberta, TSE 7MS
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Facsimile: (780) 955-3309 Facsimile: (780) 955-3309
e-mail:  dean.livingstone@ngl.com e-mail: . kevin.nugent@ngl.com
THE COMPANY

NQL Drilling Tools Inc is an industry leader in providing downhole tools and technology used primarily in drilling
applications in the oil and gas, environmental and utility industries on a worldwide basis. NQL Drilling Tools Inc.
shares are traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol; “NQL.A".




Form 52 - 109FT2 - Certification of Interim Filings during Transition

I, Kevin L. Nugent, Senior Vice President Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary, NQL
Drilling Tools Inc., certify that:

1. T have reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 52-109
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of NQL Drilling Tools Inc.
(the “issuer”) for the interim period ended March 31, 2004;

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not
misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect to the period
covered by the interim filings; and

3. Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other financial
information included in the interim filings fairly present, in all material respects, the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods
presented in the interim filings.

May 14" 2004

{s/ Kevin L. Nugent
Kevin L. Nugent

Senior Vice President Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary




Form 52 — 109FT2 - Certification of Interim Filings during Transition Period

I, R. Dean Livingstone, President and Chief Executive Officer, NQL Drilling Tools Inc., certify that:

1. T have reviewed the interim filings (as this term is defined in Mulitilateral Instrument 52-109
Certification of Disclosure in Issuers’ Annual and Interim Filings) of NQL Drilling Tools Inc.
(the “issuer™) for the interim period ended March 31, 2004;

2. Based on my knowledge, the interim filings do not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement not
misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made, with respect to the period
covered by the interim filings; and

3. Based on my knowledge, the interim financial statements together with the other financial
information included in the interim filings fairly present, in all material respects, the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the issuer, as of the date and for the periods
presented in the interim filings.

May 14", 2004

/s/ R. Dean Livingstone
R. Dean Livingstone
President and Chief Executive Officer.




DRILLING TOOLS inc.

May 14, 2004

The Ontario Securities Commission

The Alberta Securities Commission

The British Columbia Securities Commission
The Quebec Securities Commission

The Manitoba Securities Commission

The Nova Scotia Securities Commission

Dear Sirs:

Please accept this letter as written confirmation that NQL Drilling Tools Inc.’s first quarter report
for the three months ended March 31, 2004 has been distributed to all parties listed on the
supplemental mailing list. The date of mailing was May 14, 2004.

Sincerely,

“signed by"
Susan Foote
Assistant Corporate Secretary



NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC. MUY 25 P 10y
1507 — 4™ Street ' '
Nisku, Alberta

T9E M9

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting (the “Meeting”) of the holders of Class “A” common
shares (the “Common Shares™) in the capital of NQL Drilling Tools Inc. (the "Company"), will be held at the
Sheraton Suites Calgary Eau Claire (Willow Room), 255 Barclay Parade SW, Calgary, Alberta T2P 5C2 on
Tuesday, the 29" day of June, at the hour of 2:00 o'clock in the afternoon for the purposes of:

1. appointing Deloitte & Touche LLP as Auditors for the ensuing year and to authorize the Directors to fix
the remuneration to be paid to the Auditors.

2. setting the number of Directors for the ensuing year at seven (7).

3. electing Directors for the ensuing year,

4. transacting such other business as may properly be transacted at such meeting or at any adjournment
thereof.

Details of all matters proposed to be put before the Meeting are set forth in the accompanying Information Circular.

Holders of record of Common Shares at the close of business on May 12, 2004 will be entitled to vote at the
Meeting. ‘

Shareholders who are unable to attend the Meeting or any adjournment thereof in person and who wish to
ensure that their Common Shares will be voted are requested to complete, sign and mail the enclosed form
of proxy in accordance with the instructions set out in the form of proxy and in the Information Circular,
and return it to the Corporation ¢/o CIBC Mellon Trust Company at 600, 333 — 7th Avenue S.W., Calgary,
Alberta T2P 2Z1, at least 48 hours before the time of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof or with the
chairman of the Meeting on the day of the Meeting. or any adjournment thereof prior to the commencement
of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof, in order to be valid for use at the Meeting.

Shareholders holding Common Shares registered in the name of a broker or another intermediary should complete
and return the proxy or other authorization form provided to such shareholder by their brokers or other.
intermediaries in accordance with the instructions provided to them in order for their vote to be counted at the
Meeting.

DATED at Nisku, Alberta, this 12" day of May, 2004,

By Order of the Board Of Directors

(signed)
R. Dean Livingstone
President and Chief Executive Officer

We ask that you promptly sign, date and return the enclosed proxy in the envelope provided if it is not your intention to be present af the meeting.
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DRILLING TOOLS inc. CORPOR ;\T}; Fidas

Management Information Circular

Jfor the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders
to be held on June 29, 2004

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

This Information Circular is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Management of NQL DRILLING
TOOLS INC. ("NQL" or the "Company"), for use at the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company (the
"Meeting") to be held at the time and place and for the purposes set forth in the accompanying Notice of Meeting and at any
adjournment thereof. The cost of solicitation will be borne by the Company. Unless otherwise noted, the information contained in
this Management Information Circular is given as at May 12, 2004.

This Information Circular and accompanying Notice of Meeting and Instrument of Proxy, together with the Company's
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2003 will first be sent by mail or given to Shareholders on or
about May 19, 2004.

APPOINTMENT AND REVOCATION OF PROXIES

The individuals named in the accompanying form of proxy are R. Tim Swinton, Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Company, and R. Dean Livingstone, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. A SHAREHOLDER WISHING
TO APPOINT SOME OTHER PERSON (WHO NEED NOT BE A SHAREHOLDER) TO REPRESENT HIM AT THE
MEETING HAS THE RIGHT TO DO SO, EITHER BY -INSERTING SUCH PERSON'S NAME IN THE BLANK
SPACE PROVIDED IN THE FORM OF PROXY OR-BY COMPLETING ANOTHER FORM OF PROXY. Sucha
shareholder should notify the nominee of his appointment, obtain his consent to act as proxy and instruct him on how the
shareholder's Class “A” common shares (the “Common Shares™) are to be voted. In any case, the form of proxy should be dated
and executed by the shareholder or his attorney authorized in writing, or if the shareholder is a corporation, under its corporate
seal, or by an officer or attorney thereof duly authorized.

A proxy will not be valid for the Meeting or any adjournment thereof unless the completed form of proxy is delivered to the
Company c/o CIBC Mellon Trust Company at 600, 333 — 7th Avenue S.W,, Calgary, Alberta T2P 2Z1, at least 48 hours before
the time of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof or with the chairman of the Meeting on the day of the Meeting, or any
adjournment thereof, prior to the commencement of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. ’

In addition to revocation in any other manner permitted by law, a shareholder who has given a form of proxy may revoke it, any
time before it is exercised, by instrument in writing executed by the shareholder or by his attorney authorized in writing and
deposited either at the registered office of the Company at any time up to and including the last business day preceding the day of
the Meeting, or any adjournment thereof, at which the proxy is to be used, or with the chairman of the Meeting on the day of the
Meeting, or any adjournment thereof, prior to the commencement of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

VOTING OF PROXIES

The persons named in the enclosed form of proxy have indicated their willingness to represent, as proxyholders, the shareholders

- who appoint them. Each shareholder may instruct his proxyholder how to vote his Common Shares by completing the blanks in

the form of proxy.

Common Shares represented by properly executed forms of proxy in favour of the persons designated on the enclosed form of
proxy will be voted or withheld from voting on any ballot in accordance with instructions made on such forms of proxy, and, if a
shareholder specifies a choice as to any matters to be acted on, such shareholder's Common Shares shall be voted accordingly. In
the absence of such instructions, such shares WILL BE VOTED IN FAVOUR OF ALL MATTERS IDENTIFIED IN THE
NOTICE OF MEETING ACCOMPANYING THIS INFORMATION CIRCULAR.

The enclosed form of proxy confers discretionary authority upon the persons named therein with respect to amendments and
variations to matters identified in the Notice of Meeting and with respect 1o any other matters which may properly come before



the Meeting. At the time of printing this information circular, the management of the Company knows of no such amendments, .
variations or other matters to come before the Meeting.

"VOTING SHARES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF
General

As at May 12, 2004, the Company's issued and outstanding voting shares consisted of 42,615,844 Common Shares. Holders of
Common Shares are entitled on a ballot vote at the Meeting, or any adjournment thereof, to one vote for each Common Share
held on all matters to be considered and acted upon at the Meeting.

The Company has set the close of business on May 12, 2004 as the record date for the Meeting. The Company will prepare a list
of shareholders of record at such time. A holder of Common Shares named on that list will be entitled to vote such shares then
registered in his name at the Meeting, except to the extent that (a) the holder has transferred the ownership of any of such shares
after that date, and (b) the transferee of those shares produces properly endorsed share certificates, or otherwise establishes that
he owns the shares, and demands not later than ten days before the Meeting that his name be included in the list of persons
entitled to vote at the Meeting, in which case the transferee will be entitled to vote such shares at the Meeting or any adjournment
thereof.

Voting of Common Shares - Advice to Beneficial Holders of Securities

The information set forth in this section is of significant importance to many shareholders, as a substantial number of the
shareholders hold Common Shares through brokers and their nominees and not in their own names. A shareholder who
does not hold his or her Common Shares in his or her own name (referred to in this information circular as "Beneficial
Shareholders") should note that only proxies deposited by shareholders whose names appear on the records of the Company as
the registered holders of Common Shares can be recognized and acted upon at the Meeting. If Common Shares are listed in an
account statement provided to a shareholder by a broker, then in almost all cases those shares will not be registered under the
name of the shareholder's name on the records of the Company. Such shares will more likely be registered under the name of the
shareholder's broker or an agent of that broker. Common Shares held by brokers or their nominees can only be voted (for or

- against any resolution) by the brokers or nominees upon the instructions of the Beneficial Shareholder. Without specific
instructions, btokers and nominees are prohibited from voting Common Shares for their clients.

There are two ways Beneficial Shareholders can vote their Common Shares held by a broker or nominee.

Applicable regulatory policy requires intermediaries and brokers to seek voting instructions from Beneficial Shareholders in
advance of shareholders' meetings. Every intermediary and broker has its own mailing procedures and provides its own return
instructions, which should be carefully followed by Beneficial Shareholders in order to ensure that their Common Shares are
voted at the Meeting. Often, the form of proxy supplied to a Beneficial Shareholder by his broker is identical to the form of the
proxy provided to registered shareholders; however, its purpose is limited to instructing the registered shareholder as to how to
vote on behalf of the Beneficial Shareholder. The majority of brokers now delegate responsibility for obtaining instructions from
clients to ADP Investors Communications ("ADP"). ADP mails the proxy materials to the Beneficial Shareholders with a voting
information form ("VIF"), which is prepared by ADP, and asks the Beneficial Shareholders to return the VIF to ADP, or
otherwise communicate voting instructions to ADP (by way of the Intemet or telephone, for example). ADP then tabulates the
results of all instructions received and provides appropriate instructions respecting the voting of shares to be represented at the
Meeting. A Beneficial Shareholder receiving a VIF from ADP may not be able to use that VIF to vote Common Shares
directly at the Meeting. The VIF must be returned to ADP (or instructions respecting the voting of Common Shares must
otherwise be communicated to ADP) well in advance of the Meeting in order to have the Common Shares voted.

Since the Company has limited access to the names of its Beneficial Shareholders, a Beneficial Shareholder may not be
recognized directly at the Meeting for the purposes of voting Common Shares registered in the name of the Beneficial
Shareholder's broker. However, a Beneficial Shareholder may attend the Meeting as proxyholder for the registered shareholder
and vote the Common Shares in that capacity. Beneficial Shareholders who wish to attend the Meeting and indirectly vote
their Common Shares as proxyholder for the registered shareholder should enter their own names in the blank space on
the form of proxy or VIF provided to them and return the same to their broker (or the broker's agent) in accordance with
the instructions provided by such broker. Do not otherwise complete the form of proxy or VIF as your vote will be taken
at the meeting. : :

PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF VOTING SHARES

To the knowiedge of the Directors and Senjor Officers of the Company, only the following persons beneficially own, directly or
indirectly, or exercise control or direction over, shares carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to all outstanding
Common Shares of the Company:



Name of Shareholder ' ) ) N th_ber of Shares ' Pércentage of Issued arrd_Outstanding' Shares
lee Rock Pertners ll LP. 7,619,160 ) : 17.9%
‘CanFund VE l_nyesfors' i, _L.P.,_ ‘ 7,148:205 16.6%

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2003 (the "Financial
Statements"), together with the Auditor's Report thereon, will be presented to shareholders at the Meeting. The Financial
Statements, together with the Auditor's Report therein are enclosed. Copies of the Financial Statements, Notice of Meeting,
Information Circular and Proxy will be available from the Companys corporate headquarters, at 1507 - 4th Street, Nisku,
Alberta, TOE 7M9.

APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS®

The shareholders will be asked to vote to appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP as auditors of the Company to hold office until the next
Annual General Meeting of the shareholders at a remuneration to be fixed by the directors of the Company. Deloitte & Touche
LLP were first appointed as auditors of the Company on June 12, 2002.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The persons named in the enclosed Instrument of Proxy intend to vote for the election of a Board of Directors comprised of seven
(7) persons. The names of further nominees for director may come from the floor at the Meeting.

Each director elected will hold office until the next Annual General Meeting or until his successor is duly elected, unless his
office is earlier vacated, in accordance with the by-laws of the Company. Officers serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors.

INFORMATION CONCERNING NOMINEE DIRECTORS SUBMITTED BY MANAGEMENT

The following table states the names of all persons proposed to be nominated for election as directors, all other positions and
offices with NQL now held by them, their principal occupations or employment, the year in which each of the present directors
first became a director of NQL, and the number of Common Shares of NQL beneficially owned or over which control or
direction is exercised by such nominees.

Positiofi Held, ’ Director Shares

~ Name ~ inthe Company Pnnclpal Occupatlon or Employment : Since o _‘Ov{nédlc_bontrq!igd -
R. Tim Swinton Chalrman af the Board Presldent of Western Provmnes Resources Ltd: 2003 e
R. Dedn Livingstofie P_residehf'arid ceo Pr'e_sident and C;:hiéf Executive Officer of the 1903 210,102
Company .
Derek C. Martir . Director Presidént, Addington Equities inc. {an investment 2000 ..
company)
Bruce R. Libin, Q.C. Diréctor Executive Chalr angd Chief Executive Officer, 2003 v-s

Destiny, Resource Services Corp Presndent B. R.
Libin Capxtal Corp

Glen D: Roane Director Corporata Direc’ror ana lndependeni B'u'sinessman 2003 A

Themas R, Bates, Jr. Director Managmg Director. of lee Rock Managemsnt L. 2003 SR

since 2001; prior thereto. he was Senior Vice
President and subsequently. President of the.
Discavery Group of Baker Hughes; Inc. from 1998
1. 2000; prior thereto he was CEO and President of
Weatherford Enterra, Inc. from. 1997 10 1998 and
prior thereto he was President of the Anadrill
DMswn of Schlumberger Ltd from 1892 to 1997

John G. Clarkson Director. Managing Director of Lime Rock Managemen’t Ltd. 2003 ... @
’ sincé 2003. Prior thefeto, Managing Director,
Clearwater Capital Corporation, since 1987 and
prior- thereto Manager ‘of Oil Developmem for
Renaissance Energy Ltd




o

n

{2)

The Company has an audit and corporate governance committes, the members of which are Bruce R. Libin (Chalr), John G. Clarkson and
Derek C. Martin. The Company has a compsensation committee, the members of which are Glen D. Roane(Chair), R. Tim Swinton and
Thomas R. Bates, Jr. The Corpany has formed a special committee comprised of R. Tim Swinton (Chair}, Thomas R. Bates, Jr. and
Bruce R. Libin. - . .

Thomas R. Bates, Jr. and John G. Clarkson {employees of entities affiliated with Lime Rock Partners-tl, L.P. {"Lime Rock”) that holds
7,619,160 shares of the Company) are nominees of Lime Rock pursuant to the subscription agreement entered intc between Lime Rock
and .the Company pursuent to the Private Placement described in the Information Circular dated August 1, 2003 for the Special
Shareholders Meeting held on September 2, 2003. For further detail on Uime Rock’s rights to appoint nominess, please see the ssction
entitled Private Placement Transaction, Director Nominees in the information Circular dated August 1, 2003.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

For the purposes of relevant securities regulations, the Company had five "Named Executive Officers” during the year ended
December 31, 2003. These Officers include Mr. R. Dean Livingstone, President and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Kevin L.
Nugent, Vice President Finance and Chief Financial Officer (presently Senior Vice President Finance, Chief Financial Officer
and Corporate Secretary), Mr. Robert E. Iversen, President of Diamond Products International Inc. (presently Senior Vice
President Toel and Bit Division), Mr. Karl J. Beagrie, President of CanFish Services Inc. (presently Senior Vice President

Fishing Division) and Mr. Witold L. Gutter, Vice President and Corporate Secretary (resigned effective January 31, 2004).

Summary Compensation Table

The following table contains information in respect of annual and long-term compensation paid to, or earned by, the Company's
Named Executive Officers for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001:

Annual Compensation

Long-Term Compensation

. ) ) ) Awards Payouts ,
Name & Principal Position’ Year * Salary Bonus Other Annual  Securities ‘Restricted Le All Othér
[£3) ($) Compensation Undeér Shares'or Payouts Compensati
o sy Options / Restricted $) onh
SARs Share Units )
Granted (#) (8}
R. Dean Livingstore 2003 250,000 75,000 Nit 272,500 10 Nil NI Nil
President & CEQ 2002 175,000 57915 Nif 22,500 /0 Nil Nil Nil
2001 175,000 209,867 Ni  22,500/0 Nil Nil Nil
Robert E, efsen® 2003 279,493 105,072 Nit 100:000./ 0 N Nit N
Fresident of Diamond Products 2002 83,3539 58:791 Nil 40,600 70 Nit Nil Nil
Intemational inc: :
Karl J. Beagrie & 2003 163;576 45,000 Nil 100,000.70 Nil Nil Nil
President of CanFish Services . 2002 151,290 7,500 Nil Nil Nii il Nil
Inc. 2001 147,600 45,000 Nit Nt Nit Nil- Nil
Kevin L. Nugent 2003 51,692 NIl Nil 200,00070 Nil Nil Nil
Vice President, Finance and,
Chief Financial Officer
Witold L. Gutter ® 2003 168,000 15,000 Nil 85,000 /0 Nil Nit Nil
Vice President and Corporate 2002 120,000 50,000 Nit 10,000/ 0 Nil Nit Nit
Secretary 2001 120,000 Nil Nil 10,00070 Nit Nil. Nil

£

@

appointed to the pasition of Senicr Vice President of the Tool & Bit Division .

3

4

Mr. Kart J. Beagrie was appointed to the position of Senior Vice President of the Fishing Division January 20, 2004.

The value of perquisites and other personal benefits did nat excesd 10% of the Named Executive Officers' selary and bonus

appointed tc the position of Senior Vice President, Finance and on Janusry 31, 2004, 1o the position of Cm'porate Secrstary.

& Mr. Witold L. Gutter resigned effective January 31, 2004,

Mr. Robert E. iversen was appeinted to the position of President of Diamond FProducts International Inc. on August 28, 2002. On anuary 20, 2004 Mz, lversen was

Mr. Kevin L. Nugent was appointed to the position of Vice President, Finence and Chief Financial Officer on September 1, 2003. On January 20, 2004, Mr. Nugent was



Option/SAR Grants During The Most Recently Completed Financial Year

The following table contains information in respect of Optlons/SAR grants received by the Compa.ny s Named Executlve Officers
for the year ended December 31, 2003:

) » %ofTotal = : Market Valug of
Securities, Under -Options/SARs . Securities. Underlying
Options/SARS Granted to Exercise Options/SARS ori-the
" .Granted Employees in or:Base Price Date of Grant
.‘Name e 2‘.(#)@ .. .Financial Yeat :. . {8/Seeurity) e (B/Sécurity) . .. Explratlon Date
R.-Dean Livingstons 22,500/0 0.8% : §7.30 $7:30 Februarys 2013
o . 2500000 8.6% 82  $322 October1, 2008
Robért E. iversen ) 100000/ 0 3.4% $3.22 $3.22 October 18, 2008
Kar J. Beagrie 100,000/ 0 : 3:4% $3.22 $3.22 October 19, 2008
Kevin L. Nugent 200,000/ 0 6.9% $3.10 3100 August 17, 2008
Witold L: Gutler 10,0000 0.3% $7.30 $7.30° February 5,2013
.75,000170 2.6% $3.22 $3.22 October19 2003

W Al securitiss under option are Class “A” common shares of the Company

Option Exercises During The Most Recently Completed Financial Year And Financial Year End Option Values

The follo\ving table contains information in respect of Options exercised by the Company's Named Executive Officers for the
year ended December 31, 2003 and the Option values as at December 31, 2003. No SAR's were outstanding at year end or were
exercised during the year.

Value of Unexercised

Securities Aggregate Unexercised Options in-the-Monsy

Acquired on Value at FY-End Options at- FY-End

Exercise. V- Realized (#)Exercisabia / ($)Exercisabia /

Name . (#) . . (& Unexercisable . ... .. Unexercisable ©!
R, Déan: lemgstone ] ) Nl ‘ N 202 499:/ 200, 000 : o . 1,900/ @
RobertE bersen® NI N torassison . nessin

KarlJ. Beagie NI o Nm o 20/000/80I000 T L
Keviri L, Nugent SN Ni 0.200,000 o ~0/20,000
W'rtpid L. Gutter ] Nif Nil ‘ 89,833 /60,000 o 1,‘909/0 ]

i Ciass "A” common shares acquired upon exercise of optionsfwarrants.

@ Based on the difference between the exercise price of the options/warrants and the closing price of the Class "A" common shares on the
TSX on the date of exercise.

i Based on the closing price of the Class "A" common shares on the TSX on December 31, 2003 of $3.20.

“ in conjunction with the acquisition of Diamond Products Intemational inc. ("DPI") prewously granled DPI options were converted to options

to purchase 47,464 Class "A” common shares of the Company.

TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT, CHANGE IN RESPONSIBILITIES AND EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS

i. Pursuant to an agreement dated. effective January 1, 2003 (“2003 Agreement”), the Company retained Mr. R. Dean
Livingstone to act as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and to manage and supervise all aspects of
the Company's business. The agreement provided for: a) minimum annual remuneration (the “Annual Base Salary™) of
$250,000.00; b) adjustment of Annual Base Salary (the “Base Salary Adjustment”) to provide for additional
remuneration equal to 1/10 of 1% of the Company’s consolidated revenue in excess of $70 million; c¢) an anpual grant
of 17,500 stock options; d) an annual bonus (the “Annual Bonus™) of the greater of $75,000.00 or an amount equal to
2.5% of cash flow over $0.60/share; e) participation in any of the Company’s health plans or pension plans; f) the use
of a company vehicle; g) payment of an amount equal to the cost of a term life insurance policy insuring Mr.
Livingstone's life in the amount of $1,500,000.00 and having as beneficiaries Mr. Livingstone’s designates with such
entitlement ceasing on December 31 following the date of a control change of the Company. In the event of a control



change of the Company, the agreement provided for: a) a bonus of $1,000,000.00 plus $100,000.00 for every $1.00 by
which the value of the control change exceeds $10.00 per Common Share; b) annual bonuses and stock options ceasing
immediately c) annual remuneration increasing to $325,000.00/year; d) Mr. Livingstone having the option to terminate
the agreement within 3 months of the control change upon the provision of 1 year’s working notice; ) upon the notice
period having expired, Mr. Livingstone shall be paid an amount equal to the 3 largest amounts paid to him on account
of Annual Base Salary, Base Salary Adjustment and Annual Bonus since September 1, 1997. In the event the
agreement was terminated without cause, Mr. Livingstone was entitled to: a) a payment of $1,500,000; b) the pro-rated
- Annual Bonus to the date of termination; ¢) and an amount equal to the total of the three.largest amounts paid to him on
account of Annual Base Salary and Annual Bonus since September 1, 1997. On the 2™ day of December, 2003, Mr.
Livingstone and the Company entered into a Revised and Restated Employment Agreement that provides for: a) annual
.remuneration of $250,000.00; b) for the year 2003, a bonus of $75,000.00; c) for the vears 2004 and onwards, a bonus
in accordance with the Company’s bonus plan as may be in place from time to time and subject to a maximum bonus of
150% of annual remuneration. The Restated and Revised Agreement provided for all the benefits of the 2003
Agreement with the exception of a) Base Salary Adjustment; and, b) the annual grant of options. The Revised and
Restated Agreement expires December 31, 2006 and may be terminated by the Company prior to that time only for
cause. Pursuant to a Waiver Agreement dated June 25, 2003, Mr. Livingstone waived any entitlements pursuant to a
control change arising from the sharcholders meeting of June 26, 2003,

Pursuant to an agreement dated August 11, 2003, the Company retained Mr. Kevin L. Nugent to act as Vice President,
Finance and Chief Financial Officer. The agreement provided for: a) annual remuneration of $168,000.00 (“Annual
Remuneration™); b) a one time grant of 200,000 options; ¢) annual bonus at the discretion of the Company in a
maximum amount of 50% of Annual Remuneration “Annual Bonus™); d) in the first year of the agreement, a bonus of
$50.000.00 based on benchmarks to be agreed between the Company and Mr. Nugent; e) a vehicle allowance in the
amount of $1,500.00 per month; f) participation in any of the Company’s health plans; g) reimbursement of reasonable
club dues to a maximum of $3,000.00/year. Upon a control change occurring, the agreement provided for Mr. Nugent
having the ability to terminate the agreement within 90 days by providing 120 days written notice and upon such
termination, entitlement to: a) compensation to date of termination including pro rata portion of Annual Bonus earned
prior to termination; and, b) payment equal to 2°years of Annual Remuneration being eamned at the time of termination.
Pursuant to an amending agreement dated effective March 1, 2004, the agreement was amended to provide for: a)
Annual Remuneration of $187,500.00; b) a one time bonus of $50,000.00 to be paid on the earlier of September 1,
2004 or a control change occurring; ¢) a bonus in accordance with the Company’s bonus plan as may be in place from
time to time and subject to a maximum bonus of 100% of annual remuneration.

Pursuant to an agreement dated effective August 28, 2002 (“2002 Agreement”), the Company retained Mr. Robert E.
Iversen to act as President of DPI and to manage and supervise all aspects of DPI’s business. The agreement provided
for: a) annual remuneration of US$199,500.00 subject to cost of living adjustments (“Annual Remuneration™); b) a
signing bonus consisting of a one time grant of 20,000 options with 5,000 of these options to vest immediately and the
remainder to vest in increments of 5,000/year on the anniversary date of the agreement (“Option Grant™); ¢) an annual
bonus equal to the greater of 1/2 of 1% of DPI’s gross revenues or US$75,000.00 (“Annual Bonus™); d) a life insurance
policy with a face value of US$1,500,000.00 at the Company’s expense and for which Mr. Iversen is entitled to
designate beneficiaries; e) participation in any health and pension plans; f) an allowance for reasonable club dues. In
the event of a control change prior to February 28, 2005, Mr. Iversen is entitled to terminate the agreement at the end of
3 years upon providing 4 months written notice. The Agreement expires August 27, 2007 and may be terminated prior
to that time by the Company only for cause. Pursuant to an amending agreement dated effective January 1, 2004, the
2002 Agreement was amended to provide for: a) appointment to the position of Senior Vice President, Tool & Bit
Division; b) Annual Remuneration of US$205,476.50; c) Annual Bonus in accordance with the Company’s bonus plan
as may be in place from time to time and subject to a maximum bonus of 100% of annual remuneration; d) deletion of
entitlement to life insurance.

Pursuant to an agreement dated effective January 1, 2004, the Company retained Mr. Karl J. Beagrie to act as Senior
Vice President, Fishing Division. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Beagrie is entitled to: a) annual remuneration of
$180,000.00/annum; b) participation in the Company’s health and benefit plans and c) participation in the Company’s
bonus plan for senior executives, as implemented by the Company’s Board of Directors in its discretion, up to a
maximum bonus equal to 100% of annual remuneration. The term of the agreement expires on December 31, 2005, In
the event of a control change, Mr. Beagrie shall be entitled to terminate the agreement, such termination to be effective
no earlier than Janvary 31, 2005, by providing a minimum of 30 days written notice. In the event of termination by Mr.
Beagrie as a result of a control change, Mr. Beagrie shall-continue to be entitled to the annual remuneration through to
December 31, 2005.

Pursuant to an agreement dated effective January 1, 2003, the Company retained Mr. Witold L. Gutter to act as Vice-
President and Secretary of the Company, to act as corporate counse! to the Company and 10 assist in the management of
the Company's business. The agreement entitled Mr. Gutter to: 2) annual remuneration of $168,000.00; and b) a grant




of 10,000 stock options/year.. In the event of a control change of the Company, the agreement provided for: a) a one-
time bonus of $500,000; b) an increase in annual remuneration to $200,000.00; c) entitlement to options ceasing
immediately; d) Mr. Gutter having the option to provide 1 year’s notice of termination within 3 months of the control
change; e) upon the notice period having expired, payment of $600,000.00. The term of the agreement was through to
December 31, 2007 subject to termination by the Company prior to that time only for cause. Pursuant to an Amending
Agreement dated effective June 25, 2003, Mr. Gutter effectively waived any control change events occurring prior to
June 27, 2003. Pursuant to an Amending Agreement dated October 20, 2003, the agreement was amended to delete any
entitlement to yearly option grants. Pursuant to an agreement dated January 20, 2004, Mr. Gutter resigned from his
positions with the Company effective January 31, 2004, and is entitled to payments of $250,000.00 on January 31,
2004, $250,000.00 on June 30, 2004 and $600,000.00 on January 1, 2005. All payments are subject to acceleration
upon a control change occurring. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Gutter agreed to provide consulting services on a
priority basis to the Company upon the Company’s request through to June 30, 2004.

When used above, the term "control change" A) with respect to Mr. Iversen’s and Mr. Gutter’s agreements, refers to (i) a sale of
all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation; (ii) a change in a majority of the members of the board of directors of the
Corporation or (iii) any change in-the holdings of securities of the Corporation or securities convertible or exchangeable thereto
which results in one or more persons (acting jointly or in concert) or associates or affiliates thereof holding securities of the
Corporation that entitle, or would following conversion or exchange of such securities entitle, the holder or holders thereof to cast
more than 50 percent of the votes attaching to all voting securities of the Corporation that may be cast to elect directors of the
Corporation, provided that, such change results from an offer to acquire securities made to all holders of voting securities of the
Corporation or from a transaction or series of transactions on which all holders of voting securities of the Corporation have the
right to vote; B) with respect to Mr. Livingstone’s current agreement and Mr. Beagrie’s agreements, refers to (i) a sale of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Corporation; or (ii) any change in the holdings of securities of the Corporation or securities
convertible or exchangeable thereto which results in one or more persons (acting jointly or in concert) or associates or affiliates
thereof holding securities of the Corporation that entitle, or would following conversion or exchange of such securities entitle, the
holder or holders thereof to cast more than 50 percent of the votes attaching to all voting securities of the Corporation that may be
“cast to elect directors of the Corporation, provided that, such change results from an offer to acquire securities made to all holders
of voting securities of the Corporation or from a transaction or series of transactions on which all holders of voting securities of
the Corporation have the right to vote; C) with respect to Mr. Nugent’s agreements, refers to (i) a sale of all or substantially all of
the assets of the Corporation; (ii) any change in the holdings of securities of the Corporation or securities convertible or
exchangeable thereto which results in one or more persons (acting jointly or in concert) or associates or affiliates thereof holding
securities of the Corporation that entitle, or would following conversion or exchange of such securities entitle, the holder or
holders thereof to cast more than 50 percent of the votes attaching to all voting securities of the Corporation that may be cast to
elect directors of the Corporation, provided that, such change results from an offer to acquire securities made to all holders of
voting securities of the Corporation or from a transaction or series of transactions on which all holders of voting securities of the
Corporation have the right to vote, or (iii) a Bankruptey Transaction (a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company).

COMPOSITION OF AND ROLE OF TRE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Glen D. Roane (Chair) and R. Tim Swinton became members of the compensation committee effective June 26, 2003 and
Thomas R. Bates, Jr. joined the committee effective September 2, 2003. All members of the compensation committee are
independent outside disectors and none are, or have been, employees of the Company. Prior to their appointments, the
Compensation Committee consisted of Michael Kennedy, William Richards and John King.

The Company's executive compensation is administered by the Compensation Committee as are the Company’s bonus plans. It is
the Commitiee’s responsibility to review the structure and competitiveness of the Company’s overall compensation and benefits
programs -generally, to make compensation recommendations to the Board of Directors and to administer the awards of
remuneration to the Company’s senior officers.

_REPORT ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The Company’s executive compensation program has three components: base salary, bonuses and the award of stock options or
equity linked incentives. Since the last general meeting of the shareholders and the appointment of new members to the
committee, the Compensation Committee has undertaken an overall review of the Company’s organization-wide compensation
practices and policies to ensure that the compensation policies of the Corporation going forward will allow it to attract, retain and
motivate key employees across the organization.

The executive compensation prbgram has been designed to accomplish the following objectives:

a) to attract and retain key personnel;



b) to reward executives for achieving strategic corporate objectives;
¢} to motivate executives to act in the best interest of shareholders;
d) to ensure that the Company’s compensation for executive positions is competitive; and,

e) to encourage Company personnel to aspire to executive positions.

In conjunction with the overall review of the Company’s organization-wide compensation practices and policies, a number of
executive employment contracts were amended or restated to better reflect the objectives of the Company’s compensation
program. The terms of the Company’s prior existing executive employment contracts placed restrictions on the scope of changes
to executive employment contracts which could be implemented. Some of these changes are reflected in the section titled
“Termination of Employment, Change in Responsibilities and Employment Contracts™.

With input from senior executives, the Committee has begun developing and intends to institute a company wide bonus plan that
is based upon performance criteria. Bonus payments will vary baséd on the degree to which financial and strategic criteria have
been met. When these objectives are met or exceeded, executive officers are eligible for a bonus payment of up to 100% of base
salary with the exception of the CEO who is able to eamn up to 150% of base salary. All bonuses remain subject to board
discretion.

In conjunction with-the overall review undertaken by the Committee, the standard stock option agreement was also amended to
provide for a vesting period over 4 years. A number of stock options were granted to key employees to better align the interests
of employees with the Company’s stated objectives.

This report is submitted by the Compensation Committee: Glen D. Roane, R. Tim Swinton and Thomas R. Bates, Jr.
COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS

For the year ended December 31, 2003, the now existing non-employee directors of the Company received a $20,000 per year
retainer paid quarterly and $1,000.00 per Board or Committee meeting attended in their capacities as directors.. In addition, the
Chairman received an additional payment of $3,000 per day for time spent on Company matters. Such payments totalled
$105,500.00 during 2003. Directors are granted incentive stock options from time to time. During the year, options were granted
to directors as follows:

Name Securities Under Options Granted l Exercls@ Price ($/Security) Explra‘t!on Date

. Thorias R, aaéeﬁ,-qr, ' - - 100,000 v ‘ §3.22 ‘ Qctabar 18; éo’de}

| John G, Clarkson 100000 . wa N  October 16,2008
Bq)ce R Libin - _ ’ ’ 100,000 $3.22 ’ oaobéne,;zooa
R. Deaﬁ ‘Livings;qne ‘ 22,500 $7.30 . B February 15, 2013 o '
R: Dean Livingstone 250,900 ’ $3.22 QOctober 19, 2008
Derek C. Martin ‘ 160,000’ $3.22 October. 19, 2008
Glen D: Roahe A o 100,000 ‘ 8322 ~ October 19,2008
R. Tim Swinton” o 500,000 _ $3.22 ‘ October 19, 2006

INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS

As of December 31, 2003, excluding “routine indebtedness”, no officers, directors or employees (both current and former) or any
of their associates were indebted to the Company o its subsidiaries,



SHAREHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph shows the yearfy percentage change in cumulative shareholder return on NQL'’s Class "A" common shares
compared to the cumulative return of the S&P/TSX Composite Index for the past five fiscal years, assuming $100.00 investments
on December 31, 1998 and reinvestment of dividends during the period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Statement of Corporate Governance Practices

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board” or the “Board of Directors™) believes that sound corporate governance
practices are essential to the effective, efficient and prudent operation of the Company and that these practices should be
reviewed regularly to ensure that they are appropriate. A description of the Company’s corporate governance practices follows.

Mandate of the Board

The mandate of the Board of Directors is to supervise the management of the business and affairs of the Company and to act with
a view to the best interests of the Company, pursuant to the powers granted by, and the obligations imposed under, the Business
Corporations Act (Alberta), the Company’s constating documents and common {aw. The Board of Directors fulfils its mandate
directly and through its committees at regularly scheduled meetings. Meetings of the Board are held at a minimum every quarter
to reviéw the Company’s operating results for the quarter as well as once annually to review the Company’s proposed budget.
Additional meetings of the Board are held on an as needed basis, either in person or by teleconference. Additionally, the
independent Board members meet on an ad hoc basis to review the performance of management. Frequency of meetings as well
as the nature of agenda items change depending upon the state of the Company’s affairs and in light of opportunities or risks that
the Company faces. The directors are kept informed of the Company’s operations at these meetings, as well as through reports
and discussions with management, which consults with the Board freely on matters within their particular areas of expertise. In a
Company whose business strategy requires quick decision making, the Board has empowered management with the authority to
act on day to day matters and within defined parameters in order to carry out the Company’s business plan. All of the directors
are meaningfully aware of and involved in the Company’s business activities, and the Board continuously evaluates the
performance of management and the performance of the Company as a whole.

Adoption of a Strategic Planning Process

The Board of Directors as a whole participates in the strategic planning process by reviewing and approving the strategic plans
and budgets. On a continuing basis, the Board will continue to ensure that the plans are appropriate.

Managing Risk

Senior management periodically reports to the Board of Directors on the principal risks faced by the Company and the steps
implemented by it to manage these risks. The Board has considered and does, in its deliberations, consider the principal risks of
the Company’s business and will continue to work with management to assess and review the on-going management of these
risks.

N
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Appointing, Training and Monitoring Senior Management

The Compensation Committee assists the Board of Directors in monitoring the performance of senior management. The
Company has employment contracts with key members of the senjor management team. With respect to management personnel,
the Company actively seeks to recruit highly motivated individuals with broad-based skills and a demonstrated capacity to adapt
to a dynamic business environment. Senior management are encouraged to participate in appropriate professional and personal

development activities (e.g. courses and programs). )

Response to Shareholders

The Board believes that its communications with shareholders, and the avenues available for shareholders and others interested in
the Company to have their inquiries about the Company answered, are responsive and effective. Inquiries from shareholders are
treated on a priority basis with prompt responses from the appropriate member of senior management. In addition, the
Company’s communications with its shareholders are reviewed by the Board prior to distribution to the shareholders. Annual
financial statements are submitted to the Board for approval, as are Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Results,
quarterly results and reports of management thereon, the Company’s Management Information Circular, and press releases on
major developments.

Integrity of Internal Controls and Management Information Systems

The Board, through the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee, assesses the effectiveness of the internal controls and
management information systems at meetings held with the external auditors and members of senior management.

Mandate of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer

Formal position descriptions have not been developed for Board members since the Board assumes overall responsibility for
overseeing the affairs of the Company. The description of the position of the Chief Executive Officer follows from his role and
responsibilities in connection with corporate objectives prepared by senior management and reviewed and adopted by the Board.
The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for ensuring that these objectives are met. His performance in this regard is assessed
by the Compensation Committee.

Board Composition

The Board of Directors of the Company is composed of a majority of “unrelated directors”. An “unrelated director” is a director
who is free from any interest and any business or other relationship which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, interfere
materially with that director’s ability to act with a view to the best interests of the Company. In considering their qualifications
as unrelated directors, the Board took into account relationships certain of the unrelated directors have or have had with the
Company. ’

The Board of Directors was composed of seven members as of December 31, 2003. The Board of Directors believes that six
directors ~ Messrs. Swinton, Libin, Roane, Martin, Bates and Clarkson ~ are “unrelated directors™ and that one director - Mr.
Livingstone, is a “related director”. Messrs. Bates and Clarkson, however, are nominees of Lime Rock (pursuant to the
subscription agreement entered into between Lime Rock and the Company and in accordance with the Private Placement
approved at the Special Sharcholders Meeting held on September 2, 2003). The size and composition of the Board has been
driven by a desire to ensure that the Company has an appropriate complement of skills, knowledge, and experience required for
the effective management of the Company, and for ensuring long-term growth and value for shareholders. '

Size of Board

The Board has considered its size with a view to the impact of size upon its effectiveness and has concluded that the number of
directors as presently constituted is appropriate for a company of its size and complexity. The current size of the Board is
reflective-of the Company’s business model, which requires quick and effective decision making. The Board, as presently
constituted, brings together a mix of skills, backgrounds, ages and attitudes that the Board considers appropriate to the
stewardship of the Company. The periodic review of this issue is part of the mandate of the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee. ’

Board Training and Performance
The Company, in seeking out new Board members, looks for individuals who have previous experience in the operation of public

entities. Each new director is given the opportunity to meet with senior management and to review the Company’s budget and
strategic plan, and historical public information. Presentations are made periodically by senior management to the Board of
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- Directors in the main areas of the Company’s business and operations. The unrelated directors of the Company meet on an ad hoc
basis to assess the performance of the Board and the Company as a whole.

Independence from Management

Currently, Mr. Swinton is the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Livingstone is- Chief Executive Officer of the Company. In the
context of the Company, the Board at this point believes that the role of the Chair and of the Chief Executive Officer in setting
the Board agenda and ensuring that adequate and proper information is made available to the Board, is a critical element for
effective corporate governance, is best filled by two people who have intimate knowledge of the Company, its operations and the
industry within which this Company operates.

The Chairman calls meetings of the Board independently of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and as a part of its
regular process, the Board holds in camera sessions without management being present. The Board regularly reviews the quantity
and quality of information provided to it and, from time to time, requests changes. The skill sets and experience of the unrelated,
independent directors on the Board, combined with the accessibility and experience of the senior management director, have
enabled open and meaningful discussions and enhanced the Company's management. The Board is very much a working Board -
with all non-management members serving on committees that are active and involved. The Board has open access to
information relating to the operations of the Company. In addition, the Board members may engage independent advisors at the
Company’s expense, with the approval of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee, to assist them in their work.

Committees of the Board
Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s financial reporting procedures, internal controls and the
performance of the Company’s external auditors. The committee is also responsible for reviewing the quarterly and annual
financial statements of the Company prior to their presentation to the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee bas direct
communication channels with the external auditors and meets with them in the absence of management, The members of the
Audit Committee at year end were Bruce R. Libin (Chair), John G. Clarkson and Derek C. Martin.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee is responsible for reviewing and making recommendations to the Board of Directors on such
matters as compensation of Board members, compensation and termination of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, and for
the administration of the Company’s Incentive Stock Option Plan. The members of the Compensation Committee at year end
were Glen D. Roane (Chair), R. Tim Swinton and.Thomas R. Bates, Jr.

Special Committee

Subsequent to year end, a Special Committee of the Board of Directors was created to consider various options that may be
available to the Company to enhance shareholder value. The committee is comprised of R. Tim Swinton (Chair), Bruce R. Libin,
and Thomas R. Bates, Jr. '

Decisions Requiring Board Approval

At present, in addition to those matters that must, by law, be approved by the Board, management seeks Board (or appropriate
committee) approval for any transaction which is out of the ordinary course of business or could be considered to be “material” to
-the business of the Company. Any Management initiatives not covered in the annual business plan require Board approval.

Expectations of Management

The Board’s relationship with management is an open and productive one. Management uses its Board effectively and frequently
seeks the advice of its outside Board members with respect to various aspects of its business. The resources available to the
Company by virtue of skill sets represented on the Board have enabled management to obtain relevant feedback on a broad
variety of matters and, as a result, input and direction prior to formulating its recommendations. The Board expects the
Company’s management to: (i) review, on an ongoing basis, the Company’s strategies and their implementation in all key areas
of the Company’s activities, in light of evolving and changing market conditions and government regulations; (ii) conduct a
comprehensive annual budgeting process and monitor the Company’s financial performance against the annual budget approved
by the Board; (iii) take the initiative in identifying opportunities and risks for the benefit of the Company; and, (iv) report in a
comprehensive, accurate and timely fashion on the business and affairs of the Company generally and on any specific matters
that it considers of significant material consequence to the Company and its Shareholders.
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OTHER MATTERS
The management of the Company knows of no other matters to come before the Meeting other than those referred to in the

Notice of Meeting. Should any other matters properly come before the Meeting, the shares represented by the proxy solicited
hereby will be voted on’such matters in accordance with the best judgment of the persons voting by proxy.

CERTIFICATE

The foregoing contains no untrue statement of material fact that is required to be stated or that is necessary to make a statement
not misleading in light of the circumstances in which it was made.

DATED at Nisku, Alberta, this 12th day of May, 2004.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

"R. Dean Livingstone"
R. Dean Livingstone
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
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NQL DRILLING TOOLS INC.

INSTRUMENT OF PROXY

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED BY AND ON BEHALF OF MANAGEMENTQ ? { 2 5
FOR THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY, JUNE 29™ 2004

r"“i

Directors of the Company, or failing him, R. Dean Livingstonc, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, or instead of cither of

the foregoing , as my Proxy, to vote for me at thc Annual Gencral Meeting (the “Meceting) of
8 g

the Company, to be hcld on the 29 day of June, 2004, and at any adjournment thereof, and to votc the shares in the capital stock of the

Company registered in the name of the undersigned with respect to the matters set forth below:

VOTE VOTE
1. To appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP as Auditors for the ensuing year and to authorize the FOR WITHHELD
Directors to fix the remuncration to be paid to the Auditors.
VOTE VOTE
2. To fix the number of Directors for the ensuing year at seven (7). FOR AGAINST
3. To efect as Directors for the ensuing year, alf nominecs as follows:
R. Tim Swinton vaTe VOTE
. o FOR WITHH
R. Dean Livingstone Bruce R. Libin, Q.C. Thomas R. Bates, Jr. ELD
Derck C. Martin Glen D. Roane John G. Clarkson

The undersigned hereby revokes any prior proxics to vote the common shares covered by this proxy.

Dated this day of , 2004

Signature of Sharcholder

Number of Shares Held Name of Sharchotder (please print)

NOTES:

1. Each common shareholder has the right 10 appoint a proxyholder, other than the persons designated in the form of proxy (who need not be a
shareholder) to attend and to act for him on his behalf at the Meeting. To exercise such right, the names of management's nominees should be crossed
out and the name of the common shareholder's nominee should be legibly printed in the blank space provided, or another proxy in proper form should
be completed.

2. Tn order for this proxy to be effective, it must be deposited at the offices of CIBC Mellon Trust Company, at suite 600, 333 - 7™ Avenue, SW, Calgary,
Alberta, T2P 2Z}1, not less than 48 hours before the Meeting or any adjournment thereof or with the Chairman of the Meeting prior to the
commencement thereof.

3. In addition to any other manner permitted by law, a shareholder who has given a proxy may revoke it as to any matter on which a vote has not already
been cast pursuant to the authority conferred by it, by signing in person or by attorney authorized in writing 2 written revocation of proxy and by
depositing such instrument of revocation at the office of CIBC Mellon Trust Company, at suite 600, 333 - 7" Avenue, SW, Calgary, Alberta, T2P

2Z1, at any time up to and including the last business day preceding the day of the Meeting or any adjoummcnt thereof or with the Chairman of the
Meeting on the day thereof or on the day of any adjournment thereof.

4. Management knows of no cther matters to come before the Meeting other than the matters referred to in the Notice. However, if' any amendments,
variations or new matters properly come before the Meeting, this proxy confers discretionary authority upon the shareholder's nominee to vote on such
matters in accordance with the nominee's best judgement.

5. The securities represented by this proxy will be voted, and where the sharcholder has specified a choice with respect to the above matters, will be voted
as directed or, if no direction is given, will be voted in favour of the matters set forth.

6. This instrument of proxy must be dated and must be executed by the Shareholder or his attorney in writing, or if the Shareholder is a corporation, under
its corporate seal by an officer or attorney thereof duly authorized. If this instrument of proxy is not dated, it will be deemed to bear the date on which it
was mailed to the Shareholder.

7. This proxy is solicited by and on behalf of management and the costs of same will be borne by the Company.

m.
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Glossary of Terms

"Ackerman International”: Ackerman International, Corp., the Company's subsidiary in the United States that previously
supplied drilling bits and other oilfield equipment, and that has now changed its name to NQL (Illinois) Inc.;

“Bit Division”: a division of the Company that is responsible for the design, development, manufacturing and marketing of
the drilling bit product line;

"Black Max Canada”: Black Max Downhole Tools Ltd., one of the Company's former operating subsidiaries in Canada that
has been dissolved with NQL Energy Canada having assumed all of its assets and liabilities;

“BlackStar™ EM MWD system”: the Company’s electromagnetic measurement while drilling tool;
“Board’: the board of directors of the Company;

"CanFish": CanFish Services Inc., a former operating subsidiary in Canada that provided downhole Fishing products and
services and was dissolved with NQL Energy Canada having assumed all of its assets and liabilities;

"CDDS": Canadian Downhole Drill Systems Inc., a former subsidiary of the Company that held the patents to certain
technology employed in the Company's products that has been dissolved with NQL Energy Canada having acquired all of its
assets;

"Common Shares": the Class “A” common shares without par value in the capital of the Company;
"Company or NQL": NQL Drilling Tools Inc. and, in the context of its operations, its subsidiaries;

“DPI”: Diamond Products International, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company that designs, manufactures and markets PDC Bits
and Natural Diamond Bits; :

“EM MWD"”: electromagnetic measurement while drilling;
“Fishing™: the process of recovering downhole tools, drillstring, tubing or other materials in a wellbore;

“Fishing Division™: a division of the Company that is responsible for marketing and supply of Fishing services and that is
also responsible for the development, manufacture, marketing and supply of specialized fishing tool, wireline, pipe recovery
services, milling services and casing exit systems;

"NBJ Manufacturing": NBJ Manufacturing Ltd., the Company’s Canadian subsidiary that machines and manufactures
products primarily for the oil and gas industry and that has changed its name to NQL Energy Services Canada Ltd. and which
has assumed all of the assets and liabilities of Black Max Canada, CanFish, and NorthStar and which has also acquired all of
the assets of CDDS;

“NorthStar”: NorthStar Drilling Systems Inc., a former subsidiary of the Company that holds the patents to certain
technology related to the BlackStar™ EM MWD system and was dissolved with NQL Energy Canada having assumed all of
its assets and liabilities;

“NQL Energy Canada”: NQL Energy Services Canada Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company formerly known as NBJ
Manufacturing Ltd. and which assumed all of the assets and liabilities of Black Max Canada, CanFish, and NorthStar and which
also acquired the assets of CDDS;
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“RTI™: RTI, LLC, a US limited liability company in which the Company previously held a 20% interest;

“Tool Division™ a division of the Company that is responsible for the design, development, manufacture, supply and
marketing of the Company’s downhole tool product lines.

Item 2:
Corporate Structure
Incorporation of the Company

The Company was incorporated under the laws of the Province of British Columbia on April 28, 1986 under the name "D.F.1.
Ventures Ltd." by registration of its memorandum and articles with the British Columbia Registrar of Companies. Its name
was changed to "National Quick Lube Ltd." effectiveJanuary 17, 1989 and its share capital was consolidated on a one new share
for two old shares basis. The Company's name was changed to "NQL Drilling Tools Inc." effective June 14, 1994 and its share
capital was consolidated on a one new share for four old shares basis, On March 29, 1995, the Company was continued into
the Province of Alberta under the Business Corporations Act (Alberta).

Subsidiaries

The following table sets forth the names of subsidiaries ofthe Company owned directly or indirectly, the percentage of interest
owned, and the jurisdiction under which each such subsidiary wasincorporated, continued or formed as of December31,2003:

Subsidiary Percentage Jurisdiction of Incorporation,
of Interest Continuance or Formation
3065720 Nova Scotia Company 100% Nova Scotia
NQL (illinois) Inc. (! 100% Iinois
Ackerman International Holland B.V. 100% Holland
Black Max Argentina S.A. 100% Argentina
NQL Energy Services US, Inc. @ 100% Texas
Diamond Products International, Inc. 100% Texas
DPI Venezuela, C.A. 100% Venezuela
NBJ Manufacturas de Venezuela C.A. 100% Venezueta
NBJ Manufacturas Petroleras (Bolivia) S.A. 100% Bolivia
NorthStar Drilling Services Lid. . 100% Turks & Caicos
NQL Energy Services (Barbados) Ltd. © 100% Barbados
NQL Energy Services Canada Ltd. 100% Alberta
NQL (US) Inc. 100% Delaware
NQL Finance LLC 100% Delaware
NQL Holland, B.V. 100% Holiand
P&T Servicios Petrolercs, C.A. 100% Venezuela
Pre Tempca Servicios de Mexico S.A. de C.V. 100% Mexico
RTI, LLC 20% Delawars
V.QO.F. ACE Downhole Tools and Services 100% Holland

1
2)

the name was: changed from Ackerman international, Corp. in February of 2004.
the name was changed from Black Max Downhole Too!s, Incorporated in January of 2004,
3 the name was changed from NQL (Barbados) Ltd. in January of 2004.



Item 3:
General Development of the Business
Background

The Company is a Nisku, Alberta, based company, which provides downhole tools, technology and services used primarily
in drilling applications in the oil and gas, environmental and utility industries on a worldwide basis.

The Company offers a number of downhole tools and services, including the Black Max™ drilling motor, Beaver™ whipstocks
and mills, and window milling services, BlackStar ¥ EM MWD systems, drilling jars, shock subs and drilling bits as well as
various other complementary products. The Company also machines and manufactures products for internal use and for other
third party customers, primarily in the oil and gas industry. As well, the Company, through its Fishing Division, provides
fishing tools and related services to the oil and gas industry. The Company provides tong and casing services to customers
in Venezuela and Mexico.

The Company's corporate headquarters are located in Nisku, Alberta. In addition to the service centre located on the premises
of its corporate headquarters in Nisku, the Company’s Tool Division has service centres in Estevan, Saskatchewan; Calgary,
Alberta; Stafford (Houston) and Odessa, Texas; Bakersfield, California; Mt. Carmel, lllinois; Casper, Wyoming; Lafayette,
Louisiana; Venezuela; Holland, Bolivia, Argentina, the U.A E., Mexico, Singapore and Australia. The Tool Division also leases
marketing and tool stocking facilities in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma and Traverse City, Michigan and has sales offices in
Calgary, Alberta; Denver, Colorado; and Aberdeen, Scotland.

The Tool Division’s facility in Holland is operated through a Dutch partnership of which NQL owns both partners. The Tool
Division has three service centers in Venezuela, a service center in Dubai of the United Arab Emirates and facilities in Mexico
and Argentina.

The Tool Division’s facilities in Singapore and Australia are being operated through business associates. The primary
obligations of the Company's business associates are to market the Company’s products and to provide service facilities, while
the Company's primary obligation is to supply the required products.

The Company’s Fishing Division operations have facilities in Nisku, Grande Prairie, Lloydminster and Whitecourt, Alberta;
and Houston, Texas, and a minor stocking point in Williston, North Dakota.

The Company’s Bit Division is headquartered through its DPI subsidiary in Houston, Texas and has sales offices or agents
throughout North America, Latin America, Europe, Africa, the Middle East and the Asia/Pacific regions. DPI was acquired by
the Company effective August 29, 2002. DP] provides drill bit products that are complementary to the Company’s downhole
tools. In the first quarter of 2004, DP] registered the assumed name “NQL Energy Services”and is now doing business using
this name.

Strategic Review

During the last quarter of 2003 and the first quarter 0f 2004, the Company undertook a strategic review of all operations. This
has resulted, in part, in the simplification ofits corporate structure and the merger of its Tool and Bit Divisions. Substantially
all of the Company's Canadian operations were consolidated under NQL Energy Services Canada Ltd., a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, including the business of Black Max Canada, CDDS, NorthStar, CanFish and NBJ Manufacturing.
The Company’s Tool and Bit Divisions now operate under a2 common marketing umbrella and jeintly promote performance
drilling packages that combine a downhole motor with a fit for purpose drill bit to maximize rate of penetration. See “Narrative
Description of the Business” in Item 4 below and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the year ended December 31,



20037, filed on SEDAR on May 13, 2004 for more detail.

As at December 31, 2003, the Company had a 20% investment in RT], a company formed to develop technology related to a
new downhole tool. This product was manufactured and marketed exclusively through the Company and its subsidiaries by
virtue of a licensing agreement with RTI. The Company disposed of its interest in RTI in April 2004.

As at December 31,2003, the Company owned all the outstanding shares of Ackerman International,which wasin the business
of supplying new and used drilling bits, hole openers, drill pipe, drill collars and other equipment for use in drilling
operations. Effective February 5, 2004, the Company sold the operating assets of Ackerman International. This company is
now inactive,

Effective May 15,2001, the Company acquired a proprietary EM MWD technology business through an acquisition of all the
outstanding shares of NorthStar, The BlackStar™ EM MWD tools are now developed, manufactured and marketed through the
Company’s subsidiaries. Early in 2004, the Board decided to dispose of the Company’s EM MWD technology business as it
is no longer considered part of the core operations of the Company. As a result, this business is presently being marketed for
sale by third party business advisors.

The Company’s Bolivian operation includes a machining and manufacturing facility located in Santa Cruz, Bolivia. Prior to
December 31, 2003, the Board of Directors made the decision to dispose of its operations in Bolivia as they were no longer
considered part of the core business of the Company. As a result, the Company’s Bolivian operations are presently being
marketed for sale by a third party business advisor.

In addition to the developments discussed above, in early 2004 the Board formed a Special Committee to consider various
options that may be available to the Company to enhance shareholder value. The Special Committee (comprised of R. Tim
Swinton, Bruce R. Libin and Thomas R. Bates, Jr.) retained Simmons & Company International, a Houston based investment
banking firm specializing in the energy industry, to assist the Board in considering and evaluating strategic alternatives.

Item 4:
Narrative Description of the Business

General

NQL Drilling Tools Inc. provides downhole tools, technology and services used primarily in drilling applications in the oil
and gas, environmental and utility industries on a worldwide basis.

The Company presents its business activities in four segments: tools, bits, fishing and corporate.

Tool Division

The Tool Division operates in Canada, the United States and several international locations. This division designs,
manufactures, services, rents and sells downhole drilling motors, EM-MWD wireless guidance systems, drilling jars, shock
subs and a number of other downhole tools and services.

The Black Max™ drilling motors are manufactured, assembled, serviced and marketed by the Company for lease and sale, for
use in drilling applications, primarily in the oil and gas industry and to a lesser extent, in the utility crossing, mining and
environmental drilling markets. These motors (also called "mud motors") are supplied in more than 20 different bearing
assembly sizes ranging from one and eleven-sixteenth inches to eleven and one-quarter inches in diameter with the ability to
create over 90 rotor and stator configurations. The motors work by hydraulically turning the drill bits at the end of the drill
stem pipe as opposed to conventional drilling systems, which turn the drill stem pipe (and thereby the drill bit) from the rig



floor. The motors are adjustableto permit horizontal and directional drilling. The motors have been used in drilling operations
for more than ten years on a worldwide basis.

The BlackStar™ EM MWD tools are now developed, manufactured, serviced and marketed by the Company for lease and sale,
for use in drilling applications to the oil and gas industry and the utility crossing, mining and environmental drilling markets.
This tool provides guidance information in directional drilling applications and works by sending electromagnetic signals
to the surface that assist operators in determining location and direction of the drill bore.

The Company’s drilling jars and shock subs are designed, manufactured and leased to oilfield customers wotldwide. Both of
these product lines are stocked at most of the Company's service centers around the world.

Bit Division

The Bit Division designs, manufactures, and markets synthetic PDC (polycrystalline diamond cutters) bits, natural diamond
bits and coring services on a worldwide basis. The Bit Division is headquartered in Houston, Texas and has several sales
locations around the world including Canada, South America, Africa, Europe, Middle East, Asia Pacific and CIS areas. The Bit
Division offers a wide range of drilling bit sizes, styles and features to better deliver the performance required for specific
applications. This Division has lead the industry in the development and application of the bi-centre drill bits which can be
passed through a smaller well bore and then, when rotated, will drill a larger hole below the casing.

The Company's Tool and Bit Divisionsoperate under a common marketing umbrella and jointly promote performancedrilling
packages that combine a downhole motor with a fit for purpose drill bit to maximize rate of penetration.

Fishing Division

The Fishing Division provides downhole Fishing, milling and casing exit services primarily in Canada and the United States.
Casing exit systems (often referred to as “Whiptstock Systems™) permit exit from an existing well bore in directional drilling
applications. The Beaver product line of whipstocks and milling equipment is now marketed through the Company’s Fishing
Division.

The Fishing Division provides specialized downhole Fishing services which involve the recovery of downhole tools,
drillstring, tubing or other materials stuck in a wellbore. The Fishing Division also specializes in fishing tool, wireline, pipe
recovery services and other specijalty tool rentals to North Americanand international oil and gas exploration and production
companies. In early 2003, this Division expanded its operations into the US by setting up operations in Houston, Texas.

Corporate Division

The Corporate Division provides support for the other three divisions of the Company and includes such costs as senior
management salaries, insurance, financing costs, professional and legal fees, IT support, human resource support and other
public company related expenses.

For the years ended December 31,2003, 2002, and 2001, no third party customer exceeded 15% of total consolidated revenues
in any of the Company’s operating divisions.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company operated in 3 geographical segments: Canada, the United States and
International. Revenues are attributed to these geographic segments based upon the country from which the product or service
originates. Approximately 32%, 52% and 16% of the Company's consolidated 2003 revenues were generated in Canada, the
United States, and internationally, respectively.

As at December 31, 2003, the Company employed approximately 500 employees worldwide.



Office, Manufacturing and Product Development Facilities

The Company owns office, manufacturing, assembly and service facilities of approximately 103,000 square feet and 45,000
square feet Jocated in Nisku, Alberta and Stafford (Houston), Texas, respectively and which are used primarity for the Tool
Division. The Tool Division also utilizes Company owned service facilities in Estevan, Saskatchewan; Odessa, Texas; Casper,
Wyoming; Lafayette, Louisiana; 2 facilities in Venezuela and a manufacturing and machining facility in Bolivia. Other service
or sales premises used by the Tool Division include leased premises in Calgary, Alberta; Bakersfield, California; Mt. Carmel,
Illinois; Venezuela; Holland; United Arab Emirates; Mexico; and Argentina. The Company also leases marketing and tool
stocking facilities in Oklahoma City, Oklahoma and Traverse City, Michigan. Internationally, through property owned and
operated by business associates, the Tool Division has service facilities in Singapore and Australia.

The Fishing Division operates from Company owned facilities in Grande Prairie, Alberta and leased premises in Lloydminster,
Saskatchewan; Whitecourt, and Nisku, Alberta; Houston, Texas; and Williston, North Dakota. The Fishing Division operates
a sales office from the same leased premises as the Tool Division in Calgary, Alberta.

The Company’s Bit Division operates from leased premises located in Houston, Texas consisting of approximately 59,000
square feet and several smaller sales centers in Casper, Wyoming; Lafayette, Louisiana; New Orleans, Louisiana; and Maracaibo,
Venezuela. Bit Division sales personnel in the other worldwide locations have office space in local agent’s facilities.

Product Development and Manufacturing

The Company, through its subsidiaries, is solely responsible for the design, production and maintenance ofall the Company's
downhole tools. Because of the requirement for precision tooling, there is a requirement for NC (numeric control) machine
tools to undertake the projects. NC machine tools also provide greater cost effectiveness.

Manufacturing of the components of the downhole tools for both the Tool and Fishing Divisions is done through the
Company’s in-house machining and manufacturing facilities and through contract to outside NC machining facilities. The
manufacturing capacity of these in-house and third party facilities is adequate to meet the Company's current and anticipated
future manufacturing requirements. The manufacturing capacity is dependant upon the supply of purchased parts such as the
rotor, stator and bearings.

Assembly, testing and quality assurance for the Tool Division (and for certain components utilized in the Fishing Division)
is undertaken in the Company's facility in Nisku, Alberta. In July 1994, Black Max Canada received its ISO 9001 and during
the year 2003, upgraded its certification to 1SO 9001-2000, which is the highest quality control rating in the industry.

The Bit Division manufactures its products at its headquarters in Houston, Texas. Its manufacturing capacity is adequate to
meet the Company’scurrent and anticipated future manufacturing requirements. Its manufacturing capacity is dependant upon
the supply of purchased parts such as the diamond cutters. This division utilizes two types of manufacturing processes to
produce drill bits. Steel is machined to form the body of the steel-bodied bits and a tungsten carbide matrix is infiltrated in
graphite molds with a binder to form the matrix-bodied bits. Assembly, testing and quality assuranceis completed in the same
Houston, Texas facility. Complete refurbishment of used bits is also done in the Houston, Texas facility. This division has
also received its ISO 9001 certification which certification was upgraded to ISO 9001-2000 during 2003.

Product Uniqueness, Patents and Proprietary Technologies
Major components of the Company's downhole tools and related products, including the adjustable bent housing, drive shaft

and bearing assemblies are protected by patents. As the Company develops new technology, additional patent protection is
obtained when available and there are presently several patents pending. The bit product line has several patents covering the



key features and functions of the PDC drill bit product line while the Fishing Division has certain patents related to its
whipstock systems. :

Research and Development

The Company engages in ongoing research and development, which consists primarily of improving existing tool and bit
technologies and identifying and developing new technology to satisfy customer needs. Records are maintained for all the
major components of the Company's products that allow problem areas to be identified. Opportunities for the development
of new technology are customer driven and arise largely from the Company's continued contact with customers. As the needs
of customers are identified, the Company's engineering staff evalnates and determines the feasibility and potential of new
technology. If appropriate, prototypes are then designed and tested with a view to commercialization. The Company has
specifically allocated approximately 6,000 square feet of space in its Nisku facility and 1500 square feet in its Houston Bit
facility geared to research and development. '

~ Markets and Marketing

The Company's marketing strategy for its downhole mud motors is to primarily target the oil and gas horizontal and
directional drilling, performance/straight hole drilling and re-entry markets in Canada, the United States and selected
international markets. Secondary markets for the Company's downhole tools are the utility crossing, mining and
environmental drilling markets.

In developing drilling motors especially, the barriers to market entry are substantial and should reserve most of the market
potential for existing suppliers. Entrants to this market face the difficulties of high R & D costs, a long lead-time prior to
market entry (for development and field trials) and the high cost of qualified product development personnel. Inaddition, full-
service drilling companies are not likely to develop a full range of motors but only the high demand sizes.

In early 2004, the Company undertook several organizational changes to better capitalize on its sales and operational
infrastructure and to take advantage of the Company’s ability to provide multiple product offerings to its customers. As &
result, -the Company’s Tool and Bit Divisions now operate under a common marketing umbrelia and jointly promote
performance drilling packages that combine a downhole motor with a fit for purpose drill bit to maximize rate of penetration.
The Company believes that these changes will result in increased mud motor and bit sales through the existing domestic and
international sales force. These changes are alse expected to strengthen operational management through the reallocation of
human resources.

The Company’s Fishing Division markets primarily to oil and gas operators and emphasizes a number of highly qualified and
experienced employees that are generally recognized in the industry in which they operate.

The Bit Division markets primarily to oil and gas operators and has been recognized over the years as a leader in high quality
products, technological innovation and new product design.

Competition

As of December 31, 2003, there were approximately seven companies that manufacture downhole motor assemblies which
management considers being competition to the Compeny’s Tool Division. Management considers Dreco Energy Services Ltd,,
(owned by National-Oilwell Inc.), Wenzel Downhole Toois Ltd., and Bico Drilling Tools Inc. as the Company’s primary
competitors in Canada and the U.S. Each manufactures high performance adjustable motors for the third party rental market.
In addition, there are also six large companies that manufacture downhole motor assemblies for in-house purposes only and
thus, are considered indirect competitors.



There are approximately 20 drill bit suppliers that compete against the Company’s Bit Division. Of these, the Company
considers Smith International, Baker Hughes, Halliburton and Grant Prideco to be its main competitors.

In the Fishing Division, the major competitors are Weatherford International, Inc. and Baker Oil Tools, (owned by Baker
Hughes Incorporated).

The following have been identified by management as key competitive advantages the Company has over other suppliers of
downhole tools, bits and Fishing services:

10.

The Company's technology exceeds capabilities and economic performance of most mud marine and fixed bent
housing motors commonly used in-house by drilling service companies.

The Company's downhole products are field-proven products.

ISO 9001 - 2000 certification.

The Company has a good track record in the industry with quality products and good customer support.

Large range of motors and bits gives flexibility to meet every drilling niche.

Ability to design, develop and manufactureinnovative new motors and bits ‘quickly to meet emerging market niches.

The productdesign and operational characteristics of the Company's drilling motors allow it to diversify into non-oil
and gas markets, including mining, utility and environmental drilling markets.

The Company is recognized internationally as an industry-leading supplier of quality motor system technologies
and bi-centre PDC drill bits.

State of the art testing units (dynamometers) at all service facilities.

The Company’s Fishing Division employees are highly skilled with long track records in the oil and gas industry.

Management has identified the following risk factors for its divisions:

Market fluctuations in the price of oil and gas impacts upon the level of drilling activity in the oil and gas industry.
A decline in the market price of oil and gas generally results in reduced drilling activity that can in turn have an
adverse effect on the profitability of the Company. The risk is somewhat mitigated in that the Black Max™ motors
are also utilized in other industries (i.e. utility crossing, mining, environmental).

The Company's long-term international business development will require a substantial investment in sales
programs, inventory and service facilities in any new overseas markets. In the past, the Company has been able to
minimize investment in international projects and the attendant risks by entering into alliances with other drilling
industry participants. The Company has further reduced these investments by merging the Tool and Bit Divisions
and utilizing the combined infrastructure.

As several other companies have similar technology, the Company will be required to maintain a focused and
efficient/effective domestic and international sales/marketing program to maintain current market penetration and
exploit selected evolving market opportunities.



Item 5:

In the long-term, some of the larger, directional drilling service companies are moving toward the in-house
manufacture of products similar to that of the Company's motor assemblies. This could have a negative effecton the
Company's current sales to those clients if reliable motors are developed. There are, however, substantial barriers
to market entry and the larger, directional drilling service companies tend to limit their motor fleet to a few motor
sizes thereby ensuring a need forthird party suppliers such as the Company with the ability to supply a large number
of motor sizes. Additionally, a significant percentage of the Company's revenues are derived from small,
independent directional drilling companies.

Foreign operations may be adversely affected by local political and economic developments, exchange controls,
currency fluctuations, royalty and tax increases,retroactive tax claims, renegotiations of contracts with governmental
emtities, expropriation, import and export regulations and other foreigh laws or policies governing operations of
foreign based companies, as well as by laws and policies of Canada and the United States affecting foreign trade,
taxation and investment. In addition, asthe Company's foreign operations are governed by foreign laws, in the event
of a dispute the Company may be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of foreign courts and the application of
foreign laws or may not be successful in subjecting foreign persons to the jurisdiction of Canadian courts. The
Company may also be hindered or prevented from enforcing its rights with respect to a governmental instrumentality
by the doctrine of sovereign immunity. The Company's business is subject to political risks inherent in most of its
foreign operations.

The Company’s ability to attract and retain skilled and experienced employees is key to continued success of its
operations. The Company mitigates this risk by providing competitive compensation packages and long term
incentives to its key employees.

See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis for the year ended December 31, 2003", filed on SEDAR on May 13,
2004 for additional risk factors.

Selected Consolidated Financial Information

See “Management's Discussion and Analysis for the year ended December 31, 2003, filed on SEDAR on May 13, 2004.

Item 6:

Management's Discussion and Analysis

See “Management's Discussion and Analysis for the year ended December 31, 2003 ", filed on SEDAR on May 13, 2004.

Item 7:

Market for Securities

The Class "A" common shares of the Company are listed and posted for trading on the Toronto Stock Exchange.



Item 8:
Directors and Officers

The name, municipality of residence and position with the Company and principal business or occupation in which each
director, officer and executive officer of the Company has been engaged in during the immediately preceding five years, is as

follows:

Name

Title

Principal Occupation for last five years

Director or Officer
Since

R. Tim Swinton
Calgary, Afberta

Chairman of the Board
and Director

President of Western Provinces Resources Ltd. (a
private investment company) since 1997, Executive
Chairman of IPEC Ltd.(a Canadian pipeline and oiifield
construction company) from 1999 to 2001

June 26, 2003

R. Dean Livingstone
Edmonton, Alberta

President,
Chief Executive Officer
and Director

President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company

1883

Derek C. Martin
Calgary, Alberta

Director

President of Addington Equities Inc. (an investment
company)

2000

Bruce R. Libin, Q. C.
Calgary, Alberta

Director

Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Destiny Resources Corp., President of B.R. Libin
Capital Corp. and from May to November 2000, Mr. Libin
was the Executive Chairman of Beau Canada
Exploration Lid.

June 26, 2003

Glen D. Roane
Canmore, Alberta

Director

Corporate Director and Independent Businessman

June 26, 2003

Thomas R. Bates, Jr.

Houston, Texas

Director

Managing Director of Lime Rock Management L.P.
since 2001; prior thereto he was Senior Vice President
and subsequently President of the Discovery Group of
Baker Hughes, Inc. from 1998 to 2000

September 2, 2003

John G. Clarkson
Calgary, Alberta

Director

Managing Director of Lime Rock Management Ltd. since

2003. Prior thereto, Managing Director, Clearwater -

Capital Corporation, since 1897

September 2, 2003

Kevin L. Nugent
Calgary, Alberta

Senior Vice President,
Finance, Chief Financial
Officer and Corporate
Secretary

Vice President, Finance and Chief Financial Officer of
the Company since September, 2003; From May of 2002
to August 2003, Vice President, SCF Partners, and prior
thereto Vice President Finance, Chief Financial Officer,
and Corporate Secretary of Enserco Energy Services
Company Inc.

Saptember 1, 2003

Karl J. Beagrie
Leduc, Alberta

Senior Vice President,
Fishing Division

Senior Vice President, Fishing Division since January
20, 2004 and prior thereto President of CanFish

January 20, 2004

Robert E. Iversen
Conroy, Texas

Senior Vice President,
Tools & Bit Division

Senior Vice President, Tools & Bit Division since
January 20, 2004 and prior thereto President of DP!

January 20, 2004

Notes:

e 'Each director of the Company is deemed to retire and will be eligible for re-election at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.
. R. Dean Livingstone also served as Chair of the Board of Directors until June 26, 2003.

As of May 12, 2004, the directors and senior officers of the Company, as a group, beneficially own, directly or indirectly, or
exercise control or direction over 210,102 Class “A” common shares representing approximately 0.5% of the issued and
outstanding Class "A" common shares of the Company.

At year end, the board committees consisted of the: a) Audit and Corporate Governance Committee, the members of which were
Bruce R. Libin (Chair), John G. Clarkson and Derek C. Martin; and b) the Compensation Committee,the members of which were
Glen D. Roane (Chair), R. Tim Swinton and Thomas R. Bates, Jr. Subsequent to year end, a Special Committee of the Board of
Directors was created to consider various options that may be available to the Company to enhance shareholder value. The
committee is comprised of R. Tim Swinton (Chair), Bruce R. Libin, and Thomas R. Bates, Jr.



For particulars of existing or potential material conflicts of interest between the Company or a subsidiary of the Company and
directors or officers of the Company or a subsidiary of the Company, referto the Audited Annual Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2003 filed on SEDAR on May 13, 2004.

Item 9:
Additional Information

Additional information, including directors’ and officers’' remuneration and indebtedness, principal holders of the Company's
securities, options to purchase securities and interests of insiders in material transactions is contained in the Company's
Information Circular, dated May 12, 2004, for its Annual General Meeting to be held on June 29,2004. Additional financial
information is provided in the Company's Comparative Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2003. Copies
of the Information Circular and Financial Statements may be obtained upon request from the Secretary of the Company.

In addition, the Company shall provide to any person, upon request to the Secretary of the Company;

a) when the securities of the Companyare inthe course ofa distribution pursuant to a preliminary short form prospectus
or & short form prospectus,

L. one copy of the Annual Information Form of the Company, together with one copy of any document, or the
pertinent pages of any document, incorporated by reference in the Annual Information Form;

ii. one copy of the comparative financial statements of the Company for its most recently competed financial
year for which financial statements have been filed together with the accompanying report of the auditor
and one copy of the most recent interim financial statements of the Company that have been filed, if any,
for any period after the end of the Company's most recently completed financial year;

ii. one copy of the Information Circular of the Company in respect of its most recent Annual Meeting of
shareholders that involved the election of directors or one copy of any annual filing prepared in lieu of that
Information Circular, as appropriate; and,

iv. one copy of any other documents that are incorporated by reference into the preliminary short form
prospectus or the short form prospectus and are not required to be provided under (i), (if) or (1ii) above;

or
b) at any other time, one copy of any other documents referred to in (a)(i), (ii) and (iii) above, provided the Company

may require the payment of a reasonable charge if the request is made by a person who isnot a security holder of the
Company.



CIBC Mellon Global Securities Services Company
CIBC Metlon Trust Company

May 19, 2004

BC Securities Commission

Alberta Securities Commission
Quebec Securities Commission
Ontario Securities Commission
Nova Scotia Securities Commission
The Toronto Stock Exchange
Manitoba Securities Commission

Dear Sirs:

RE: NQL Drilling Teols Inc.
Confirmation of Mailing

On May 19,2004 the following items were sent by prepaid mail to all registered shareholders and those
who have requested to receive this information of the above-mentioned Company:

1. Notice of Annual and General Meeting of Shareholders/Information Circular/Management’s
Discussion and Analysis ended December 31, 2003/Financial Statements ended December 31,
2003

2. Instrument of Proxy

3. Supplemental List Return Card (Registered and Supplemental Holders)

4. Non Postage Paid Return Address Envelope (Registered Holders)

However, we have not mailed material to Shareholders in cases where on three consecutive occasions,
notices or other documents have been returned undelivered by the Post Office.

We are filing this disclosure document with you as Agent for the above-named Company in compliance

with the regulations made under the Securities Act.

Yours truly,
CIBC MELLON TRUST COMPANY

“Signed”

Carla McKinstry
Associate Manager
Client Relations
(403) 232-2406

cc: sue.foote@ngl.com

%600 The Dome Tower 333-7th Avenue SM. Suite 600 Galgary, A.B. B2P 271 Tel 403.232.2400 www.cibecmellon.com

CIBC Mellon Global Securities Services Company and CIBC Metlon Trust Company are licensed users of the CIBC and Mellon trademarks.



